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COMPANY INTRODUCTION

Company name “GOBI” Joint Stock Company

Business operation Processing, manufacturing, and selling of finished goods and
garments from goat cashmere

Official address GOBI JSC, Industrial Street, 3rd khoroo, Khan-Uul district,
Ulaanbaatar-17062, Mongolia

Postal address: Ulaanbaatar-17062, PO Box 36/434, GOBI JSC
Telephone: (976)-70139977
Fax: (976)-70143081
E-mail: info@gobi.mn
Website: info.gobi.mn; gobicashmere.com
Facebook: Gobi Cashmere
Online stores:
Domestic: gobi.mn
International:  gobicashmere.com

Registered trading entity Mongolian Stock Exchange

Total number of issued shares 780,112,500

Company management Chairwoman of the Board: GERELMAA Damba
Chief Executive Officer: BAATARSAIKHAN Tsagaach

Date of foundation September 5th,1981

Total number of employees 1,765

Factory capacity -Processing of 1,150 tons of raw cashmere

-Production of 1,050 tons of spun yarn and 30 tons of fine spun yarn
-Production of 1,500,000 pieces of knitwear

-Production of 640,000 pieces of textiles

-Production of 162,000 garments

Branch store Domestic International
Ulaanbaatar 2 Subsidiary 5
Darkhan city 1 Branch store 2
Online store 1 Franchise store 21

Online store 13
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VISION

We make cashmere a lifestyle

MISSION

We provide everyone with stylish, affordable, and quality cashmere

SLOGAN

Cashmere for All

VALUES

RESPECT PASSION
& AUTHENTICITY

v

We embrace diversity and
exchange ideas with respect
and dignity.

EXCELLENCE
& RESPONSIBILITY
v

We value our responsibility
towards the environment,
society, and the results of
our actions as well as our
goal of sustainable
development.

We are a team, full of passion
and sincerity to achieve our

HONESTY
& TRANSPARENCY

v

We value the equal
participation of all parties and
embrace the transparency of

our operations

CREATIVITY
A 4

We seek new ideas and
creativity whilst
continuously striving for
results that exceed our
expectations.
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HISTORY TIMELINE

L

The Japanese government granted the government of the People's
Republic of Mongolia 5 billion yen, and the two governments agreed to
build a factory for goat cashmere and camel wool processing in

The SET-092, a Japanese knitting machine
with automatic computer control, was
installed at the factory.

GOBI has introduced the new Whole Garment
technology which increased the factory's production

GOBI independently introduced Amoeba
management, a method founded by Kyocera,
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Ulaanbaatar. capacity. afamous Japanese company.
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A A A A
O O O O O O O O

1976 1981 2012 2014

A pilot plant for the processing of goat
cashmere and camel wool was
established as part of the United Nations
Industrial Development Organization
(UNIDO) project.

The installation and adjustment of the machinery and

equipment for the goat cashmere and camel wool Square in Ulaanbaatar and launched a new launched in 2012. It is distinguished by its use of natural

processing plant were completed and the technology line Fall/Winter 2012 collection “GOBI by Saverio cashmere colors, which are beige, white, brown, and
was put into operation. GOBI, the first factory, opened its Palatella”. warmgray.

doors through Mongolian-Japanese cooperation.

GOBI opened a new branch store in front of Central The GOBI Mongolian Organic Cashmere brand was

A
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GOBI JSC expanded its global reach by
establishing subsidiaries such as Altai in
Japan, GOBI Europe in Belgium, and GOBI-
USA in the United States. The company also

The GOBI state-owned enterprise was reorganized
as the GOBI JSC, a listed company of the Mongolian
Stock Exchange, trading 25.1% of its total registered
capital, or 1,919,061 shares, following the decision

GOBI JSC successfully acquired Goyo
LLC, the second-largest cashmere
company in Mongolia. This acquisition

GOBI opened its new sewing factory with a capacity
of 100,000 cashmere coats and blazers as well as
releasing their e-commerce platform by launching

formed partnerships with over 30 countries of the Privatization Commission of the Government

1998 1993

A4

is one of the largest mergers in the
cashmereindustry.

2019

the website www.gobicashmere.com.

2017

€

)

J

v
The yarn dyeing technology was
ntroduced. The STOLL-330 knitting

O

1997 1991 2018 2016

The GOBI factory was the first in Mongolia
to receive the International Quality Award
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Mongolia's first factory to produce
woolen cashmere blankets,
machine, which is connected to a cashmere cloth, drape, and fine yarn,
modern computer system, was GOBI Factory - 2, was officially
nstalled. opened.

GOBI publicly announced the goal of
becoming the number one company

Installed the Italian Bigagli spinning mule machine in the
] spinning factory, improving yarn quality. Started mass
and certificate, after gradually production of cashmere blazers and became the in producing 100% cashmere coats

implementing the international 1SO-9000 world's leading manufacturer of cashmere blazers. and opened a branch store in Berlin,
standard and exporting 98% of its Germany.

manufactured goods.
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The GOBI Factory Store, designed by In the framework of their 30th = &
the famous Japanese architect anniversary, GOBI collaborated with GOBI JSC's 1,500 employees became Taking the development of cashmere products one s @
Sako Keichiro, officially opened its renowned lItalian fashion designer shareholders and investor employees of the step further, we started producing the first cashmere 5 j%
doors. Saverio Palatella and introduced print company. shoes and boots in Mongolia and delivered them to S
technology to the Mongolian cashmere consumers. We also opened our first rural area % =
industry forthe firsttime. branch factory in Khentii province. 5 m
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Through an international open
tender, FCI LLC acquired 73.45% of
GOBI shares, which were previously
owned by the state. As a result, GOBI
became entirely privately held.

Opened our branch store in Tokyo, Japan.
GOBI also entered into a cooperation
agreement with the Italian VVA Consulting
Company. We implemented staged
technical and technological renovations in
ourfactory.

10

GOBI JSC doubled its production
capacity. In collaboration with Saverio
Palatella, the first collection “GOBI by
Saverio Palatella” was launched and GOBI
JSC marked its 30-year anniversary.

GOBI JSC was awarded the highest State Award,
“Order of Sukhbaatar.” GOBI also launched their
B2C e-commerce business model into the
markets of the Russian Federation, French
Republic, Republic of Poland, Kingdom of Norway,
Kingdom of Sweden, UK, and Northern Ireland.

The GOBI's board of directors approved the
commitment to sustainable development. They
laid the foundation for sustainable development
activities within the framework of Environment,
Society and Governance (ESG) in all the
company's activities. The company also obtained
ISO 14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018 certification
foritsintegrated management system.

SININILVLS TVIONVNIL
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LETTER FROM THE
CHAIRWOMAN

Dear Shareholders, | extend my warmest greetings to you.

Our company, Gobi JSC, is one of the first open joint-stock companies in Mongolia. As a member of the
TOP-20 list on the Mongolian Stock Exchange, we are committed to introducing international best
practices in governance, establishing a balanced and robust governance system, protecting
shareholders'interests, and ensuring information transparency.

We are pleased to announce that ourimplementation of the "Corporate Governance Code," approved by
the Financial Regulatory Commission in 2023, has led us to rank first among Mongolia's open joint-
stock companies.

Last year, the Board of Directors approved the "Investor Relations Program" and the "Stakeholder
Engagement Management Plan," focusing on increasing stakeholder participation and safeguarding
their interests. As a result, our shareholder base grew by 3.5%, reaching 24,000. We are delighted that
the number of investors in our company continues torise.

12
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In recent years, environmental, social, and governance (ESG) responsibility has gained global
prominence, with companies emphasizing long-term stakeholder value and sustainable growth. As an
internationally recognized company, we aim to integrate sustainable development principles at every
stage of our operations, conduct environmentally friendly production, and further strengthen our
governance system.

As part of the "Sustainable Development Commitment," approved by the Board of Directors in 2022, we
have actively supported and monitored the implementation of our sustainable development policies
and goals. The Board has regularly overseen these efforts through meetings and guided the Executive
Management Team to ensure successful outcomes.

For instance, during the "Sustainable Cashmere Day - 2023" event, we were recognized as "the best
organization that introduced proper water usage in production." Additionally, at the "CSR Awards 2023,
our "Sustainable Cashmere, Tripartite Joint Project," which we have been implementing since 2020,
won the "Best Sustainable Development Project” award, highlighting the effectiveness of our step-by-
stepinitiatives in sustainable development.

To support sustainable development activities and finance working capital, we successfully negotiated
a $30 million financing agreement with the Asian Development Bank. We have received the first tranche
and planto continually increase investments aimed at sustainable development.

Another highlight of the past year was the establishment of our first rural area branch factory in Khentii
Province. This new facility created over 100 jobs, increased our production capacity, and contributed to
rural development.

In 2023, Gobi JSC implemented a flexible working time system for office employees and a shortened
working time system for factory employees with infants and kindergarten-age children. This initiative,
part of our Sustainable Development Policy's "Happy Employee" goal, aims to ensure work-life balance.
We will continue to foster a favorable workplace environment, provide opportunities for employee
learning and development, and continuously enhance organizational culture through increased

salaries, incentives, and overall job satisfaction.

We deeply appreciate the support of our dedicated employees, loyal customers, valued partners,
shareholders, and all our stakeholders. Your contributions are the foundation of our success.

The Board of Directors of Gobi JSC wishes you all the best in your work, health, and well-being. May your

endeavors be met with success, and may good health and prosperity accompany you in all your
pursuits!

Sincerely,

CHAIRWOMAN OF THE BOARD
D.GERELMAA (Ph.D))
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LETTER FROM THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear Shareholders, Customers, Business Partners, and Colleagues,
On behalf of Gobi JSC, | extend my warmest greetings.

Gobi JSC, with the slogan "Cashmere for all," has been successfully operating for 43 years since its
establishment. Throughout this historical period, thanks to our organization's management and the
dedicated efforts of our team, we have continuously expanded our business scope and developed
further. | have beenleading the Gobi JSC team for 16 years, serving as the Chief Executive Officer.

For Gobi JSC, 2023 was a year full of achievements. Last year, our company achieved the highest sales
revenue of MNT 255.7 billion, a 32% increase from the previous year. Breaking down sales revenue by
segment, domestic sales accounted for 57%, export sales 23%, and global sales 19%.

In the domestic market, the number of tourists to Mongolia increased significantly due to the
Government of Mongolia's announcement of 2023-2025 as the "Year to Visit Mongolia." To promote
tourist sales, we organized factory visits in foreign languages, collaborated with travel companies and
tour guides, extended branch store hours, and increased the number of foreign-speaking trade
consultants. As aresult, sales increased by 57% from the previous yearto MNT 147 billion.

We have been working in the export market since 2021 with a policy of cooperating with a select few

high-quality strategic customers. Within this framework, we increased our profitability and production
productivity, raising our export sales to MNT 59.5 billion, a 30% increase compared to the previous year.

14
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In the foreign market, despite global geopolitical tensions and the impact of climate change, we
established a subsidiary in the Republic of Kazakhstan and opened a new branch store in Disseldorf,
Germany, to boost sales. Additionally, by collaborating with SEO companies to improve the organic
search visibility of the Gobi brand, the organic traffic to our website, www.gobicashmere.com,
increased by 38%. This indicates that the results of our marketing and branding activities implemented
in foreign markets since 2019 are beginning to show, and brand recognitionis increasing.

Since 2020, we have been gradually transitioning to electronic systems to develop our software and
management capabilities. Last year, we fully integrated systems such as the Product Lifecycle
Management (PLM) system and the Finished Product Inventory system into our operations. These
advancements will not only automate business processes and speed up operations but also
significantly increase productivity. Additionally, preparations for introducing the SAP ERP system were
successfully completed.

During the same reporting period, Gobi JSC successfully secured the ISO 9001:2015 Quality
Management System standard certification, maintained the ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 certifications in
2022, and extended the certification period, thereby becoming a company that implements an
integrated management system.

In terms of design development, last year we expanded our product range and produced cashmere
shoes for the first time in Mongolia. Additionally, under the direction of the renowned Italian designer
Giorgio Spina, we successfully organized a world-class fashion show in Mongolia, introducing the
collections "The Face" and Organic "Materia," which elevated the design of cashmere products to a new
level.

As part of our "Happy Employee" goal, we increased salaries by an average of 24% in 2023, adhering to
our policy of leading the wool and cashmere industry through salary incentives. In the coming years, we
will continue to improve the working environment, ensure work-life balance, and increase employee
satisfaction by initiating and implementing activities aimed at enhancing our organizational culture.
Looking forward, our company will maintain its leading market position, expand its activities globally,
and mobilize allits resources to contribute to our country's economic recovery.

| wish you all health and success in your future endeavors! Wishing you all the best in your future
endeavors, filled with good health and great success!

Sincerely,

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
BAATARSAIKHAN Tsagaach

Yt ls pea Okl s
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OUR ACHIEVEMENTS
AND HIGHLIGHTS

Ranked among the "TOP-100" enterprises.

Gobi JSC was honored to be ranked 21st in the "TOP-100" enterprises list,
which evaluates contributions to Mongolia's economic and social
development based on five parameters.

Factory store successfully renovated

The factory store adjacent to the factory was renovated and expanded,
covering an area of 679 m2. The store, which combines traditional
Mongolian Ger style with a moderntouch, was fully reopened on May 25.

Launched World-Class Cashmere Fashion Show in Mongolia

On June 8, we successfully launched a world-class fashion show for the
THE FACE Pre-Fall 23 and MATERIA Organic Pre-Fall 23 collections, the
debut collections of our Chief Designer Giorgio Spina.

Started Production of Cashmere Shoes

In 2023, Gobi JSC expanded its product range by introducing a new type
of 100% cashmere Felton material, developed using a special method.
Thisinnovative product won the "Outstanding Product -2023" award from
the Mongolian Wool and Cashmere Association.

Obtained the ISO 9001:2015 Certification

Having fully met the requirements of the ISO 9001:2015 Quality
Management System standard, we obtained certification from the
international SGS certification organizationin June.

New Branch Store in Dusseldorf, Germany

In October, we opened our second branch store in Dusseldorf, Germany,
to enhance our foreign market sales channels and be closer to
international customers. The store's interior design uniquely incorporates
traditional Mongolian household elements.

18
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First Rural Area Branch Factory in Khentii Province

In November, we opened our first branch factory in Khentii Province,
starting operations that not only created jobs in rural areas but also
provided stable living conditions, reduced urban migration, increased
householdincome, and supported local development.

We have opened our first branch factory in Khentii province. By
establishing this branch factory, "GOBI" is not only creating job
opportunitiesin rural areas, but also fostering stable living conditions, and
reducing urban migration. This development not only promotes local
economic growth but also increases household income, making it a
highly advantageous endeavour that brings together numerous benefits.

Recognized for our Sustainable Water Utility in Production

During the first "Sustainable Cashmere Day - 2023" event in November,
organized by the Mongolian Sustainable Cashmere Platform under the
United Nations Development Program and the ADAPT project, Gobi JSC
was recognized as the "Best organization to have introduced sustainable
water utility”.

Secured financing from the Asian Development Bank

To support our international market expansion and sustainable
development activities, we successfully negotiated a $30 million long-
term working capital financing agreement with the Asian Development
Bank andreceived the first tranche of funding.

Received "CSR Sustainability" Award

At the "CSR Awards 2023" event, organized by the American Chamber of
Commerce in Mongolia (AmCham Mongolia NGO), our "Sustainable
Cashmere, Tripartite Project,” implemented since 2020, was selected as
the best sustainable development project. Gobi JSC received the "CSR
Sustainability" award.

Ranked first in our Corporate Governance Code Implementation

The Financial Regulatory Commission evaluated the implementation of
the "Corporate Governance Code" twice in 2023. Gobi JSC was ranked
firstamong Mongolia's open joint-stock companies.



ANNUAL REPORT 2023

billion MNT

SALES

SALES REVENUE, by segment /billion MNT, %/

6.0 2.9
China UK 492
—I 35 Global
USA
26.8 54.4%
19.2%
147.0
Domestic
SALES, NET PROFIT /billion MNT/
300.0 Acquisition of Goyo LLC 00
E-commerce
activation 255.7
250.0 17.5 17.8 2097 00
- 10.0
1.5 34 -
.o, .
200.0 07 . 17
0.7) _-°~ ¢
e
8)
150.0 (10)
(20)
100.0
Privatization 48.8 (30)
500 255 28 o
203 196 202 ‘& (40)
(50)
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 | 2020 2021 2022 | 2023
COVID-19
Il Domestic [ obm I Global e ---- Netprofit

20

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

INVESTMENT

INVESTMENTS SINCE 2007
/Total 156.7 billion MNT/
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TPrlvaﬂon 1 Investment B Acquisition of Goyo LLC

The total investment amount since Gobi JSC privatization in 2007 is 156.8 billion MNT. Within this
figure, an investment of 60.5 billion MNTwas made in 2019. Specifically, 23.2 billion MNT was allocated
forthe development of Gobi LLC, covering construction, equipment, and other investments.

The remaining 37.3 billion MNT reflects the increase, resulting from the acquisition of Goyo LLC.

2023 INVESTMENTS OVERVIEW

26%
Intangible
assets 30%
Construction
36% L 89,
Other investments . °

Equipments

In 2023, the total investment of 4.8 billion MNT was allocated as follows: 30% for building construction
(1.4 billion MNT), 8% for equipment procurement (408 million MNT), 36% for furnitures and other
tangible investments (1.7 billion MNT), and 26% for intangible investments (1.2 billion MNT).

21
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TAXES, FEES, AND CONTRIBUTIONS REMITTED
TO THE STATE BUDGET

Gobi JSC has remitted a total of 233.3 billion MNT to the Mongolian tax authorities since 2007. Of this
amount, 33.4 billion MNT intaxes, fees, and contributions were paid to the state budget in 2023.

TAXES, FEES, AND CONTRIBUTIONS REMITTED
TO THE STATE BUDGET

/billion MNT/
Corporate Income Tax

H Value Added Tax = 33.4

Immovable Property Tax ra

Customs Duties

B Personal Income Tax

Land Payment I .
20.0

N
N
o

B Automobile and Vehicle Tax
Social Insurance Payment

Total Taxes, Fees, and Contributions .

I "y
LSS
| o

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

22
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GOBI IN 2023 FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR 2023
/Comparative performance with 2022 /
2022 2023 Differences
1\ 3 2 O/ 1\ 3 O/ e MM pertommance Perforance | QUaNtly Percentage
O O SALES REVENUE million MNT 193,428 255,651 62,223 32%
SALES REVENUE NET INCOME (NET LOSS) Domestic million MNT 93,500 146,997 53,496 57%
255.7 billion MNT (6.8) biliion MNT ODM million MNT 45,586 59,485 13,899 30%
Global million MNT 54,342 49,169 (5173) -10%
NUMBER OF GOODS SOLD thousand.pcs 1,012 1,153 140 14%
T 5 7 ()/ T 8 O O/ ¢ 1 O ()/ COST OF GOODS SOLD million MNT 97,767 131,011 33,245 34%
O O O TOTAL INCOME million MNT 95,661 124,639 28,978 30%
DOMESTIC SALES ODM SALES GLOBAL SALES Gross margin percent 49% 49% -1% -1%
147.0 bilion MNT 59.5 bilion MNT 49.2 billion MNT Operating expenses million MNT 100,815 124,142 23,327 23%
Marketing expense million MNT 28,876 27,803 (1,074) -4%
OPERATING PROFIT million MNT (5,155) 497 5,652 110%
4 ()/ T 2 3 ()/ T 1 4 ()/ Operating profit margin percent -3% 0% 3% 107%
\l/ @) (@) (@) Non-operating expense million MNT 4,842 474 (4368)  -90%
Profit before tax million MNT (9,997) 23 10,020 100%
MARKETING EXPENSE GOODS MANUFACTURED GOODS SOLD NET PROFIT/LOSS million MNT (6998) (6.768) 230 3%
27.8 vilion MNT 1.0 miliion 1.2 miliion Net margin percent 4% 3% 19 7%
Total operating expenses million MNT 198,582 255,154 56,571 28%
PRODUCTION thousand.pcs 848 1,040 192 23%
1\ 1 O ()/ T 5 1 c)/ Knit thousand.pcs 674 742 68 10%
O O Woven thousand.pcs 136 264 128 94%
MARKET CAPITAL TAXES, FEES AND CONTRIBUTIONS Sewn thousand.pcs 38 34 @) -8%
213.4 bilion MNT 33.4 billion MNT Coat thousand pcs 16 U ! 8%
Blazer thousand.pcs 6 5 ©) -17%
Spun yarn tons 168 273 105 62%
O O TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES persons 1,548 1,765 217 14%
1\ 6 O /C) T 7 /O Revenue per employee thousand MNT 124,953 144,844 19,891 16%
INVESTMENT million MNT 3,009 4,809 1,800 60%
NVESTMENTS HOANBALANCE TOTAL LIABILITIES milion MNT 292284 311,950 19,666 7%
4.8 bilion MNT 238.3 billion MNT Bank loan million MNT 223,448 237,319 13,871 6%
TOTAL ASSET million MNT 298,112 311,784 13,671 5%
Inventory million MNT 128,809 142,521 13,713 11%

24 25
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SALES REVENUE INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO GOODS MANUFACTURED GO0DS SOLD
Jbillion MNT/ 4 32% /thousand pcs/ /thousand pcs/
3000 123% 114%
255.7 16 1,200 -
2500 o , 1,400
' 193.4 17% 15 848 1200 1,012 g
200.0 2% 1.5 1,000 . 5
7% e 1,000 =t S
1500 14 - 3
1.3 800 >
100.0 62% 600 Z
50.0 - 13 600
1o 400 80% - 400 74%
2022 2023 ‘ 2022 2023 200 200
[ Knit W Woven Sewn M Others
Comparedto 2022, the profitability performance in 2023 increased by 32% to MNT 255.7 billion. _ 2022 2023 ) 2022 2023
L . I Knit W Woven B Sewn [ Knit W Woven M Sewn
The Interest Coverage Ratio improved by 0.2 percentage points. N
In 2023, the volume of goods manufactured increased by 23%, and the volume of goods sold increased g
MARKETING EXPENSES NET INCOME by 14% compared to the previous year. Knitted products constituted 70% of the manufactured goods =
/billion MNT/ o /billion MNT/ o and 73% of the sold goods. Sewn products represented 3% of both manufactured and sold goods. -
‘1/4/0 144 70 Woven products accounted for 25% of manufactured goods and 27% of sold goods, marking a 5- s
0.0 0.0 percentage-pointincrease fromthe previous year.
: 28.9 27.8
300 0 9 20
20.0 6.8
= CASH FLOW
10.0 :
6.0 300.0
2022 2023 50,0 265.9 ( I,
80 200.0 2
[ International market M Others 2022 2023 : o
1500 8
In 2023, marketing expenses totaled MNT 27.8 billion, a decrease of 4% compared to the previous 100.0 §
year. Of this, 93%, or MNT 25.9 billion, was allocated to activities aimed at activating the foreign 50.0 233 o
market, reflecting a 10% reduction in marketing expenses of the Global market from the previous . 9.0 —— 9.5
year. The company's net loss for 2023 was MNT 3.9 billion, with the loss for the reporting period 500 (3.9)
exceeding 30% of the equity amount at the end of the reporting period. 100.0
-150.0
-200.0
TOTAL ASSETS INVENTORY TURNOVER -250.0 (284.9) =N
/billion MNT/ /days/ 300.0 o2
1‘ 5% \l, 24% 2023.01.01 Monetary income Monetary Investment Investment 2023.12.31 § (ﬁ
expenditure e >
600 3%
4000 298.1 3118 498 . . . . < %
co : In 2023, total revenue from operations amounted to MNT 265.9 billion, marking a 26% increase om
3000 — 400 378 compared to 2022. Regarding cash flow, a total of MNT 284.9 billion was expended, comprising MNT -
200.0 223.8 billion on operating expenses, MNT 33.4 billion on tax expenses, and MNT 27.7 billion on
‘ o 3119 200 financing expenses. Investments totaled MNT 4.8 billion in 2023, resulting in a net investment cash
100.0 ' flow of MNT 3.9 billion. The net financial cash flow is MNT 23.3 billion.
I 0 (&) |
©2 2022 2023 n
2022 2023 =
[ Total liabilities W Owner's equity 5
>
In 2023, inventory turnover days decreased by 24% compared to 2022, improving to 378 days, due to %)
minimal raw material withdrawals and effective inventory reduction measures. E
<
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/thousand MNT/

2022.12.31 2023.12.31
Name Currency nominze?lzigterest mlaqtirr]ity cFuorrrgir?cny Asgﬁjuent elzterest cf.l(:;gir?:y Nominal Ifr;Fr)?lgtlL?J G [ 5
rate (2022) date /thousand/ pense /thousand/ price measurement celie expense
1. Golomt Bank (Discounted Loan) (1) MNT 11.00% 2025 - 20,000,000 54,247 - 13,333,333 209,569 13,123,764 36,164
2. Golomt Bank (Credit Line) (1) MNT 15.65% 2024 - - 12,012 - 48,950,000 - 48,950,000 83,760
3. EBRD (Tranche 1A) (ii) usD 6.79% 2024 1818 6262910 204,356 - - - - -
4. EBRD (Tranche 1B) (i) USD 7.49% 2024 2,727 9394364 338,137 - - - - -
5. EBRD (Tranche 2) (ii) usD 6.93% 2024 3273 11273235 375428 - - - - -
6. Khan Bank (Credit Line) (iii) MNT 12.60% 2025 - - - - 6,500,000 - 6,500,000 8,334
7. Khan Bank (Discounted Loan) (iii) MNT 3.00% 2024 - 10,000,000 21,370 - 4,202,775 33,280 4,169,495 8,982
8. Khan Bank (Discounted Loan) (iii) MNT 5.00% 2024 - - - 10,000,000 247,199 9,752,801 35,616
9. Development Bank of Mongolia (iv) MNT 16.34% 2023 - 42,900,000 255,754 - - - - -
10. Development Bank of Mongolia (iv) MNT 16.34% 2023 - 33,333,333 113,424 - - - - -
11. Xac Bank (v) MNT 1520 2024 - 9,566,000 201,904 - - - - -
12. Xac Bank (V) MNT 5.00% 2023 - - - - 16,666,667 238,441 16,428,226 68,493
13. Arig Bank (vi) MNT 5.00% 2024 - - - - 14,500,000 450,200 14,049,800 59,589
14. ADB (vii) USD 3S%9;/ﬁ’a+ 2026 - - - 12,000 40,928,280 - 40,928,280 104,954
15. 1IB (viii) EUR 4.25% 2027 8,000 29,352,160 162,864 8,000 30,333,280 - 30,333,280 1,475,377
16. 11B (viii) EUR 5.25% 2027 14,000 51,366,280 352,073 14,000 53,083,240 - 53,083,240 3,189,418
Total loan balance 223,448,282 2,091,569 238,497,575 1,178,689 237,318,886 5,070,687
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Mongol Bank Currency Rate /MNT/

2022.12.31  2023.12.31

usb 3,444.60 3,410.69
EUR 3,669.02 3,791.6
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MAJOR TRANSACTIONS

/thousand MNT/

d
Date Context Total Counterparty Term.s.and Starting Ending  Approved o
amount conditions date date by -]
(@]
o)
2023.04.14 Loan from 25,000,000 XacBank  Loan with discounted interest  2023.04.14  2024.04.01 Board %
Xac Bank for raw cashmere preparation resolution no.13 Jz>
<
e, " 2023.05.26 Loan from 14,500,000 ArigBank  Loan with discounted interest  2023.05.29  2024.05.30 Board
T : Arig Bank for raw cashmere preparation resolution no.18
o, - B o
- - L 18
e, CONFLICT OF INTEREST TRANSACTIONS
] i N - - e
Ji Total T d s Ending  Approved
e ota erms an tarting nding pprove
| | Context amount Counterparty conditions date date by N

Amending the

Agreement for

Opening Credit
Lines with
Khan Bank

10.0 Loan with discounted Board

billion Khan Bank interest for 2023.06.28 2024.06.05 resolution

MNT raw cashmere no.20
preparation

2023.06.16

€20C N1 1909

Authorization Gobi Cashmere o
400.0 Sales and TY3-nitH

2023.09.22
023.09 to Conclude Kazakhstan Purehase 20230926 20231231  Tortoon

thousand o
An Agreement USD (subsidiary) No33

Granting of 1.4 Ulaanbaatar Real Estate Board
20231120 RightstoSell 0, Print LLC Sale 20231120 20231120  resolution
Real Estate MNT no.37

€

Modification of Current
Amending the Account Conditions to Board
2023.12.22 Terms of Current Khan Bank "Corporate Tiered 2023.05.17 resolution
Account Interest Current no.40
Account" Terms

o
c
o)
>
3]
4
<
=)
m
(%2}

Process for Authorizing and Monitoring Transactions with Conflicts of Interest and Related Parties:

Transactions involving Tavan Bogd Trade LLC, the parent company of Tavan Bogd Group, a significant
shareholder of Gobi JSC, and its affiliated entities are categorized as transactions with conflicts of
interest or related parties.

14

At the onset of each fiscal year, the independent members of the Board of Directors approve the roster
of individuals authorized to engage in transactions with conflicts of interest for that year. Subsequently,
at year-end, the company's executive management submits a comprehensive report detailing
transactions conducted with conflicted parties to the Board of Directors. The Risk and Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors, along with independent members, then issue a resolution overseeing its
execution.

1N3INdOT3A3A
379VNIVLSNS

g

For the fiscal year 2023, Resolution No. 03, dated 02.03.2023, was passed by the board of directors,
sanctioning the list of related parties and authorizing the purchase and sale of goods and services
essential for the company's daily operations at prevailing market prices and terms. The resolution also
included areview of its implementation and oversight of transactions with related parties.

Detailed information regarding legal entities and ultimate owners of Gobi JSC is available on page
thisreport.

SININILVLS TVIONVNIA

*Tavan Bogd Trade LLC changed its name to Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC from January 2024.




ANNUAL REPORT 2023

1. 2023 Transactions and Balances with related parties /thousand MNT/

1.1 Balances with related parties

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

2022 2023

Accounts Receivable from Related Parties

Other related parties 17,222 129,632
Payable to related parties /Short-term/

Ultimate controlling party - 13,642,760

Fellow subsidiaries 42,268 10,630,000

Other related parties 5315 703
Payable to related parties /Long-term/

Ultimate controlling party 30,980,732 17,032,986
Borrowings from related relaties

Other related parties 10,025,578 20,475,228

There are no liens on related party account balances and no provision for bad debts.
Long-term payables to related parties are related to the purchase of shares of Goyo LLC from Tavan

Bogd Holdings LLC on creditterms. The Group has not pledged any assets on the agreement.

1.2 Transactions with related parties

The following transactions were incurred with Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC which is the Group's ultimate

controlling party:

2022 2023
Advances received from ultimate controlling party - 200,750,000
Payment of advances received from ultimate controlling party - 200,750,000
Purchases made from ultimate controlling party 1,356,559 1,375,508
Sales made to ultimate controlling party 7,789 33,051
Rental income from ultimate controlling party 22,090 -
Interest expense to ultimate controlling party 2,219,369 5,816,451

The following transactions were incurred with other related parties of the Group which are entities

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

The following transactions were incurred with Khan Bank which is an associated entity of the

ultimate controlling party:

2022 2023
Advances received from Khan Bank 19,310,000 81,700,000
Payment of advances received from Khan Bank 9,310,000 70,997,225
Sales made to Khan Bank 22,002 138,672
Purchase made from Khan Bank 1,302,303 -
Payment of interest expense to Khan Bank 194,904 555,651
All transactions with related parties are on mutually agreed terms.

1.3 Comparison of transactions with related parties
FINANCING COST 2022 2023
Total financing cost 26,000,427 31,150,837
Financing Cost from Related Parties: 3,267,767 8,598,888
Proportion of Financing Cost from Related Parties: 13% 28%
Total financing cost
28% Gobi JSC incurred MNT 8,598,888 thousand for related party

Related party
financing

USdollars (USD).

ﬁ related party financing.
Others

financing costs in 2023, representing 13% of the total
financing costs. The average interest rate for related party
financing in Mongolian Tugrik (MNT) was 16.1%, and 7.8% for

Note: Financial ratios and collateral are not required for

under common control:

2022 2023
Advances received from other related parties 105,506,586 252,920,000
Payment of advances received from other related parties 105,506,586 242,290,000
Purchases made from other related parties 1,202,395 1,776,029
Purchase made from other related parties 28,918 25,932
Sales made to other related parties 134,599 251,554
Rental income from other related parties 347,349 292,062
Payment of interest expense to other related parties 853,494 2,226,785

32

PURCHASES 2022 2023
Total purchases 60,911,143 102,285,245
Overseas purchases 10,241,714 22,143,070
Domestic purchases 50,669,429 80,142,175
Purchases made from related parties 2,811,030 3,040,428
Proportion of related party purchases in total purchases 4.6% 3.0%
Proportion of related party purchases in domestic purchases 5.5% 3.8%
Total purchases Domestic purchases
3.0% 3.8%
’ From related ’ From related
parties parties
97.0% 96.2%
Others Others

Gobi JSC made purchases totaling 3,040,428 thousand MNT from related parties in 2023. This amount
represents 3.0% of total purchases and 3.8% of domestic purchases. All purchases from related parties
were made at market value.

Note: All related party transactions are subject to price comparison studies in accordance with Gobi JSC's
"Procurement Policy", "Order Acceptance, Purchase and Delivery Procedures’, "Service Procurement
Procedures’, and "Selection Committee Procedures’. These transactions are conducted through a
competitive selection process at market prices, ensuring no preferential treatment is given.
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DOMESTIC MARKET

In 2023, sales in the domestic market amounted
to 147 billion MNT, marking a 57% increase from

the previous year. +579% 236%
Additionally, a total of 640,000 pieces were sold I P
in the domestic market, reflecting a 36% 634 ”»
increase compared with the previous year. Locals I
M Tourists
2022 2023 2022 2023
MARKET SHARE SALES COMPOSITION
34% 48%
Others Locals
126%
66% 52%
Gobi JSC Tourists
2022 2023
In 2023, Gobi JSC held a 66% Interms of sales composition, tourist sales account for 52%
market share in the domestic of total domestic sales. Moreover, the average customer
market. shopping basket increased by 26% to 536,000 MNT this
year.
T114% '117% 1 155%
0] 0] @)
TOTAL TOURISTS VISITED TOURISTS SHOPPED TOTAL TOURIST
MONGOLIA AT GOBI BRAND STORE PURCHASES
651 thousand people 1 53 thousand people 769 billion MNT

In 2023, the total number of tourists visiting Mongolia increased by 114% compared to the previous
year, reaching a record 651 thousand, marking a historic milestone for Mongolia. Consequently, the
number of foreign tourists making purchases from Gobi JSC surged by 117% to 153,000, indicating
that oneinevery 4 tourists visiting Mongolia visited Gobi brand stores.

This increase led to a 155% rise in total tourist purchases, amounting to 76.9 billion MNT, which
significantly contributed to a 57% growth in total domestic sales. These figures demonstrate the direct
impact of international tourist arrivals on the company's sales.

With Mongolia declaring 2023-2025 as the 'Year to Visit Mongolia' and setting a target of attracting 1
million tourists in 2024, the development and growth of the tourism industry will provide a significant
boost in sales, not only for Gobi JSC but also for domestic cashmere product manufacturers. Gobi JSC
plans to capitalize on this opportunity by enhancing tourist attraction strategies, creating comfortable
service conditions, maintaining product compatibility, and furtherimproving service quality standards.
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HIGHLIGHTS

Factory Store Renovation

The expansion area of the central store adjacent to the
factory was renovated and reopened, combining
traditional colors with modern styles. The newly
renovated area features a wall depicting the brand's
story and a coffee shop to create a more comfortable
shopping experience for customers.

Giorgio Spina Fashion Show

We set a new standard for fashion shows in Mongolia by
organizing our Chief Designer Giorgio Spina's first
collections "THE FACE" Pre-Fall 23 and "MATERIA’
Organic Pre-Fall 23 fashion show innovatively at the
ChoijinLama Temple Museum.

“Pioneer Pasqueflower” Collection

The successful launch of the " Pioneer Pasqueflower "
Lunar New Year collection, in collaboration with state
award-winning artist S. Sarantsatsralt, received high
consumer satisfaction ratings.

Gobi Experience Project

The Gobi Experience Project, created in collaboration
with actor P. Erdenezaan, effectively conveyed the
product's story and value to consumers and enhanced
the company's reputation in the labor market.
Additionally, more than 20 employees from 9 media
companies were invited to learn about the company's
activities and tour the factories as part of this project.

Professional Stylist Consulting Services

A new professional stylist consultation service was
introduced at the Galleria store and Factory store. This
service not only assists consumers seeking innovative
fashion solutions and clothing choices but also
enhances sales.
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ODM MARKET

Regarding the ODM market, our company

maintains a strategy of collaborating with a

select group of high-quality strategic

customers. In 2023, we achieved sales of 59.5

456 130% 319 113% billion MNT from 51 customers across 18

i countries, marking a 30% increase from the
previous year.

Additionally, a total of 352,000 products were
sold globally, representing a 13% increase

2022 2023 2022 2023 comparedtothe previous year.
Q 99
0
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TOTAL NUMBER OF MASS ORDERS
PARTNERS PROFITABLE PRODUCTION

MANUFACTURING EFFICIENCY

Gobi JSC has 21 franchise stores in 20 cities of 7 countries as
of the end of 2023.

HIGHLIGHTS

In January, we held business meetings with customers in Paris, France,
and presented a new collection. By meeting with customers in person
and gaining detailed insights into their operations, trust and cooperation
were enhanced, positively impacting sales growth.

We also began selling products under the Goyo brand through South
Korea's Lotte Home Shopping channel.
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GLOBAL MARKET

Since 2019, Gobi JSC has been developing its global sales channels and selling Gobi brand products
internationally through online platforms and branch stores, aiming to introduce Mongolian cashmere
totheworld.

In 2023, the target markets for global sales were the European Union, the United States, and the
People's Republic of China. The number of Gobi brand online stores increased from 5in 2022 to 13 in
2023. We implemented website operations in the local languages of each country, improved website
design and functionality, enhanced site engagement, and upgraded product photography. We also sell
through platforms such as Zalando, Tmall, JD, and Taobao.

To gradually increase the number of branch stores, we opened a new branch in Disseldorf, Germany, in
October 2023, in addition to our store in Berlin. We continue to successfully expand our global

operations.

North America

UK

Europe

China

zalando f;ﬁm
THALWLCOM
Taobao.com
www.gobicashmere.com
WEBSIRE PLATFORM
Europe
1. www.gobicashmere.com International Europe
2. www.gobicashmere.com/de Germany 1 Zalando
3. www.gobicashmere.com/fr France /Germany, Austria, France, Sweden/
4. www.gobicashmere.com/dk Denmark
5. www.gobicashmere.com/se Sweden
6. www.gobicashmere.com/it ltaly China
7. www.gobicashmere.com/pl Poland 1. Tmall
8. www.gobicashmere.com/es Spain 2 JD
9.  www.gobicashmere.com/cz Czech 3 Taobao
10. www.gobicashmere.com/fi Finland
11. www.gobicashmere.com/nl Netherland BRANCH STORES
North America
12. www.gobicashmere.com/us ~ USA 1. Berlin, Germany
2. Dusseldorf, Germany
UK
13. www.gobicashmere.com/uk UK
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MAIN INDICATORS

CTR CR CPA

2022 2023 Differences 2022 2023 Differences 2022 2023 Differences
% % %

MARKET

EU, UK, North America 1.36% 1.23% -10% 1.64% 2.24% 267%  $65.45 $65.15 0%

China 3.30% 2.68% -19% 0.69% 0.70% 2% ¥190 ¥185.1  -3%

Explanation of Indicators

CTR /Click through rate/
- The percentage of clicks or actions taken from the total number of ads viewed.

CR /Conversion rate/
- The percentage of total web visits that result in a purchase.

CPA /Cost per acquisition/
- The digital marketing cost per order.

Number of Orders Goods Sold Sales Revenue

/thousand pcs/ /billion MNT/
MARKET
2022 2023 Differences 2022 2023 Differences 2022 2023 Differences
% % %

EU 64,014 48,124 -30% 1273 79.4 -38% 32.6 26.8 -18%
UK 128 6,499 4977% 7.5 8.6 15% 1.9 2.9 52%
us 26,174 24,989 -5% 514 423 -18% 137 13.5 2%
CN 20,287 20,819 3% 258 237 -8% 6.1 6.0 -3%
Total 115,603 100,431 -13% 2120 154.0 -27% 54.3 49.2 -10%

In 2023, compared to the same period last year, the number of orders in the foreign market decreased
by 13%, sales volume decreased by 27%, and total sales decreased by 10%.

Sales/million MNT/ Differences Percentage in the
SALES CHANNEL % total sales%
2022 2023
Website 27,400 21,208 -23% 79%
Zalando 1,089 1,654 52% 6%
Branch store 4,065 3,894 -4% 15%
TOTAL 32,554 26,756 -18% 100%

If we break down the sales of the European market, which is the main market for global sales, by
channel, the e-commerce sales made through the website were 21.2 billion MNT or 23% less than the
previous year, and the online sales of Zalando, the largest European marketplace, were 1.6 billion MNT
ora 52% increase from the previous year, however the sales of 2 branch stores in Germany decreased
by 4% or 3.9 billion MNT.

43



ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Dwapers Mild |

& INSTAGRAM VERIFIED

BADGE

——
-

LT
¥

i

HIGHLIGHTS

Establishment of Subsidiary in Kazakhstan
To expand our global sales channels, a subsidiary was established in the
Republic of Kazakhstan in September.

Instagram Verified Badge

All 11 Instagram accounts of Gobi Cashmere across global markets have
received official verification. This recognition is awarded to renowned brands
meeting rigorous criteria, enhancing the Gobi brand's credibility and
authenticity among international consumers.

CNN Program Feature

Representatives from CNN TV visited Mongolia to feature Gobi JSC's factories,
stores, and operations on their "Made in" program. The program aired on CNN
channels in the USA during June and July, marking a significant step in
promoting the Gobibrand globally.

PR Agency Partnerships

In 2023, our Foreign Sales Marketing Department collaborated with targeted
PR agencies such as L.E.R in the American market, B.agency in the English
market, R+inthe German market, and Charaly PR in the Belgian market.

This resulted in partnerships with 429 influential personalities including Maye
Musk, James Gunn, and Nas Daily, and features in 219 prestigious publications
such as L'Officiel, GQ, Vogue, and Cosmopolitan. Additionally, we successfully
participated in 11 events including Showroom in New York, Berlin VIP Fashion
Lounge, and Berlin Beauty & Fashion Lounge, ensuring increased market
awareness and high-quality brand representation.

New Branch Store in Germany

Continuing our strategy to expand boutique presence in foreign markets, we
successfully launched a new branch store in Disseldorf, Germany in
October.

Google x GOBI

In September, representatives from Google visited Gobi JSC's factory in
Mongolia to gain firsthand insights into the entire production process, from raw
material preparation to final product assembly. This visit facilitated
discussions on a strategic plan to enhance the recognition of the Gobi brand in
international markets, which is currently being implemented through
collaborative initiatives.

Data Science

Starting in 2023, our Foreign Sales Department began utilizing Data Science to
leverage aggregated customer data effectively. This unified platform aids in
optimizing customer purchase paths, refining data analysis processes, and
enhancing sales forecasting accuracy.
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GOBI BRAND ORGANIC SEARCH

In 2023, one of the most important projects in Global

L M Sales was to work with companies that provide SEO
=1 or Search Engine Optimization services, focusing on
- improving the brand's organic search volume and
- visibility.
Organic keywords
_ Total number of
DATE Keyword ranking Keywords Differences
1-3 4-10  11-50 51-100 2022 2023 %
Q1 485 1448 7182 3,820 3,529 12,935 267%
Q2 379 1,120 5,692 3,258 3,412 10,525 209%
Q3 296 817 4,700 3,989 6,566 9,916 51%
Q4 652 1,883 7,773 5,991 13,144 16,420 25%

In 2022, the total number of organic keywords was 13,144, and in 2023, itincreased by 25% to 16,420. If
you look at it, the number of words in the 1st-3rd places was 485 at the beginning, but at the end of the
year there were 652, the words in the 4th-10th places increased from 1,448 to 1,883, the words in the
11th-50th places increased from 7,182 to 7,773, and the words in the 51st-100th places increased from

3,820105,991.

Organic traffic

WEB TRAFFIC 2022 2023 Pifferences
COM (www.gobicashmere.com) 124,506 170,520 37%
DE (www.gobicashmere.de) 74,459 81,091 9%
US (www.gobicashmere.us) 76,388 127,291 67%
Total 275,353 378,902 38%
170,250
In 2023, Gobi's focus on improving organic
124,506 127,291 search results resulted in a 38% increase in
24459 81,091 76388 organictraffic fromtotaltraffictothe website.
Of this, COM has 37% growth, DEhas9% growth,
andUShas67% growth.
COM DE us

M 2022 2023
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SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT AND
DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

O<8 ©oos

Implementation of Implementation of Implementation of
“SAP B1 ERP" Product Lifecycle “SAP S/4 HANA ERP" implementation of Automation of
anagemen (Finished Goods Internal Processes

Implemented the Deployed the Planning to Planning to implement Completed the
ERP system at our PLM system implement the the RFID system for digitization and
subsidiary in China. company-wide. SAP S/4 HANA ERP finished goods inventory. automation of the

system. internal paper

request process.

Since 2020, Gobi JSC has been progressively digitizing its operational processes and enhancing
domestic software development initiatives, laying the foundation for newly implemented projects.

In 2023, the Information Technology Department successfully implemented production and product
development systems, including the SAP ERP system, Product Lifecycle Management (PLM) system,
and Finished Goods Inventory System.

PRODUCT LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT (PLM)

Integrated database Easy lookup  Enhanced communication, Traceability Quality Detailed
accurate information information

ENTERPRISE RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (ERP)

Production BUSINESS PROCESS WORK PRODUCTIVITY DECISION MAKING MANUAL LABOR
technical

management

Collaborate with departments and ~ Save time, improve work quality, Ensure management reports and Reduce misunderstandings,

Sales and
distribution 1
Quality Financial : D
management, management ‘:’ @ .: {:}
S/4 HANA
Financial
accounting
units to work in coordination  andincrease productivity. information are accurate and make improve work history and
according to international data-driven decisions. Receive succession. Decrease errors from

) — standards. Improve business information quickly. manuallabor”
Przlvduqtlon man:;‘:’r':ent processes and thereby expand
planning SR operations

The implementation of these systems in Gobi JSC's operations will bring significant advancements in
various aspects such as product development, unit product efficiency, inter-process information,
finished product quality, traceability, and the stable and normal operation of production. These
improvements will greatly enhance operational efficiency and productivity.
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NEW TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
INTRODUCED IN OPERATIONS

In 2023, Gobi JSC expanded its range of designs and introduced a new type of 100% cashmere Felton
material with high density, specially processed to enhance cashmere product development. It also
launched Mongolia's first cashmere shoes, bringing them to both domestic and international markets.
Thisinnovative product received the "Outstanding Product - 2023" award from the Mongolian Wool and
Cashmere Association.

Our company's Design Development Department is led by an expert with experience in developing
footwear for major international brands. We are currently developing shoe technology and plan to
expand our range to offer various types of shoes to customers.

I

[

In 2023, the Design Development Department collaborated with Chief Designer Giorgio Spina on the
Gobi Pre-FW23 and Organic Pre-FW23 collections. These collections utilized our full production
capacity, combining knit and woven fabrics, and introduced new types of stitches in the design,
bringing them to our customers. Additionally, we created 137 styles across 45 models and presented
Mongolia's first major fashion show that meets international standards. Moving to the next level of our
collaboration, we are preparing the Gobi SS24 and Organic SS24 collections, crafted with new types of
cashmere-blended yarns tailored to different climatic conditions, for the international market.
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COLLABORATION WITH
A WORLD-RENOWNED DESIGNER

GIORGIO SPINA

Renowned Italian designer Giorgio Spina, one of the leading figures in the global fashion industry, has
been appointed Chief Designer of Gobi JSC since December 2022. With over 20 years of experience in
the fashion industry, Giorgio Spina's professionalism and talent have been highly regarded by
prestigious brands such as Brunello Cucinelli, Alexander Wang, Moncler, and Zegna, who have
incorporated hisknitting yarnsinto their collections.
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COLLECTIONS

In 2023, the skilled team of Gobi JSC's Design Development Department successfully launched a total
of 29 new collections in both domestic and international markets. This effort aligns with the strategy to
introduce new collections monthly, aimed at boosting sales, enhancing profitability, and consistently
offering innovative products to customers.
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PRINTED SHAWL COLLECTION VALENTINE'S COLLECTION

%";

A

PIONEER FLOWER COLLECTION 3D WHOLEGARMENT COLLECTION RABBIT YEAR EDITION SOCKS
GOBI S/S 23 PEONY COLLECTION KIDS 2023 COLLECTION
MEXICANA COLLECTION
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ONE DAY OF THE WORLD SUPERTHIN COLLECTION THE FACE PRE-F/W 23 GOBI ORGANIC VANILLA F/W 23 CASHMERE REBORN CASHMERE BOOTS
COLLECTION COLLECTION COLLECTION RESPONSIBLE COLLECTION COLLECTION

anll

e
MATERIA PRE-F/W 23 CASHMERE SHOES NAADAM COLLECTION GOYO COLLECTION WHITE FANTASY COLLECTION KNITTED CASHMERE SNEAKERS
COLLECTION COLLECTION

MOUNTAIN FLOWER COLLECTION BLAZER COLLECTION TOWN & COUNTRY F/W 23 ACCESSORIES COLLECTION LEGGINGS COLLECTION CASUAL SPORTIVE COLLECTION
COLLECTION
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GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE, the world-renowned
cashmere brand that brings timeless pieces for everyone at

every stage of their lives.

l

MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
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GOBI ORGANIC, an undyed and unbleached YAMA, the epitome of the ingenuity of the world's top
cashmere line for people who value cashmere in its designers, is a luxury brand that creates elegant high-quality
most authentic form. cashmere clothing.

il

RO
W T I
L il )

54 55



ANNUAL REPORT 2023

&

CASHMERE

GOYO, the brand that expresses freedom through vibrant
colors and designs aligned with the current trend.
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il

PURE
MONGOLIAN L
CASHMERE

KID GOYO brand, the most comfortable and cozy cashmere
pieces designed specifically for thelittle ones.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
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SUSTA'NABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEM ENT = Spreading the culture of sustainable development

The concept of sustainable development is disseminated from the

In today's business environment, prioritizing the environmental, social, and economic impacts in Uni : : o
o . ' T ' ' i nited Nations to governments, large companies, employees, and
decision-making has become a new trend globally. This is driven by consumer and investor demand for households 9 9 P Ploy =
sustainable development indicators, and evolving legal frameworks requiring businesses to maintain ) 5
- o
competitive edge. Gobi JSC incorporates the principle of spreading knowledge and §
understanding of sustainable development among stakeholders z

The garment industry, representing a substantial part of the global economy at $2.5 trillion and
providing employment for 75 million people, has seen rapid growth, exemplified by a 60% increase from
2000to0 2014. As a major national enterprise, Gobi JSC aims to lead in sustainable development and, in
July 2022, established a Sustainable Development Policy document. This document outlines goals for
sustainable development management across environment, society, and governance up to 2025, and
we are implementing these plans in phases. We continuously increase investments in sustainable
development, planning to allocate about 1% of our total sales revenue in 2024 to improve these

into daily life.

In 2023, the company organized 2981 person/hours of training to
enhance employees' knowledge and practices in ESG, spreading the
culture of sustainable development to every household through
employees.

A

indicators.
(7]
(o]
@
z
Improving the level of sustainability culture S
LEVEL OF SUSTAINABILITY N
GOBI JSC — SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLICY /2022 - 2025/ CULTURE
o In order to foster a strong culture of sustainable development, we
86% 136% annually assess the level of our sustainable development culture
and plan for its improvement. In December 2023, a total of 855
employees were surveyed on their views regarding sustainable
50% development management.
| | . W
According to this study, the level of employee participation in -
improving awareness of sustainable development and its indicators S
hasincreased by 36% compared to the 2022 results. 5
2022 2023 =
&
We aim to promote our Mongolian cashmere globally by ensuring transparency and continuous Sustainable partnerships
improvement in sustainable development indicators through collaboration with stakeholders in our GOBI
supply chain. wosaoriax casmmene | asunoeveomrea  GODI JSC collaborates with prestigious domestic and international
organizations, continuously learning and sharing experiences. A .h
The policy focuses on operating responsibly with environmental and social consciousness, enhancing notable event in 2023 was our partnership with the Asian

Development Bank to implement a pilot project on sustainable
pasture management adapting herders to climate change. This
project, running until 2029, aims to:

productivity and value over the long term, and improving risk and opportunity management.
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 Improve herders'livelihoods
» Provide equal opportunities for male and female herders
« Establish sustainable pasture management

Accurate

Compliance Information Transparency * Help herders adapt to climate change collectively

After the successful completion of this project, the best practices, (&) |

results and methods created during the project will be shared with Z

relevant Mongolian government agencies. Thus, we are one step >

closerto creating a sustainable supply chain. o
”
=
=
<
m
=z
@
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Climate change refers to long-term changes in temperature and weather patterns. Since the 1800s,
human activity, including the burning of fossil fuels such as coal, oil, and gas, has been stated by the
United Nations as the main cause of this change.

The issue of climate change is very important in our country. According to a joint study by the World
Bank and the Asian Development Bank, the average temperature of the world will increase by 3.7% by
2090, while the average temperature of Mongolia will increase by 5.3%. This weather change will have
the worstimpact on the livestock sector, which is the largest employment sector in our country. Climate
change will increase the severity and frequency of droughts, flood hazards, extreme heat and water
shortages, accordingto sources.

Therefore, the countries of the world, and even companies, have made a commitment to minimize their
impact onthe environment within the framework of the 17 sustainable development goals of the United
Nations and have started to take certain bold steps.

SARYYPABIT 9 encronehr IPYV MIHAMHT YAHAPTA XERIEPIIH 3PK e
YCTTAX YCTTAX A3IMKMX 50JI0BCPOJIBIT Tarw GAMANBIT '-
MKHX

D3MKI XAHTAX BAVTYYSIAMXAAP
(4 :
-w |

XAHTAX
INH ACTHIH WHHOBALI BO/IOH TOrW BYC 11 3T XOT, 1 XAPHYLLIATATAH
6COIIT, 30KMCTO 3L BYTUMIIC 1 BARLIBIT WPTMIH X3PArN33"
X08/IMBPHIIT XOrKYYaaX BYYPYYIAX OPOAILL00T LMK

ﬁw g A A3MKUX

1 YYP AMBCTAJIbIH -I 4 DANAR 1 XYYPAW TA3PbIH 1 3HX TAIBAH, 1 XONKIHAH
T

BOPYAIBITHIIH IHTHCHIH 3KO CHCTEMMAT WYAAPTA Teneex
YP Heneer HBBLYIIr XAMIAAJIAX TYHWASMiAT
BATACTAX XAMFAASIAX ¥ BAXKYYN3X

< o

For Gobi JSC, in order to have a low negative impact on the environment and responsible use of natural
resources at all stages of production, we have created and continuously improved the "GREEN
SYSTEM" of Environmental Management, and have introduced ISO 14001:2015 Environmental
Management System standard into our operations.

We have made a 3-year plan to achieve the following environmental goals in our sustainable
development policy and are working to ensure its implementation.

v e it

Save energy Increase renewable Reduce CO, emissions
energy usage from operations

-20% +15% -10%

5 ] O

Save water and enhance Enhance waste 'Responsible"
water recycling recycling collection

+ _I O O/O + 3 O O/O Increase the production
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2025 ENVIRONMENTAL OBJECTIVES
AND 2023 ACHIEVEMENTS

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

M 2022 base level 1 2023 performance
—— 2025 objective

D
® TR

Improvement of clean and waste water
meter, reuse up to 10% of domestic and
industrial wastewater from the company
operations

16%

14%

12% 11% 12%
10%

8%

6%

0%
M 2022 base level 1 2023 performance
—— 2025 objective

w GREEN SPACE

Increase the percentage of green spaces
within the company's premises

40% 37%

35%
30% S
26.3%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

M 2022 base level W 2023 performance
—— 2025 objective

M) WASTE

Classify and record all waste, increasing the
percentage of recycled waste
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40%
35%
30%
25%

0,
20% 20%

15%
10%
5%

0.51% 0.51%

0% —_— [

M 2022 base level W 2023 performance
—— 2025 objective

=z RENEWABLE ENERGY

Integrate renewable energy into operations
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HIGHLIGHTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL

@ GOAL: Decrease energy consumption per product unit by 15% to 31.82 kWh ACTIVITIES IN 2023

l

ENERGY CONSUMPTION TOTAL ENERGY
PER CONSUMPTION

38
37
36

34
33

ANVdINOD dNO

ISO 14001:2015 Certification

We successfully maintained our I1ISO 14001:2015 Environmental
Management System certification with continuous improvements and
aninternational certification auditin 2023.

37.44

31.74
2; ENVIRONMENTAL AUDIT N
29 We achieved 99.2% compliance in an environmental audit assessing §
28 810 315 320 35 30 WS adherence to Mongolian environmental laws and standards across 8 =
B 2022 base level I 2023 performance H 2022 W 2023 categoriesand 117 criteria. N
—— 2025 objective &
In 2023, energy consumption per product Total energy consumption in 2023
unit decreased by 15.2% compared to increased by 4%, compared to 2022.
2022
TRAINING - 258 PERSON/HOURS
¢ 160 person/hours on "Proper Use of Chemicals" for employees
handling chemicals w
o
* 98 person/hours on "Energy Efficiency" for technical management gcg
and factory supervisors 9
<
@ GOAL: Reduce direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions from operations by 10% ﬁ

GAS EMISSIONS TOTAL GREENHOUSE GREEN SPACES
PER PRODUCT GAS EMISSIONS  3,200pcs
2 We planted 3000 elms and 200 willows as part of our environmental
o8 2778 compensation and outdoor green space initiatives.

1/

22.5 23.0 235 24.0 24.5 25.0

e 966 m.sq
Lawns were planted to increase the area of green facilities
throughoutthe company area.
/Gobi, Gobi-2, Goyo/

(72}
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B 2022 base level [¥ 20283 performance W 2022 W 2023 e 800 tul_ips -
2025 objective 800 tulips were planted in the office area.
Gas emissions per product unit Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas =
decreased by 14.6% emissions from company operations z
increased by 5%, g
ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING 0
9
Updated the environmental monitoring program, conducted sampling, E
@ @ and ensured compliance with standard indicators. <
=z
—
w
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

Improved waste management by updating the "Waste Program" and "Waste Regulation," collaborating
with "UnguNem"NGO to:

T I

* Conducted a baseline * Increased waste * Relocated the waste
waste study segregation to four disposal site
types

CHEMICAL MANAGEMENT

Installed 76 spill containment pallets in four factories and two departments, reducing the
environmental impact of chemical spills. Updated and approved the "Procedure for Ordering,
Purchasing, Transporting, Storing, Using, and Disposing of Hazardous Chemicals.”

ENERGY
Collaborated with CRD and Huawei to conduct studies and calculations for solar energy systems.

Developed and approved the "Energy Saving Regulation" under ISO 50001, planning to use solar energy
startingin 2024.

Resource S'A

Development W ~w»r

HUAWEI
SUSTAINABLE USE OF WATER
Fresh water used for When dyeing cashmere, water and Additionally, sludge dewatering
ventilation cooling is reused in chemical consumption were equipment was installed to
the cashmere washing reduced by eliminating the improve the operation of the
process at the primary factory. bleaching process and dyeing treatment plant.

directly on natural colors.
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AWARDED AS TOP ORGANIZATION FOR
SUSTAINABLE WATER USE

Our company takes measures to reduce water consumption every year. For example, measures such
as reusing clean water used for air conditioning cooling in the cashmere washing process of the
primary factory, installing water-saving faucets in the bathroom, and rejecting bleaching when dyeing
cashmere are being used more efficiently and economically.

Also, in 2020, a wastewater treatment facility was built and started to be used. In the future, we plan to
increase the capacity of the treatment facility and upgrade the equipment.

2023 was the year when the above activities we are implementing were evaluated.

For the first time in Mongolia, the project "Improving the ability to adapt to climate change and risk
management of rural people in Mongolia" ( ADAPT ) implemented by the Ministry of Environment and
Tourism and the Ministry of Food, Agriculture and Light Industry under the funding of the Mongolian
Sustainable Cashmere Platform and the Green Climate Fund under the United Nations Development
Program The "Sustainable Cashmere Day - 2023" event was organized, and during the event, "Gobi" JSC
was recognized as the best organization that introduced the proper use of water in production.

GOBI

e——
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RESPONSIBLE PRODUCTION

At Gobi JSC, we have seamlessly blended the traditional nomadic lifestyle of our people, which spans
hundreds of years, with modern production equipment and innovations to develop our products and
services. We promise our consumers quality, consistency, style, and sustainability.

L]

DESIGN

QUALITY AFFORDABILITY SUSTAINABILITY

In line with this commitment, we have been increasing the production volume of our environmentally
and socially responsible collections each year. We are confident that this will help us achieve our goal of
sustainable production.

We continuously introduce and utilize new technologies and methods to reduce the negative impact on

the environment. We also invest in updating our old technology with modern equipment that consumes
less energy and incurs lower costs.

Total Production of Responsible Collections

1,200,000 1‘ 3 60/0

1,000,000 1040030 In 2023, the production volume of responsible
800,000 ' 456,050 collectionsincreased by 36% compared to 2022.
600,000 335,936
400,000 o The share of responsible collections in total
200,000 511,648 productionincreased by 15% compared to 2022.

2022 2023
W Total number of responsible collections, production volume

@ Other collections, production volume

The positive environmental impact of the total responsible collection production
can be expressed as follows:

/In comparison with other products/

O 8;499,000 N ,Eér'ii\ Equivalent to the annual water

) consumption of 44.7
liters of water saved

N\ Saved equivalent to the annual

) 3)061 ,46326 —_—> @ energy consumption of

kWh of energy saved 790 households

Prevented the emission of
Equivalent to the annual

@ 4, O O O tons of CO, 5 CO, emissions of

or greenhouse gases into the 200 gasoline-powered cars
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ORGANIC COLLECTION

Mongolian cashmere has a unique advantage due to its four natural colors, unlike cashmere from other
countries. By leveraging this advantage, we offer products in our "Organic” collection that are free of any
dyes or bleaching agents, making them the most environmentally and human-friendly products.
Features of the Organic Collection:

« Nochemicals are used to dye the cashmere yarn, avoiding high water usage.
+ Savesenergy andreduces CO, emissions.

« Maintains the natural structure and quality of the cashmere yarn.

+ Natural colors evoke a warm feeling.

Production Volume of Organic Collection

[ T 300,000 279,753 1%
1] i 250,000
= 200000 198029 In 2023, the production volume of the
150,000 Organic Collection increased by 41%,
“ 100000 or 81,724 units, compared to 2022.
" 50,000
] :

o
| 2022 2023

The benefits of the Organic Collection in numbers
20./%  -19%  -208%  -20.6%

Reduction in Chemical savings Water savings Energy savings
CO, emissions

WHOLEGARMENT 3D COLLECTION

Seamless cashmere products differ from traditional knit products in that they have no seams. These
products are knitted entirely using Shima Seiki knitting machines according to fashion programming.
Features of the 3D Collection:

« Comfortable to wear. No seams means it doesn't chafe orirritate sensitive skin.

+ Environmentally friendly. Consumes less energy and water, with high productivity, making it
economically efficient.

« Reduces technological waste. There is no waste from pattern matching in this collection's
production.

« High durability. Uniform, high-quality knitting with a short production time, leading to long-lasting
wear.

Production Volume of Wholegarment Collection

0]

180,000 171,412 t 24%
150,000 137007 In 2023, the production volume of the
120,000 Wholegarment 3D Collection

90,000 increased by 24%, or 33,505 units,

60,000 comparedto2022.

30,000

W 2022 2023

The benefits of the Wholegarment Collection in numbers
@) 2 @)
-18.2% -12%

Energy savings Reduction in CO, emissions
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CASHMERE REBORN COLLECTION

In 2023, we introduced the "CashmeReborn" collection, presenting a new initiative for sustainable
production to our consumers. This collection uses technological residues from the production process
to create new products.

Features of the Cashmere Reborn Collection:

« Zero-waste production. Environmentally friendly with high economic value.
+ Reduces waterand energy consumption and CO, emissions.
* These products comeinunique colors and designs.

Production Volume of Cashmere Reborn Collection

6,000

5,000 4,885
' 4000 In 2023, 4,885 units of the Cashmere
Reborn Collection were produced and

3,000 .
I delivered to consumers.
' 2,000
1 1,000
.

2023

The benefits of the Cashmere Reborn Collection in numbers:
-13% -31%  -81%  -16%

Water savings Energy savings Reduction in Chemical savings
CO, emissions

RESPONSIBLE CASHMERE COLLECTION

Over the past three years, Gobi JSC has initiated and implemented the "Sustainable Cashmere Tri-
Partite Project" aimed at strengthening the relationship between production, herders, and science as
part of our social responsibility efforts.

As a result of the project, the quality of raw cashmere has improved, increasing herders' incomes and
addressing long-term ambitions to combat desertification. The Responsible Cashmere Collection,
made from cashmere acquired directly from herders involved in the project, will be available on the
European Union market fromthefirst quarter of 2024

Production Volume of Responsible Cashmere Collection

1,400

1 ,200 1,170

1,000 5
800

600
400
200

2023
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HR STATISTICS

Gobi JSC has divided its sustainable development policy into two main areas under "Social
Responsibility": Responsible Human Resource Management, which focuses internally, and Social
Responsibility, which focuses externally. Each area has specific objectives.

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
% )
SOCIAL POLICY OBJECTIVES 2025 Q02 i, - -
C. ‘3 16% // Factory (10,1 96) §
O Sales (286) e
>
1% 2

Employee
Turnover

Accident Frequency
(OSH policy )

Exploitation and
Forced Labor

20%

0

0

/I ) 7 6 5 subsidiary (16) ~4

BY YEARS OF SERVICES

g
4% 1%

EXECUTIVE TEAM

Management
team

&

A

@
Middle gg{; 8
1\ 1\ Pleasant Work Personal Growth management ’ E
Salaries and Environment and Development S
Incentives Work-Life Balance for Employees “
0-2year 3-5year 6-9year 10-19year 20-29year 30 year Fgg\;
Leading Salaries O ﬁ
and Incentives in the - 1}@
Industr
¥ AVERAGE AGE 35: BY AGE GROUP ADMINISTRATION
MALE w
Average age - 35
1\ Safe and Healthy Green 1\ Equal 2012 o)
Environment for Jobs Opportunities O FEMALE 0 0 0 0 =
GENERATION Z 18-22 Average age - 36 1% 61% 30% 8% >
Employees @ 9
<
VLN L A & SALES A G
= Aed MALE I GENERATION Y 23-38 @ MALE ln' w w 'n!
= |]|] T 37% Average age - 30
1981 FEMALE 3 I I TN
Average age - 34 2% 79% "7% 2%
Sustainable GENERATION X 39-54 ‘
Social
Investment 1965 FACTORY ° ) [ ) h
BABY BOOMERS 55-73 MALE i ' o2
FEMALE I Average age- 32 w w w w g é
0>
% 69% 1946 CEVALE |z | EN 5Z
nIIIDD Average age- 36 5% 54% 39% 2% 25
m —
Zz m
BY LOCATION: -
MONGOLIA - 99% INTERNATIONAL - 1%
HR Turnover
UB city (1,657) North America (1) EU (14) CN (1) 50% \
Darkhan (3) 20% 39.9% 40% (&) ]
30% -
,,,,, 20% S g
. o B
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RESPONSIBLE HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Gobi JSC is committed to maintaining stable employment and providing a favorable environment for

growth and development, ensuring equal participation, and upholding human rights. The company
focuses on the following areas:

1. Safeand Healthy Work Environment

2. Personal Growth and Development of Employees
3. Pleasant Work Environmentand Work-Life Balance
4. Industry-Leading Salaries and Incentives

1. SAFE AND HEALTHY WORK ENVIRONMENT
Objective: Safety First

Gobi JSC aims to ensure a safe and healthy work environment for its employees by adhering to the ISO
45001:2018 standard for Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems in its daily operations.

The company operates an emergency unit that provides free services combining traditional and
modern treatments, allowing employees to receive urgent care, preventive medical examinations, and
firstaid. This serviceis crucial for saving time, money, and ensuring the health of employees.

HOSPITAL
Daily Preventive
Year check-ups check-ups
2022 3,774 employees 300 employees
2023 3,251 employees 1,500 employees
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
OH Accident-Free Work Hours Training
2022 2,396,160 person-hours 1(3;?%3?;%2?2?;@;2@?
2023 2,547,200 person-hours 6,105 employees trained

(12.7 hours per employee)

78

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2. PERSONAL GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT OF EMPLOYEES

Objective: Implement Training Programs Based on Company Needs and Employees'
Personal and Career Plans

Gobi JSC has included the following in its Human Resource Policy: "Support employees in enhancing
their knowledge and skills, providing specialized training and development in the workplace to improve
adaptability and productivity through both on-the-job and classroom training." Training and
development activities are regulated by Gobi JSC's Training and Development Procedures.

Year Number of Trainings Number of Participants Training hour per person 2023
2022 246 trainings 8,662 trainings E;icilfsessional 5.2 person-hour
2023 316 trainings 5,618 trainings Sﬁngral 6.4 person-hour
Financial Literacy Training Gobi Trainer - 2023
The "Stock Savings" course for financial literacy The company has trained 27 internal trainers to

conduct 30 training sessions for 927 employees,
¢ 5times8hourclassroom sessionfor243employees  achieving a satisfaction rate of 92%.
e Online sessionfor 250 employees

* The "Savings Wealth Creator" event was organized  This allows for the internal dissemination of Gobi JSC's
three times, providing financial information to 210  culturethroughits trainers.
employees, resulting in 35 employees receiving direct
services and 18 opening savings accounts.

e — *,'-r_—px;ﬁ;

TP )

W
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3. PLEASANT WORK ENVIRONMENT
AND WORK-LIFE BALANCE

Objective: Happy Employees

Gobi JSC believes that the most critical factor influencing the success and growth of any organization
is the unity and happiness of its employees. Therefore, the company focuses on balancing work and
life, providing a discrimination-free environment, and ensuring employee satisfaction.

Flexible Working Hours

To prevent traffic congestion, balance work and rest time, and
implement child protection policies, Gobi JSC has been using a flexible
working hours system for over 500 office employees for three years.

Additionally, 24 knitwear seamstresses with infants and preschool
children work reduced hours.

Gobi Kids Kindergarten
The "Gobi's Little Ones" kindergarten has been operating continuously

since its opening in 2022, including during the summer, allowing
employees to work with peace of mind, knowing their children are in a
safe and healthy environment.

ks

4. INDUSTRY-LEADING SALARIES AND INCENTIVES

Objective: Merit-Based Recognition and Retention of Skilled Human Resources

One of the major long-term investments for the organization is to develop and maintain a skilled and
responsible workforce. Our organization is committed to providing equal opportunities for every
employee, ensuring fair and honest compensation and incentives, and creating an environment where
employees can live peacefully intheirhomeland.

2,200,000

2,021,000
2,000,000 1,936,000
In 2023, the average salary of male employees was
1,800,000 4% higher than that of female employees.

1,730,080 1,709,328

1,600,000 The average salary increase for male employees
was 16%, while for female employees, it was 13%.
1,400,000
1,200,000
1,000,000
2022 2023
Male employees M Female employees
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
/Sustainable Social Investment/

Objective: Increase Sustainable Social Investment Through Approved Projects and Achieve
Over 90% Execution

As an integral part of society, business organizations must take the initiative in addressing societal
issues, uniting others, and contributing to economic growth. Gobi JSC, as a leading manufacturerinthe
wool and cashmere sector, closely collaborates with the agricultural sector to implement various social
responsibility projectsin 2024.

o]
800 724,135,949 154%
700
600 In 2023, Gobi JSC invested 724 million MNT in social
500 469,589,471 responsibility projects, a 54% increase from the
400 previous year.

300
200

100
/million MNT/ 2022 2023

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AND EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT

Gobi JSC openedits first rural branch factory in Khentii province in 2023. The factory, specializing in the
highly skilled sewing process in the wool and cashmere sector, employs over 100 employees, with the
first phase employing over 50 employees in the sewing positions.

The factory aims to increase skilled labor in the wool and cashmere sector and support local
employment, reducing migration to the capital city and enhancing local development.

Gobi JSC invested over 400 million MNT in the construction, salaries, and operational costs of the
regional factory from October to December 2023.

» Warmest Gift Initiative: Gobi JSC donated cashmere products to 800 newborns at the Urgoo
Maternity and the National Center for Maternal and Child Health.

Happiness for Every Child: Gobi JSC provided gifts for 135 children from target groups for
Children's Day.

« Support for People with Disabilities - Eco-friendly Cloth Bags: Gobi JSC supports the "Eco-friendly
Cloth Bag Factory" run by people with disabilities by ordering cloth bags from this factory.

« LunarNew Year Greetings for Seniors: Gobi JSC presented gifts to 456 retirees for Lunar New Year.

Family, Child, and Youth Development Activities: Gobi JSC signed a memorandum of
understanding with the Family, Child, and Youth Development Department of Khan-Uul District to
train and develop its employees.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY PROJECT

SUSTAINABLE CASHMERE TRIPARTITE PROJECT

About 70.1% of Mongolia's total area is pastureland, with a carrying capacity of 86 million sheep.
However, as of 2022, the livestock number reached 120.7 million sheep, exceeding the carrying
capacity by over 30%. A 2019 study by the Bank of Mongolia indicates that if the usage form is
completely changed, more than half of the pastureland can be restored.

As of 2022, 300,000 livestock farmers live in Mongolia, with their livelihood directly depending on the
cashmereindustry. Accordingto a 2019 study, 62% of theirincome comes from goat cashmere.

Therefore, Gobi JSC has been implementing the "Sustainable Cashmere Tripartite Project” for three
years.

Initiated and funded by Gobi JSC in 2020, this project is being implemented in collaboration with the
Agricultural University and herders in Jinst soum of Bayankhongor province and Ikh-Uul soum of
Khuvsgul province until 2025. The project aims to strengthen the connection between production,
science, and herders and improve the genetic resources of livestock.

Key Activities of the Project:

Improving the genetic pool of livestock using elite breed bucks

Collecting cashmere samples, determining quality indicators, and continuously improving them
Producing traceable products from raw materials purchased directly from herders and delivering
themto consumers

Enhancing the health of livestock

* QOrganizingtraining and factory tours for herders.
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In2023, 125 million MNT was allocated to the project's funding, achieving a successfulimplementation
rate of 91% according to the plan. We began purchasing cashmere directly from the herders involved in
the project. Compared to non-project cashmere from the same region, the project cashmere showed a
1% reduction in fiber diameter and a 6% decrease in vegetable matter content, indicating positive
results.

We have started producing products using project cashmere and plan to market them in the European
Union in the first quarter of 2024. In line with our principle of promoting the culture of sustainable
development, we conducted a training session titled "Herders' Participation in Sustainable
Development"in November 2023 and distributed manuals to the project's herders.

Moving forward, we planto expand the project's activities by addressing social issues faced by herders,
organizing training programs, assisting herders in obtaining eco-certification, and collaborating with
the Asian Development Bank to implement the "Combating Pasture Degradation" project. This will
include developing a climate change adaptation program.

In 2023, the "Sustainable Cashmere Tripartite Project" was recognized
as the best project for sustainable development.

Specifically, the American Chamber of Commerce in Mongolia (AmCham Mongolia) held the "CSR
Awards 2023, where projects implemented under social responsibility were awarded in three
categories: INNOVATION, LEADERSHIP, and SUSTAINABILITY. Among the ten member organizations
nominated in the SUSTAINABILITY category, Gobi JSC's "Sustainable Cashmere Tripartite Project" won
the award.
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CASHMERE SECTOR

o In 2023, the goat population in Mongolia was
40% recorded at 24.6 million, which is a decrease of
3 million or 11% compared to the same period

the previous year.

In the same year, Mongolia produced
approximately 10.5 thousand tons of
cashmere, an increase of 0.3 thousand tons or
3% from the previous year, supplying 40% of the
world's raw cashmere.

The average price of cashmere in 2023 was

135,000 MNT, which is an 8% increase from the
previous year.

CASHMERE SECTOR STATISTICS FOR THE LAST 5 YEARS IN MONGOLIA

Number of goats in Mongolia Raw cashmere preparation in Mongolia
/million/ /thousand tonn/
300 293 15.0
28.0 27.7 27.6 12.0 11.8
265 10.9 gq 102 105
26.0 90
24.6
24.0 6.0
22.0 30
20.0 -
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Source: National Statistics Office Source: National Statistics Office
(Note: Calculation method applied)
Average price of raw material Cashmere sector
/thousand MNT/ /billion MNT/
150.0 135.0 1,500.0 1,417.5
127.5 1250 1,275.0
1200 1117 1,200.0 1.226.9 11942
90.0 900.0
795.3
67.3
60.0 600.0
30.0 300.0
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Source: Mongolian Woo/ and Cashmere Association /Calculated by average rate of raw material/
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND ACTIVITIES

The governance structure of Gobi JSC ensures the balance of interests among shareholders,
management, and other stakeholders, defining, implementing, and monitoring the company's
objectives and main activities.

As a publicly listed company, we continuously improve our governance system by learning from the
Company Law, Mongolia's corporate governance code, and international best practices, aiming to lead
in corporate governance within our country by adhering to relevant laws and regulations.
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The Board of Directors (BoD) is appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders and aims to protect
the interests of shareholders and investors, enhance capital returns and efficiency, oversee the
activities of executive management, and provide optimal direction. Three committees operate under
the BoD: the Nomination Committee, the Compensation Committee, and the Risk and Audit
Committee. Each committee implements policies, oversees management activities, evaluates results,
andreportstothe BoD.

An Internal Audit Dlvision operates under the Risk and Audit Committee to implement independent
internal controls company-wide. The BoD has a Board office composed of a Secretary and a Specialist.
The Secretariat organizes and prepares BoD and committee meetings, ensures transparency of public
information, develops governance policy documents, monitors their implementation, addresses
shareholder suggestions, and provides necessary information.
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GOVERNANCE POLICY

Long time
investments
Balancing
the interests ) .
of our Financial
stakeholders stability
Gobi JSC's
Governance
Structure
An
environment Business
of responsibility, continuity
fairness,
and ethics
Trust and
transparency

Gobi JSC aims to establish a fair, ethical governance system that ensures long-term investment,
financial stability, and business continuity. Our policy is based on trust, transparency, and
accountability, balancing the interests of all stakeholders.

This policy encompasses nine main areas, outlining our governance objectives and principles:

Governance Objectives

. Protect the interests of stakeholders.

. Establish an optimal BoD structure and organization.
. Ensure transparency of reporting and information.

. Operate with fairness and ethics.

. Develop a robust control system.

. Foster corporate culture.

. Establish a fair compensation system.

. Promote sustainable development.

. Continuously improve corporate governance.

OoNooobhwnN =

Governance Principles

® Ensure transparency.

Balance the interests of all stakeholders.
Comply with laws and regulations.

Maintain fairness and ethics.

Establish control and accountability systems.
Foster organizational culture.

Implement sustainable development principles.
Continuously improve.
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In 2023, we undertook several initiatives to strengthen and enhance corporate governance:

NEW AND UPDATED POLICIES APPROVED BY THE BoD

¢ Risk Management Policy Investor relations program

e Succession Policy for Authorized o Stakeholder Collaboration Management
Officials Plan

¢ BoD Member Nomination and » Procedures for dealing with conflicts
Selection Procedure of interest

e Operational Procedures for the e Remuneration policy

Three Committees of the BoD
e Management Agreement with the CEO

¢ Whistleblower System Operational
Procedure

ENHANCEMENTS IN GOVERNANCE ACTIVITIES

o Prepared and submitted two reports on the implementation of the Corporate Governance Code to
the Financial Regulatory Commission for review and verification.

» For the second consecutive year, we conducted a BONZ evaluation report and for the first time,
issued a Sustainable Development Report, disseminated through the Mongolian Stock Exchange
and the company's website.

o Improved the information content for the Annual Report and the company website according to the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code.

« The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the 2023 salary budget for BoD members.
» Implemented and regularly improved the whistleblower system.
» Organizedtwo shareholder factory visits toincrease shareholder engagement.

* Developed and disseminated a “Shareholder Handbook” to provide information about the
company.

« Enabled shareholders to check their registration, receive dividend balances, and access timely
company-related news and reports through the company website.

e Launched an English version of the company website to ensure transparency for international
investors.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT PLAN

In November 2023, Gobi JSC's BoD approved the “Stakeholder Engagement Plan” to achieve the
objectives set out in the governance policy. This plan emphasizes inclusivity, transparency, mutual
respect, accountability, and the pursuit of sustainable development goals across all projects and
operations.

Operational Principles of the Stakeholder Management Plan

Gobi JSC emphasizes the equal participation of all parties in its activities and projects, values the
transparency of its operations, embraces diversity, and engages in open and respectful dialogue with
society, the environment, and stakeholders. The company acts responsibly, considering the impact of

its actions andresults, and strives for the goal of sustainable development.

Stakeholder Engagement Objectives

* Establish trust and transparent relationships with residents near the factory, suppliers, herders,
customers, government agencies, research institutions, NGOs, investors, banks, and civil society

organizations.

« Strengthen the capabilities of suppliers and herders, fostering environmentally friendly, human
rights-respecting traditional practices, and active cooperation.

N2 Stakeholder

BENEFITS OF STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Benefits of Engagement

Communication
Methods

Develop meaningful interactive relationships to
create unique experiences and enhance satisfaction

Advertising, product
shows, surveys, virtual
meetings, factory tours,

open days, website

1. Consumers
(domestic, international,
online)
2. Investors

(shareholders, BoD)

Build trust through open communication,
transparent reporting, and active participation,
increasing long-term value

Performance reports,
individual/group meetings,
annual report meetings

3. Financial Institutions

Strengthen strategic partnerships to secure
financing and leverage expertise for business
expansion

Individual meetings,
website, seminars

4. Government Agencies

Collaborate on joint policies and projects to achieve
positive outcomes and comply with laws

Public meetings, website,
social media channels

S. Local Residents

Share transparent information and enhance
awareness of climate change and green
development

Public meetings,
discussions, website,
social media, open days
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6. Business Partners

Encourage innovation, share best practices, and
maintain healthy competition

Conferences, discussions,
knowledge exchange
tours

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT PLAN / 2023-2025/

Communication

7. Suppliers Foster sustainable partnerships, ensuring Training, factory tours,
(herders, cooperatives, responsible sourcing and fair trade practices open days, targeted

companies) discussions, capacity
building programs

8. Contractors Emphasize ethical practices, reduce environmental Individual discussions,

impact, and ensure responsible sourcing surveys, targeted

seminars, supplier

development programs

9. Civil Society Engage in policy development and collaborative Factory tours, themed

Organizations

efforts to address societal challenges

seminars, individual
meetings, joint projects

10. Media

Enhance brand visibility and influence public
perception through strategic communication

Interviews, broadcasts,
content creation,
articles in
newspapers/magazines,
website, public education
projects

11. Vulnerable Groups

Contribute to social integration, provide gender
equality opportunities, and improve information
accessibility

Targeted group
discussions, training,
project programs, unique
communication methods

92

Stakeholders Purpose and Cooperation Frequency
Local residents and Inform about « Install Gobi JSC Information Board Quarterly,
factory employees operations, collect at the local administrative office to Semi-

feedback, and build provide information on operations, annually
trust among employment, projects, public health,
stakeholders and safety regulations, and
feedback mechanisms
Suppliers (herders, Ensure raw material + Organize factory tours for Semi-
cooperatives, quality and educate on familiarization, training sessions on  annually,
companies) human rights and human rights and environmental Annually
environmental protection, and feedback
protection mechanisms
Contractors and Foster the * Discuss and approve contractor As
their employees understanding of fair management plans including fair needed
labor practices and labor and environmental
respect for human requirements, and feedback
rights mechanisms
Clients and Promote responsible + Organize open house days, set up Annually
consumers consumption and build customer information boards in
trust stores, and feedback mechanisms
Vulnerable groups Support social + Organize social impact activities, As
integration and collaborate with specialized schools ~ needed

practices for people
with disabilities and
other vulnerable groups
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INVESTOR RELATIONS PROGRAM

As part of Gobi JSC's governance policy aimed at protecting stakeholder interests and implementing
the corporate governance code, the Board of Directors approved the "Investor Relations Program" in
April 2023. The program outlines the following activities, which are actively being implemented:

* Develop and enhance channels for delivering information and collecting feedback from investors
and stakeholders.

 Provide accurate and timely financial and operational information without ambiguity.
» Improve investor knowledge about the capital market through guides addressing common issues.

* Organizefactory tours forinvestors to familiarize them with company operations.

Provide information in English and other necessary languages for foreign investors.

Report on theimplementation of the program.

SHAREHOLDER FACTORY TOURS

In 2023, as part of the Investor Relations Program, Gobi JSC organized "Shareholder Factory Visits"
twice, in April and September, allowing shareholders to familiarize themselves with company
operations and production processes firsthand. These visits are planned to continue at least twice
annually.

In September 2023, Gobi JSC published the "Shareholder
Guide" to improve investors' understanding of the capital
market, address common issues, and inform shareholders
about their rights and responsibilities. The guide is available

BbLLAA e through the Mongolian Stock Exchange and the company's
MLIAMOWAH website
P AGTTATA ‘
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
IMPLEMENTATION EVALUATION

Following the Financial Regulatory Commission's updated "Corporate Governance Code" in March
2022, Gobi JSC's Board of Directors assessed the code's implementation as of December 31,2023. The
assessment results were verified by the Financial Regulatory Commission.

GOBI JSC EVALUATION

2022.12.31 2023.12.31 ch
. Points anges
Ne Title - 9
Available Self-  Implementation FRC  Implementa ’
assessment Percentage  Points tion
Points Percentage
1. Board Structure and 12 10 83.3% 11 91.7% 8.4%
Organization
9 Board Committees
‘ and their Roles 10 9 90.0% 9 90.0% -
Transparency of
3. Reporting and 6 6 100.0% 6 100.0% -
Information
4 Audit and Control 6 6 100.0% 6 100.0% .
’ System ’
5. Risk Management 8 8 100.0% 8 100.0% -
Compensation of
6. Authorized Personnel 6 4 66.7% 6 100.0%  33.3%
7. Stakeholder Interests 8 6 75.0% 8 100.0% 25.0%
8. Company Culture 6 6 100.0% 6 100.0% -
9. Shareholder Rights 10 9 90.0% 10 100.0% 10.0%
Total 72 64 88.9% 70 97.2% 8.3%

According to the evaluation methodology, as of December 31,2023, Gobi JSC's "Corporate Governance
Code" implementation was rated 97.2%, showing an 8.3% improvement from the previous year and
indicating a stable and risk-free governance status. This places Gobi JSC at the top among publicly
traded companies in Mongolia.

Detailed governance evaluation reports can be accessed onthe MSE and the company's website.
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SHAREHOLDERS

34.00%

m Total number of shares
780,112,500

Tavan bogd
trade LLC*

Total number of
_ 4 shareholders

S 14.64% 23,989

Public (23,009)

Gobi JSC employees (978) /2023.12.31/

*Tavan Bogd Trade LLC was renamed Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC in January 2024.

SIGNIFICANT SHAREHOLDERS

2022.12.31 2023.12.31
SHAREHOLDER NAME Number of Ownership Number of Ownership
shares % shares %
Tavan Bogd Trade LLC 392,640,072 50.33% 400,140,072 51.29%
Hide Inter LLC 265,238,300 34.00% 265,238,300 34.00%

Note: A significant shareholder is an individual or entity holding 5% or more of the total voting shares issued by
the company.

Hide Inter LLCis an investment company operatingin Japan.

Tavan Bogd Trade LLC is the parent company of Tavan Bogd Group, established in 1997 to define
group-wide policies and strategies, develop new businesses, and provide management support to
subsidiaries. Tavan Bogd Group, with over 12,000 employees, is a leading group in Mongolia..

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PROGRAM

In June 2021, Gobi JSC officially launched the "Employee Share Ownership Program." As of July 20,
2021, the company granted shares to its employees, allowing them to have a stake in the wealth they
help create. This program aims to increase employee satisfaction and stability by enabling employees
to shareinthe company's success. Additionally, it seeks to enhance the participation of every employee
inthe company's growth.

As of December 31, 2023, 978 employees collectively own 532,700 shares, representing 0.07% of the

total shares. The Board of Directors and company management plan to continue implementing this
programregularly.
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INFORMATION OF

RELATED PARTIES
Ne COMPANY NAME Ne COMPANY NAME
1 Tavan Bogd Trade LLC 20  Tavan Bogd Residents LLC
2 Tavan Bogd International LLC 21 Mon Beef LLC
3 Tavan Bogd Distribution LLC 22  Tavan Bogd Finance NBFO LLC
4 Mongol Mashin Concern LLC 23  Tavan Bogd Capital UTsK LLC
5  TavanBogd LLC 24 Tavan Bogd Building Supply LLC
6  Airlink Mongolia LLC 25 Tavan Bogd Mon Meat LLC
7 Ulaanbaatar Guril LLC 26  Tavan Bogd Retirement Savings LLC
8  Juulchin LLC 27  Naran Credit NBFO LLC
9  Juulchin Duty Free JSC 28  Tavan Bogd Auto Marker LLC
10  Five Stars in Kharkhorin LLC 29  Ulaanbaatar Print LLC
11 Tavan Bogd Hot Pot LLC 30 TBMOLLC
12 Khan Palace LLC 31 KhanBank LLC
13 Sergelen Resort LLC 32 Zamine Services LLC
14  Tavan Bogd Foods LLC 33 DataBank LLC
15  Tavan Bogd Foods Pizza LLC 34 Temujin Complex LLC
16 Food Service Solutions LLC 35  Juulchin Tourism Corporation LLC
17  Tavan Bogd Solutions LLC 36 Utaagui Orchin LLC
18  Tavan Bogd Property LLC 37 R.E.DAgency LLC
19  Tavan Bogd House LLC 38 Tok Tok LLC

*Tavan Bogd Trade LLC was renamed Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC in January 2024.

INFORMATION OF ULTIMATE BENEFICIAL OWNER

Ownership percentage

\® Full Name Citizenshi
N P Individual Related parties

Tavan Bogd Trade LLC 51.29%

1 Tsagaach BAATARSAIKHAN  Mongolia 0.006%  TavanBogd LLC 0.40%
Tavan Bogd Capital LLC 0.04%

2 Hideo SAWADA Japan - Hide Inter LLC 34.00%
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The primary avenue for shareholders to exercise their rights at Gobi JSC is the Annual General Meeting
of the Shareholders, which acts as the company's highest governing authority.

2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

2023 Annual General Meeting of Gobi JSC took place at Great Hall of MNCCI on April 20, 2023 at 10:00
a.m.

Meeting attendance

The meeting had a quorum of 88.50%, with a total of 897 shareholders participating. Among them, 829
shareholders with 284,381,205 voting rights (36.45%) participated through pre-voting, and 68
shareholders with 406,030,659 voting rights (52.05%) participated in person on the day of the meeting,
totaling 690,411,864 voting rights.

Meeting agenda items

1. 2022 Operational and Financial Performance Report of Gobi JSC

Resolution of the Board of Directors not to distribute dividends from the 2022 financial results
Conclusion of the Board of Directors on the 2022 Operational and Financial Reports of the
company

2022 Work Report of the Board of Directors

Project to revise the salary levels of the Board members2023 Salary Budget of the Board of
Directors

Introduction of candidates for the Board of Directors

W N

No o s

Meeting resolutions

The shareholders attentively reviewed the reports pertaining to the aforementioned matters, engaged
in discussions, and expressed their questions and comments. The voting process was conducted by
ballot.

1. With an overwhelming majority vote of 99.99%, the board of directors affirmed that the executive
management team of Gobi JSC had effectively utilized their available resources to successfully
attainthe predetermined objectivesin 2022.

2. The proposaltorevise the salaries of the Board of Directors members was approved with a 99.98%
vote.

3. The 2023 salary budget forthe Board of Directors was approved with @ 99.99% vote.

4. Thefollowingindividuals were appointed for a 3-year term:

Independent Directors: D. Gerelmaa, D. Khurelbaatar, A. Jargalmaa, Takeshi Kambe
Regular Directors: Ts. Batarsaihan, D. Khulan, B. Amarsaihan, Ts. Orgilbold, Hideo Sawada

o b
EXPENSES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
TYPE OF THE EXPENSE 2022 2023 Changes %
Expenses of the annual general meeting 21,825 19,448 11%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Damba
GERELMAA

Chairwoman of the
Board, Member of the
Risk and Audit
Committee, Member
of the Nomination

PROFESSION
Economist

EDUCATION

1982-1988: Moscow Institute of Telecommmunications, Russia, Bachelor's
degree in Engineering Economics

2000-2003: Management Academy of the Government Implementing Agency
of Mongolia, Doctor of Management Science

WORK EXPERIENCE

1988-1992: Economist, Radio Television Technical Center

1992-1994: Lecturer, Business Administration Department, College of
Economic Development

1994-2003: Head of Department, Business Administration Department,
College of Economic Development

2003-2006: Accountant, Permanent Mission of Mongolia to the United
Nations, Embassy in Switzerland

-2006-2009: Vice President for Education and Research, School of Economic
Studies

Committee 2009-2015: Vice President for Education, School of Economic Studies
2015-present: Professor, Business Administration Department, School of
Economic Studies
2022-present: Professor, Graduate School, School of Economic Studies
2013-present. Board Member, Gobi JSC
SHAREHOLDING IN GOBI JSC
Does not hold shares.
= PROFESSION
¥ Accountant, Economist, Financial Specialist
o e EDUCATION
= 1979-1981: Bachelor's degree in Accounting, College of Commerce
1985-1989: Master's degree in Economics and Finance, Baikal State
‘% University, Russia (Irkutsk Institute of National Economy)
! WORK EXPERIENCE
1981-1984: National Bank, State Inspector Auditor
1990-2005: Director of Customer Service Department, Trade and
Dambiljav Development Bank
KHURELBAATAR p

Chairman of the
Nomination Committee,
Chairman of the
Remuneration
Committee

2005-2007: Deputy Director, Mongol Post Bank

2008-2016: Board Member, Gobi JSC

2007-2020: Deputy CEO, Trade and Development Bank

2020-2022: Head of the Board Secretariat, Trade and Development Bank
2022-present. Board Member, Gobi JSC

SHAREHOLDING IN GOBI JSC
4,800 shares (0.0006%)
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¢

Altangerel
JARGALMAA

Chairwoman of the
Risk and Audit
Committee,
Member of the
Remuneration
Committee

PROFESSION
Accountant

EDUCATION

2008-2012: Bachelor's degree in Accounting, Oxford Brookes University
2010-2012: ACCA Professional Level Exams (Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants)

2012-2015: Master's degree in Business Administration, University of Finance
and Economics

2013-2015: MBA in Global Management, Handong Global University

WORK EXPERIENCE

2012-2017: Lecturer, University of Finance and Economics

2013-2014: Accountant, Itezmon LLC

2014: Consultant, larudi Consulting LLC

2016-2018: Accountant, Bury Medved LLC

2015-present: Accountant, Dunge LLC

2017-present: Senior Lecturer and Program Director, GAPE (Global Academy
for Professional Education), ACCA

2019-present: Board Member, Gobi JSC

Shareholding in Gobi JSC
Does not hold shares.

Takeshi
KAMBE

Member of the
Remuneration
Committee

PROFESSION
Economist

EDUCATION
1978-1981: Bachelor's degree in Economics, Keio University, Japan
1981-1985: Master's degree in Economics, Keio University, Japan

WORK EXPERIENCE

1985-1986: HR Manager, Asahi Mutual Life Insurance, Japan

1986-1989: Administrative Manager of Nagano Branch, Sales Manager of
Kyoto Branch

1989-1992: Loan Specialist for the Economic Fund of Foreign Cooperation,
Japan Bank for International Cooperation, worked on projects in Bangladesh,
Sri Lanka, and Myanmar with ADB and the World Bank

1992-1995: Investment Manager of International Investment Department,
Asian Insurance Company

1995-1998: Investment Leader in Hong Kong

1999-2000: Chairman of the Management Council, Asian Insurance Joint
Venture Company

2000-2002: Credit and Research Manager, Asian Real Estate LLC

2002-2006: Manager responsible for commercial loans to small and medium
corporations, Asian Insurance Joint Venture Company

2006-present: Commercial Control Manager, Asian Insurance Joint Venture
Company

2008-present: Board Member, Gobi JSC

Shareholding in Gobi JSC
Does not hold shares.
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Tsagaach
BAATARSAIKHAN

CEO
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REGULAR BOARD MEMBERS

PROFESSION
Engineer

EDUCATION

1984-1988: Bachelor's degree in Telecommunications Engineering,
Polytechnic University of Mongolia

1989-1993: Bachelor's degree in Electronics Engineering, Tokyo University of
Communications, Japan

WORK EXPERIENCE

1993-1997: Executive Director, Altai Company, Mongolia-Japan Joint Venture
1997-present: President of Tavan Bogd Group, CEO of Tavan Bogd Trade LLC
2001-20083: Vice President, MIAT Company

2008-present: CEQ, Gobi JSC

2009-present: Board Member, Khan Bank

2007-present: Board Member, Gobi JSC

SHAREHOLDING IN GOBI JSC

Individual: 50,000 shares (0.006%)

Affiliated Entities:

Tavan Bogd Trade LLC: 400,140,072 shares (51.29%)
Tavan Bogd LLC: 3,140,239 shares (0.40%)

Tavan Bogd Capital LLC: 278,030 shares (0.04%)

Dashdavaa
KHULAN

Member of the
Risk and Audit
Committee

PROFESSION
International Banking and Finance Specialist

EDUCATION
1985-1990: Bachelor's degree in International Banking and Finance, Moscow
Financial Institute, Russia

WORK EXPERIENCE

1990-1992: Economist, Department of Foreign Economic Relations, Ministry
of Finance, Mongolia

1993-1997: Representative and Trade Manager, Gobi JSC, Tokyo Branch
1997-2000: Deputy Director, Tavan Bogd Trade LLC

2000-2002: Deputy Director, Trade and Development Bank

2003-2021: First Vice President, Tavan Bogd Group

2003-2021: Board Member, Khan Bank

2009-present: Honorary Consul of Luxembourg to Mongolia
2021-present: Vice Chairman of the Board, Khan Bank

2021-present: Chairman of the Board, Tavan Bogd Group

2007-present: Board Member, Gobi JSC

SHAREHOLDING IN GOBI JSC

Individual: 12,973,022 shares (1.66%)

Affiliated Entities:

Tavan Bogd Trade LLC: 400,140,072 shares (51.29%)
Tavan Bogd LLC: 3,140,239 shares (0.40%)

Tavan Bogd Capital LLC: 278,030 shares (0.04%)
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Baatarsaikhan
AMARSAIKHAN

Member of the
Remuneration Committee,
Chief Strategy and
Growth Officer

PROFESSION
Business Administration and Entrepreneurship

EDUCATION
2016-2019: Bachelor's degree in Business Administration and
Entrepreneurship, University of Westminster, UK

WORK EXPERIENCE

2019-2023: CEO, Gobi Cashmere Europe LLC

2022-present: CEO, Gobi Cashmere UK LLC

2022-present: Director of Strategy and Business Development, Tavan Bogd
Trade LLC

2022-present: Director of Strategy and Development, Gobi JSC
2023-present: Board Member, Gobi JSC

SHAREHOLDING IN GOBI JSC

Individual: 1,000 shares (0.0001%)

Affiliated Entities:

Tavan Bogd Trade LLC: 400,140,072 shares (51.29%)
Tavan Bogd LLC: 3,140,239 shares (0.40%)

Tavan Bogd Capital LLC: 278,030 shares (0.04%)

-

Tsogtgerel
ORGILBOLD

Member of the
Nomination Committee,
Deputy CEO & Executive

VP: Global Sales

PROFESSION
International Relations Specialist

EDUCATION
2011-2014: Bachelor's degree in International Relations, Temple University,
Japan

WORK EXPERIENCE

2014 Specialist in Charge of Free Zones, Ministry of Economic Development
2016: Business Development Manager, Tavan Bogd Trade LLC

2016-2017: CEQ, Juulchin Duty Free JSC

2017-2019: CEQ, Goyo LLC

2019-2021: Deputy Director of Operations, Gobi JSC

2021-present: Director, International Sales, Gobi JSC

2021-present: Board Member, Gobi JSC

SHAREHOLDING IN GOBI JSC

Individual: 1,000 shares (0.0001%)

Affiliated Entities:

Tavan Bogd Trade LLC: 400,140,072 shares (51.29%)
Tavan Bogd LLC: 3,140,239 shares (0.40%)

Tavan Bogd Capital LLC: 278,030 shares (0.04%)
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PROFESSION
Economist

EDUCATION
1973-1976: Germany, Mainz University, Economist, Bachelor

WORK EXPERIENCE
1980-1996: Founder and Director of International Tours Company
1996-1999: Owner of the Wotomac Hotel in Australia, Founder and Chairman
of the Board of Directors of Skymark Airlines
Hideo 1999-2001: President of H.I.S. Co,, Ltd.
SAWADA 2000: President of Skymark Co., Ltd.
2002: President of H.I.S. Travel Company
2003-2021: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Khan Bank
Since 2004: President of H.S. Securities LLC
Since 2009: Member of the Board of Directors of Gobi Corporation

SHAREHOLDING IN GOBI CORPORATION
Individual: Does not hold shares.

Legal entities with a common interest:

Hide Inter LLC: 265,238,300 shares (34.00%)

CHANGES IN THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As the terms of the members of the Board of Directors of Gobi Corporation expired at the regular
meeting of shareholders in 2023, the issue of appointing members to the Board was discussed at this
meeting. As aresult, independent director M. Bayar and regular director J. Oyunchimeg were dismissed
fromthe Board, and B. Amarsaikhan and Ts. Orgilbold were newly elected as regular board members.

SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS

According to the company's charter, the Board members of Gobi Corporation are elected by cumulative
voting at the shareholders' meeting for aterm of 3 years.

The Nomination Committee of the Board reviews the participation, work reports, and performance of
the Board members and makes decisions on whether to re-nominate the members or make changes in
the composition based onthe company's long-term strategic planning and business trends.

According to the “Procedure for Selecting and Nominating Board Members” of Gobi Corporation, if the
Nomination Committee decides that changes are needed in the composition of the Board, they
determine the number of regular and independent members to be newly nominated, and the additional
qualifications required. The selection process for independent members is conducted openly or from
candidates who participated in previous selections. Candidates are evaluated, discussed, and the list of
nomineesis approved.

In cases where a Board member is unable to perform their duties for an extended period, requests to be
dismissed, or passes away, an interim member is appointed by the Board until the next shareholders'
meeting, where the appointment is confirmed. The interim member must meet the requirements for an
independent member and will have all the rights and duties of a Board member.
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BOARD MEMBERS REMUNERATION

The Board members' compensation is determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Board and
proposed to the Shareholders' Meeting for approval. Gobi JSC's Board members receive a regular
monthly salary and attendance-based remuneration.

Attendance payThe 2023 salary budget presented below was approved at the AGM in April 2023.

FIXED SALARY

ATTENDANCE PAY

Board members' base salary
1,400,000 MNT

Per board meetings, committee

Additional pay for Board Chair meetings and AGM
1,000,000 MNT 650,000 MNT

Additional pay for Committee Chair
400,000 MNT

2023 REMUNERATION OF THE BoD

Board 2022 2023 Changes %
remuneration Performance Budget* Performance %8%%5/ %8%%5/
Fixed salary 128,400 161,200 161,200 25.5% 0.0%
Attendance pay 34,500 41,800 37,200 7.8% -11%
Additional pay 10,000 - - _ _
Social Insurance 22,513 30,450 25,485 132%  -16.3%
Total 195413 233,450 223,885 14.6% -4.1%

* The budget for Board members' 2023 compensation was approved at the AGM in April 2023.

REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES

At the year-end meeting of the Remuneration Committee, the principles for Board members'
compensation and incentives were determined as follows:

* Board members will not receive any performance-based incentives.

* Toencourage the participation and accountability of independent directors, their base salary will be
higherthanthat of regular directors.

* Regular directors who are part of the management team will not receive additional benefits as
Board members.

Following these principles, the base salary for independent directors will be discussed and decided at
the 2024 Annual Shareholders' Meeting.
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BOARD ACTIVITIES REPORT FOR 2023

MEETING INFORMATION

Discussed Meeting

Meeting Regular Irregular Suggestions Tasks Resolutions

items Decisions

Board meeting 6 10 59 51 19 25 41
Riskand audit 1 24 17 17 5 5
committee meeting

Nomination

committee meeting 2 ! 18 14 7 6 8
Remuneration 2 - 13 8 4 1 8
committee meeting

Total 14 11 114 90 47 37 49

Gobi JSC's Board and its committees held a total of 14 regular meetings and 11 extraordinary meetings in
2023. They actively participated, discussing 114 issues, making 90 decisions, and adopting 49 resolutions.
The Board provided 47 recommendations and 37 tasks to management and monitored their
implementation, achievinga 100% completionrate.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

N Name Committee Membership Bz?{gn’\g:ﬁggg (A:Cl\)/ln;gt]ilrtwtgee
ttendance

Nomination Committee Chairman,

2. D.Khurelbaatar Remuneration Committee Chairman 100% 100%

o Avarne  ReCAMCoTIUSS COnOnen o oo

4. Takeshi Kambe Remuneration Committee Member 100% 100%

5. Ts. Batarsaihan Nomination Committee Member 100% 100%
/until 2023, May/

6. D.Khulan Risk and Audit Committee Member 100% 100%

7. B.Amarsaikhan Remuneration Committee Member 100% 100%

8. Ts. Orgilbold Nomination Committee Member 100% 100%

9. Hideo Sawada - 100% -

Note: The two members residing in Japan received information about the regular and special Board meetings via email and
submitted their opinions by email, thus their attendance is considered as present.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

Regular Meetings: Board of Directors: once every two months (6 times a year), one of which is an
independent members meeting; Risk and Audit Committee: once per quarter (4 times a year); Nomination
Committee: once every six months (2 times a year); Remuneration Committee: once every six months (2
timesayear).

Irregular Meetings: Irregular meetings of the Board and committees can be convened at any time at the
initiative and requirement of the Board Chairman, members, CEO, or the Management team members.
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REPORT ON THE BOARD'S ACTIVITIES IN 2023

In 2023, the Board of Directors of Gobi Corporation organized 6 regular meetings and 10 special
meetings, discussing 59 issues, making 51 decisions, and passing 41 resolutions. They provided 19
recommendations and assigned 25 tasks to the management, closely monitoring their
implementation.

The Board approved the company's business plan at the beginning of the year and monitored its
implementation through monthly financial and performance reports. In April, the Board discussed and
approved the company's medium-term strategic plan. They also improved supervision and
management within the framework of ESG activities, reviewed reports on ESG three times, and
monitored the implementation of commitments related to sustainable development.

To improve corporate governance, the Board approved an "Investor Relations Program" in April and a
"Stakeholder Cooperation Management Plan" in November. They also updated the composition of the
three committees underthe Board and approved updated operating procedures.

One of the Board's important duties is to protect shareholders' interests and prevent conflicts of
interest. In November, the Board approved the "Conflict of Interest Transaction Procedure" and ensured
that all transactions within the company were conducted legally, reporting any conflict of interest
transactions to the Financial Regulatory Commission and the Mongolian Stock Exchange, and
informing the public.

In 2023, Gobi Corporation implemented step-by-step activities to improve the company's culture,
supported by the Board, which approved the necessary budget and focused on creating a comfortable
working environment and gradually increasing salaries.

= | m

MTWMZOZ
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BOARD EVALUATION AND MEMBER SELF-ASSESSMENT

Since 2015, Gobi JSC has conducted annual self-assessments of its Board of Directors (BoD) to
continually improve its operations. Starting in 2018, the company also began conducting self-
assessments of individual board members. These assessments are developed by the Nomination
Committee, based oninternational best practices and principles of corporate governance.

By conducting these annual assessments, the BoD can evaluate its performance, identify strengths
and areas forimprovement, and develop future plans to ensure continuous improvement.

BoD EVALUATION

The BoD evaluation consists of 30 questions divided into three groups: Composition of the BoD (4
questions), BoD Operations (16 questions), BoD and Governance (10 questions) Additionally, there is
one open-ended question.

_ 2022 2023
N Questions
Score % Score %
I Composition of the BoD (4 questions) 4.4 88% 4.2 84%
Il BoD Operations (16 questions) 45 90% 4.8 97%
1. Meetings 4.6 92% 4.7 94%
2. BoD Committees 4.3 85% 4.7 94%
3. BoD Chair 4.6 92% 4.9 98%
4. BoD Secretary 47 93% 5.0 100%
Il BoD and Governance (10 questions) 45 84% 4.6 93%
Overall Average 4.3 87% 4.6 94%
97% 93%
88% 90% . o o )
84% 84% In 2023, the BoD composition score decreased by 4% to 84%, while the
BoD operations score increased by 7% to 97%, and the BoD and
I I governance score increased by 9% to 93%. The overall average score for
the BoD in 2023 was 94%, up by 7% from the previous year.
Com osmon BoD BoD and

Operations Governance
W 2022 2023

BOARD MEMBER SELF-ASSESSMENT

The self-assessment for board members includes 15 questions related to their roles 89%
and participation, as well as one open-ended question about their initiatives and results 85%

related to BoD and company operations.

By conducting annual self-assessments, board members can identify their strengths

and weaknesses, define future areas of focus, and evaluate their own performance.

. . . . . . Average score of Board
These self-assessments also provide the Nomination Committee with a metric to  member self-assessment
assess the activities of board members. In 2023, the average self-assessment score for
board membersincreased by 4% from the previous year, reaching 89%.

PARTICIPATION OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS

At the beginning of each year, the independent directors of Gobi JSC's Board of Directors outline their focus
areas and plan their activities for the year. At the end of the year, they review and discuss the results of their
initiatives related to the company's and the board's activities. To enhance the participation of independent
directors, we have been holding an annual meeting specifically for them since 2022. In December 2023, the
independent directors convened, familiarized themselves with the production processes in detail, and
independently discussed issues related to the company's operations, providing suggestions for
improvements.

| 2022 2023
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COMMITTEE REPORTS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee under the Board of Directors is to ensure the succession
and stability of key positions, including the Board members, CEO, and other management team leaders.
The committee aims to define job descriptions, contract terms, and performance evaluations,
providing oversight and guidanceinthese areas.

In August 2023, the committee updated its operational procedures in accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code, adding responsibilities for handling information received through the
whistleblowing system related to key positions.

COMPOSITION

Chair: Members:

Independent member Independent member D.Gerelmaa
D.Khurelbaatar Regular member Ts.Orgilbold

Changes in Composition:

Following changes in the composition of the Board at the 2023 Shareholders' Meeting, Ts. Orgilbold
was appointed to the Nomination Committee in place of Ts. Baatarsaihan as per Board Resolution No.
17 dated May 18,2023.

2023 WORK REPORT

The Nomination Committee held two regular meetings in 2023, discussing 18 issues and making 14
decisions. The committee issued 7 recommendations and 6 tasks to relevant officials and monitored
theirimplementation, adopting 3 resolutions.

During the first meeting of the year, the committee identified and approved the candidates for the Board
of Directors to be elected at the annual Shareholders' Meeting in April, where the directors were elected
for a three-year term. The committee updated the terms of the management contract with the CEQ,
having the contract model approved by the Board and subsequently renewing the contract with the
CEO.

The committee conducted self-assessments of the Board and its members in 2023, reviewing the
results to improve the operations of the Board and its committees at the year-end meeting. As part of
their oversight responsibilities, they reviewed the semi-annual and annual reports of the management
team, assessed by the CEO, and provided recommendations for improvement. Two management
leaders were nominated and awarded the Board's recognition for their leadership and success based
ontheirannual reports and performance.

The committee addressed information related to key positions received through the whistle blowing

system, providing recommendations and tasks to relevant management officials and monitoring their
implementation.
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SUCCESSION POLICY FOR
AUTHORIZED OFFICIALS

The Nomination Committee, in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, developed a
succession policy for key positions, approved at the February 2023 Board meeting. This policy aims to
ensure the continuity and stability of key roles within Gobi JSC, identifying principles, objectives, and
measures to be taken in case of sudden changesinleadership.

Authorized Officials : Key positions include Board members, the CEO, deputy directors, department
heads, legal advisors, and the Board secretary as defined by the company's charter. These positions are
directly orindirectly involved in making official company decisions and agreements.

Authorized Officials

Composition ‘ ’ ‘ ’ ‘ ’
A 4 A 4 A 4
implementing the
Succession Policy Nomination committee, BoD [ CEO, HR Department J

Succession Policy Guidelines

e The Nomination Committee and the HR Department will align the requirements, knowledge, skills,
and criteria for key positions with internal and external market changes and the company's long-
term strategic plans.

o The committee and HR will develop and implement principles, criteria, succession plans, and skill
development plans for selecting key positions, ensuring continuous improvement.

e Gobi JSC will provide conditions for key position holders to work satisfactorily and with stability,
offering opportunities for career growth.

e The Board will maintain a ready pool of candidates for key positions to ensure continuity and

mitigate risks from sudden or unplanned changes in leadership, protecting shareholders' interests
and maintaining operational stability.

The policy outlines objectives, principles, and measures for succession planning and unexpected
events, with the Board and management ensuring its implementation.

109



ANNUAL REPORT 2023

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee, which operates under the Board of Directors (BoD), is to
assist the BoD in determining policies related to the salaries and incentives of Authorized Officials,
including BoD members, the CEO, and other management team leaders. The committee is also
responsible for formulating, monitoring, and overseeing company-wide salary and incentive policies,
plans,and programs.

In accordance with the company's governance code, the committee updated its operational
proceduresin August 2023.

COMPOSITION

Chair: Members:

Independent member A.Jargalmaa
Independent member Takeshi Kambe
Regular member B.Amarsaikhan

Independent member
D.Khurelbaatar

Changes in Committee Composition:

Following the company governance code principle that the chair of any committee under the BoD
should be an independent member and not the chair of the BoD, the BoD appointed D. Khurelbaatar, an
independent member, as the chair of the Remuneration Committee via Resolution No. 17 on May 18,
2023. Due to changes in the composition of the BoD following the shareholders' meeting in 2023, B.
Amarsaikhan was appointed as a member of the committee. Additionally, to increase the involvement
of independent members, the BoD appointed A. Jargalmaa as a committee member via Resolution No.
39 on December 22,2023.

2023 WORK REPORT

In 2023, the Remuneration Committee held two regular meetings, discussed 13 issues, and made eight
decisions. The committee provided four types of recommendations and one directive to relevant
officials and monitored theirimplementation. This year, the committee proposed a new salary scale for
BoD members, which was approved at the regular shareholders' meeting in April 2023. The 2023 BoD
salary budget was openly discussed and approved. In the mid-year meeting, the committee reviewed
the principles of salary, benefits, and incentives for BoD members, deciding that BoD members should
not receive any performance-based incentives and that independent members should have higher
base salaries than regular members to enhance responsibility and participation. Regular members
employed inthe management team should not receive additional benefits for their role on the BoD.

The committee defined and monitored the implementation of company-wide salary and incentive
policies, plans, and programs. They reviewed the results of organizational culture and employee
satisfaction surveys, oversaw the performance of salary and incentive schemes, and, in the final
meeting of the year, discussed and approved the 2024 salary and incentive budget and policy updates
withthe BoD.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee initially approved the salary and incentive policy in 2016 and revised it
according to the updated company governance code, with the revised policy approved by the BoD in
January 2024.

The policy aims to outline the principles of salary and incentives within Gobi JSC, establishing the
foundation for the salary and incentive system for Authorized Officials and all employees.

Gobi JSC's Remuneration Policy

The company maintains a balanced and effective salary and incentive system aligned with internal and
external market changes, long-term business strategy, growth, financial efficiency, and employee
productivity.

Remuneration Objectives

» Continuously improve the work environment to enable employees to develop skills, learn, grow, be
fairly compensated, and work stably, satisfied, and happily, thereby increasing the average score of
company culture surveys each year.

» Maintain a reasonable ratio between labor productivity and average salary growth, aligning with
inflation rates and real wage increases.

* Planthe company's salary and incentive expenses annually, in line with the company's efficiency.

Remuneration Principles
* Align withbusiness operations and strategic goals.
¢ Becompetitive inthe market.
 Ensureequality.
* Alignwithinflationrates and real wage increases.
* Befairandtransparent.
* Pursueinnovation and continuous improvement.

Remuneration Structure

Remuneration of authorized officials ‘

Employees Employees
Boabrd Bogtrd CEO Manti%;mem with fixed ith productivit Bonus
S Hiies salary fixed salary
lici

Define policies, L [ Remuneration committee ] [ HR Department J
procedures, and principles
Approve policies and [ Board J [ CEO J
principles
Dete(m/ne th¢ /eve/.of [ AGM J [ Board J { CEO J [ CEO J
salaries and incentives
Monitor and oversee [ AGM J [ Remuneration committee ] [ Remuneration committee ]
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RISK AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Risk and Audit Committee, operating under the BoD, is to oversee and guide the
effectiveness of the company's financial and economic control systems, ensure the effectiveness of
internal control, compliance, and risk management systems, and facilitate interaction with
independent auditors. This allows the BoD to implement risk management and control functions within
the company.

The committee updated its operational procedures in August 2023, according to the revised company
governance code, adding compliance management system oversight toits functions.

COMPOSITION

Chair: Members:

Independent member D.Gerelmaa

Independent member
Regular member D.Khulan

A.Jargalmaa

Changes in Committee Composition:

Following changes in the BoD composition after the 2023 shareholders' meeting, the BoD appointed A.
Jargalmaa as the chair and D. Gerelmaa as a member of the Risk and Audit Committee via Resolution
No.17onMay 18,2023.

2023 WORK REPORT

In 2023, the Risk and Audit Committee held four regular meetings and one extraordinary meeting,
discussing 24 issues, making 17 decisions, and passing five resolutions. The committee provided 17
recommendations and five directives to relevant officials, ensuring their implementation and
monitoring.

The committee reviewed quarterly internal audit department reports, semi-annual risk management
team reports, and annual compliance management reports, overseeing the results of internal audit
activities, risk management plans, and monitoring outcomes. They also reviewed and updated the "Risk
Management Implementation Procedure" and "Business Continuity Procedure" projects, providing
recommendations for approval by the CEO.

Additionally, the committee reviewed the 2022 financial statements, independent auditor's opinions,

and recommendations, ensuring compliance with recommendations and participating in the 2023
independent auditor selection process, resulting in the reappointment of KPMG Audit.

112

— ANNUAL REPORT 2023

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Our company has organized and improved its internal control system based on the "Three Lines of
Defense" model. This model is significant for various levels of management to execute their core
functions of planning, executing, reporting, monitoring, and regulating on a daily basis.

Board of Directors/ Risk and audit committee

Executive management @
<
@D
3
3 3 3 3 _ 2
S S 9 S = =
= = = = o =
a 3 a a 2 @
3 =
< =
First line of defense Second line of defense Third line of defense = o
Financial \ g 3
inancial contro s 8_
Safety Q@
@
Management ‘C“;?;?sl‘ Risk management Internal e
Supervision measures Quality Audit Division =
Inspection
Compliance
First Line of Defense: Second Line of Defense: Third Line of Defense:
Operational units implement Supporting operational units Internal control implemented by executive

daily control under executive
management's directives
andreportaccordingly.

implement additional daily
control under executive
management's directives

management is verified for effectiveness
and reported functionally to the Risk and
Audit Committee and administratively to

andreportaccordingly. executive management.

INTERNAL CONTROL POLICY

The Risk and Audit Committee developed and approved the internal control policy document at the BoD
meeting in October 2022. This policy aims to regulate, audit, and oversee the following aspects related
to effective company operations:

» Conduct operations efficiently incompliance with laws, regulations, and rules.

* Protectandensure the reliability of company assets.

¢ Prevent, detect, correct fraud, and errors.

* Ensure complete and accurate accounting records.

* Preparetimely, accurate, and realistic financial and operational information.

» Regularly monitorand managerisks.
Gobi JSC implements internal control through a hierarchy involving all employees, unit managers, the
executive management team, the internal audit department, the Risk and Audit Committee, the BoD,
andindependent auditors.

The policy document outlines the roles and responsibilities of these stakeholders, with the BoD
overseeing internal control activities through the Risk and Audit Committee.
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INTERNAL AUDIT DIVISION

OBJECTIVE

The objective of the internal audit is to protect and enhance the value of the organization by evaluating
the effectiveness of the company's governance processes, risk management, and internal control
efficiency, and by supporting their continuous improvement. In its operations, the department adheres
to the code of ethics, fundamental principles, and international standards of professional practice for
internal auditing established by the Institute of Internal Auditors.

STRUCTURE AND ORGANIZATION

The internal audit activities are carried out by the Internal Audit Division under the Risk and Audit
Committee, which reports to the Board of Directors. The Risk and Audit Committee is responsible for
approving the internal audit charter, strategic objectives, risk-based audit plan, and resource budget, as
well as appointing the head of the department and determining their salary and incentives. Additionally,
the committee monitors the implementation of the audit plan, oversees the operations, and ensures the
independence and objectivity of the internal audit function.

SCOPE OF ACTIVITIES

To achieve the company's goals and objectives, the internal audit ensures the quality performance of
assigned responsibilities by including decision-making, policy formulation, business and support
processes, compliance, and reporting activities.

2023 WORK REPORT

* |dentified 98 issues through assurance activities, determining potential risks and causes, and
provided recommendations for resolution.

« Evaluated the implementation of 76 recommendations across 9 packages through monitoring
activities, emphasizing the importance of resolving identified issues, reducing risks, and improving
outcomes.

e Provided consulting services based on management's suggestions, delivering necessary
recommendations and collaborating effectively.

 Assessed the effectiveness of the company's governance, internal control, and risk management
systems, offering recommendations and support to increase company value and ensure
continuous improvement.

» Conducted internal quality assurance reviews of the internal audit activities, identifying areas for
improvement and making necessary enhancements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Risk and Audit Committee initially approved the Risk Management Policy in 2018. This policy was
revised in line with the company's operational processes and scope and was reapproved at the Board
meetingin February 2023.

The purpose of this policy is to establish a risk management system consistent with Gobi JSC's general
principles and direction, define participant roles and responsibilities, ensure successful
implementation of risk management, monitor its execution, and continuously improve the principles,
rights, and responsibilities of the management team and units.

OBJECTIVE

The primary goal of risk management is to support the company's profitability and increase asset
returns by identifying, measuring, and controlling potential risks in line with the risk-return ratio. This
process is essential for maintaining the organization's continuous profitability and successfully
implementing and continuously improving a management system that aligns with the company's
general principles and values.

Implementing risk management allows continuous monitoring and improvement of the business risk
environment, enhances employee understanding and knowledge of risks, aids strategic decision-
making at the management level, supports business objectives, and helps prevent potential losses,
damages,andharm.

Principles of Risk Management

+ Creating and protecting value

+ Implementing appropriate governance structures
+ Beinganintegral part of organizational processes
+ Being part of decision-making

« Ensuringtransparency and involvement

« Fostering arisk-aware culture

« Ensuring continuous improvement

Risk Management Governance

Gobi JSC's risk management system is regulated through the "Three Lines of Defense" model,
comprising two main levels: governance and implementation.

One of the core objectives of the Board of Directors is to implement risk management governance and
unified oversight. Therefore, the risk management system within the company is established by the
Board and its Risk and Audit Committee. The Risk Management Team, appointed by the Executive
Director,is responsible forimplementing the risk management policy.

The Risk Manager is a member of the Risk Management Team, while unit leaders are designated as risk
owners according to the policy. The company's risk management team, composed of senior
management officials, is led by the Head of the Sustainable Development Department, who oversees
risk management on a quarterly basis in accordance with the risk acceptance criteria. The results are
reportedtothe Riskand Audit Committee.

115



ANNUAL REPORT 2023
Risk Management Structure and Organization

BOARD OF DIRECTORS/ RISK AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Organizational strategy and objectives, risk appetite

7\

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
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Business units implementing The Risk Management team Internal Audit Division
risk management that implements risk

management controls

e Responsible for the risk

Create and develop risk

Independently conduct risk

management policies and management analysis.
e Responsible for identifying, procedures, o Effectiveness of risk
assessing and reporting risks e Evaluation and methodology management
e Detection e Give recommendations
* Information/data for improvement and take
e Controls/Restrictions corrective measures if
necessary.

Acceptable Risk Tolerance

The acceptable risk tolerance defines the level of risk that is acceptable while conducting the
company's operations. This level is reviewed and updated annually by the Risk and Audit Committee.
The acceptable risk levels are determined based on the type of risk and are assessed using a heat
matrix method (qualitative) and risk measurement indicators (quantitative).

" Accept a medium level of risk for initiatives that the company
Strategic Risk e . . .
undertakes, recognizing the potential for inefficiency and
unproductiveness.

Strictly prohibit deliberate violations of mandatory laws, regulations,
Compliance Risk and company rules and procedures. This risk is not accepted under any
circumstances

Financial Risk: Accept a medium level of risk related to the company's financial stability

Operational Risk: Accept a low level of risk in the company's operational
activities.

Operational Risk: Information Technology Risk: Accept a very low level of risk.
Ethical Risk: Accept a very low level of risk. Intentional or deliberate
breaches of ethical standards are not accepted under any
circumstances.

Force Majeure Risk Acceptamedium level of risk for events arising from force majeure
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Business Continuity

In 2022, Gobi JSC developed and approved the "Business Continuity Policy" and the "Business
Continuity Procedure." The objective of these documents is to formulate measures for handling any
potential impacts on the company's business operations, including force majeure events and
pandemics, to quickly mitigate, recover,and ensure resource preparedness and operational continuity.

Gobi JSC aims to develop business continuity plans for key risks based on these documents.
Successful implementation of these plans requires integrating risk management with tolerance
capabilities, as business continuity planning and risk management are interconnected. The ISO 22301
Business Continuity Management process provides an understanding of how the business operates,
identifies potential points of failure, and determines areas forimprovement.

ISO 22301
Risk
management

COVID-19
pandemic

Contingency

Situations
/2020/

Force
majeure

Competitivity

Protection
for Business
Continuity

Impact Recovery
analysis strategy

BUSINESS
CONTINUITY

Testing and Developing
improvement aplan
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2023 WORK REPORT

Documentation

Gobi JSC has further strengthened and improved its risk management system by identifying the basis
for amending its organizational documents according to international best practices such as the
"ISO/IEC31000:2018" standard, the "Three Lines of Defense" model, and recommendations from
international professional organizations. As a result, we have made relevant improvements and
renewed our "Risk Management Policy" and "Risk Management Implementation Procedure”

Risk Management Team

In accordance with the revised risk management procedures, we have changed the frequency of risk
monitoring to twice a year. The risk management activities of the organization were discussed at the
Risk and Audit Committee meeting in the first quarter of 2023, and it was decided to report biannually.
The composition of the Risk Management Team was updated according to the organizational
structural changes and approved accordingly.

Implementation of the Risk Management System

In line with the organizational risk management calendar, all departments, factories, and units fully
implement the stages of the system, including identifying, evaluating, managing, monitoring, and
reporting potential risks, aiming to minimize the impact of risks.

Risk Appetite and Tolerance

This year, with the aim of maintaining and improving effective risk management across all units, the
organization has established measurement indicators for each registered risk and set relevant
tolerance threshold values based on advanced international methods and methodologies.

Promoting Risk Culture

In 2023, we organized general and methodological training on risk management for the "Risk
Management Team" and all "Risk Owners" to foster a culture of risk management. According to the
updated organizational risk management calendar, the Risk Management Team provided both on-site
and remote guidance on understanding and managing each risk in each department, factory, and unit,
supporting the effective execution of each stage of the risk management system.

To reinforce and disseminate knowledge about risk management among all employees, we added a
"Risk Management" section to the organization's intranet, providing information and
recommendations. This also includes a channel for reporting any risk-related conditions observed
during work or potential future risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

As of January 2023, there were 432 risks requiring management actions (239 risks remaining from the
2022 monitoring and 193 newly registered risks based on the 2023 risk assessment), with an average
score of 7, indicating a MEDIUM level. Throughout the reporting period, we aimed to reduce the average
risk scoretoaLOW level by theend of the year.

Impact Risk level Numbers %

Ver ) . Ven
ow | Low |medum| Hih | nign | |SERIGR 1 023%
1 2 3 4 5 High 53 12.27%
.| Veryhigh | 5 8 15 17 1 Medium 188 43.52%
= [ Migh 4 B2k 20 el ¥ Low 124 28.70%
= Medium 3 83 24 41 8 8 -
2 Low > B 22 | 17 | 12 | 6 il low 66 15.28%
Very low 1 66 28 27 7 4 432 100%

2023 Risk Monitoring Measures:
Average risk level New risks identified in the first half of the year's risk assessment
7 were added, resulting in a total of 554 registered risks by the end
of the fourth quarter of 2023. Of these, 246 risks were
consolidated into other risks, and 69 risks were completely
3 closed, reducing the total number of risks to 239, with an average

score of 3,indicatinga LOW level.

O N OV

CRISIS RISK ASSESSMENT

In 2023, a total of four crisis risk assessments were conducted at the organizational level, discussed by
the Risk Management Team:

1. Flood Riskin Summer: During the summer, the country faced flood risks, and Gobi JSC's facilities
were in high-risk areas. Relevant risk assessments were conducted, preventive measures were
implemented, and the risks were managed without any damage.

2. Criticism from PETA: In July, the animal rights organization PETA published an article criticizing
the combing process of goats, specifically targeting Mongolian wool and cashmere factories. The
potentialimpact on Gobi JSC was assessed and discussed.

3. Influenza and Viral Infections in China: As winter began, the number of influenza and viral
infections started increasing in China. In response, a risk assessment was conducted,
information was prepared, and shared with the Risk Management Team and Risk Owners.

4. Potential Energy Supply Disruption: In December 2023, during the peak energy demand of the
winter season, the risk of energy supply disruption from Russia to Mongolia was assessed.
Relevant departments, factories, and units implemented energy-saving measures to ensure plan
execution.
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COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT

Gobi JSC conducts its business activities adhering to principles of legality, fairness, responsibility,
transparency, and ethics. The company incorporates ethical compliance into its sustainable
development policy and objectives, which is managed through compliance management.
Implementing a compliance management system helps strengthen the trust and confidence of
employees, clients, and both domestic and international investors while preventing potential risks.

In April 2022, our company approved the Compliance Policy and Objectives, and in August 2022, we
updated our Code of Ethics. The Code of Ethics of Gobi JSC includes the following principles:

Respecting human
rights

Fairness in Labor
Relations and
Participation

Protecting Health
and Ensuring
Safety

Combating Corruption Zero Tolerance for

and Bribery Workplace Harassment
and Bullying
Protecting Protecting
Privacy Intellectual
Property

Ensuring
Information Safety

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2022

* Revised and approved the "Whistleblowing System Operations Procedure" and the "Ethics Code
Implementation Procedure.”

« Conducted 849 person-hours of training to increase awareness and understanding of the "Ethics
Code"andrelated procedures.

e Compliance managers and members of the Ethics Committee participated in training sessions to
enhance theirknowledge and skills.

e Updatedthe company's "Whistleblowing System.”
 Organized elections for the Ethics Committee and renewed the committee with 13 members.
* Distributedthe Ethics Code, Whistleblowing System introduction, and manuals to employees.

o Conducted compliance checks on atotal of 43 documents.
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WHISTLEBLOWING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

In 2022, Gobi JSC implemented a "Whistleblowing Management System" to detect ethical breaches
early, prevent potential risks, make improvements, and strengthen employee trust in the organization.
The whistleblowing system, accesible at https://info.gobi.mn/whistleblowing, was launched.

Depending on the scope of the information received through this system, the Board of Directors,
Nomination Committee, and Ethics Committee are responsible for detecting, resolving, preventing,
improving, and ensuring a fair system for any ethical violations. The Ethics Committee consists of
employees elected through an open election, representing various knowledge, skills, and experiences.
This approach promotes diversity and openness, bringing ethical standards closerto allemployees.
The company plans to continually improve and monitor the operations of the Ethics Committee and the
Whistleblowing System while regularly promoting ethical standards to allemployees.

Between November 2022 and December 2023, a total
of 74 whistleblowing reports were received and resolved.

The breakdown of the reports by receiving channel, type, and resolution is as follows:

8%

[l by Whistleblowing system [ by phone by written request

1. Recommendations and decisions issued by the Ethics Committee and Nomination Committee: 48  65%

2. Transferred to the relevant department or supervisor 10 14%
3. Referred to legal authorities 1 1%
4. Returned at the request of the whistleblower 4 5%
5. Returned due to insufficient evidence: 7 9%
6. Pending 4 7%
Total 74 100%
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QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Gobi JSC conducts quality inspections on 230 indicators across all stages from receiving raw materials
from herders to the final product. The company strictly adheres to technological standards and
produces products that meet both national and international standards, delivering them to consumers
through domestic, international, and online channels.

To meet consumer needs, Gobi JSC implements a quality management system at every stage of
production, adhering to 85 national MNS standards, 18 company policies, 6 regulations, 152
procedures, technological protocols, 47 work instructions, and 14 manuals, ensuring 100% quality
control. The company continuously improves its quality management system.

A 568
O
= In May 2023, Gobi JSC underwent an ISO 9001:2015 certification audit
and received the certification, confirming that the company delivers
products and services that meet standard requirements to consumers.
CNI -
|

Gobi JSC's primary factory successfully participated in the “Sustainable Fibre
Alliance” (SFA) certification for “Good Cashmere Processing Practices” for the
g thirdtimein2023.

i This certification demonstrates that the company follows sustainable methods
—— —— in human resource management, occupational safety, and environmental
friendliness during the sorting, washing, and combing of raw materials.

e ot B Gobi JSC successfully participated in the MNS 6926:2021 “Sustainable Textile
FIUE TR e g e . ” . . . . . . .

e Production” certification, which establishes the basic principles and

- requirements for sustainable textile production, including evaluation and

e certification.
This confirms that Gobi JSC operates with environmental sustainability, proper

governance, human-friendliness, social responsibility, and an appropriate
management system throughout its production stages.
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Gobi JSC first received the “Mongolian noble fibre”
certification for combed cashmere and knitwear productsin
2019. In 2023, this certification was extended for an
additional three years and expanded to include woven
products.

Gobi JSC's spun yarn met the requirements of the
"STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX" certification, awarded by
the Zurich-based OEKO-TEX 100 organization. This
internationally recognized quality certification was renewed
forthe fourthtimein2023.

This certification confirms that Gobi JSC's spun yarn is free
from harmful chemicals and safe for human health.

The company's knitted and sewn woven products in colors
N-1, 02, 03, 57 were previously certified as meeting the
standards for organic agricultural products. In 2023, the
certification was extended for another two years and now
includes an additional 1000 colors. This certification is
awarded by the Department of Agriculture.

Gobi JSC's raw material warehouse met the criteria set by
the Agricultural Exchange and successfully extended its
ACCREDITATION CERTIFICATE from 07/21/2023 to
07/21/2026.
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MAJOR CHANGES IN THE COMPANY'S
STRUCTURE AND ORGANIZATION

Senior Management:

¢ The position of First Deputy Director in charge of Sales has been divided into two separate roles: one
for Foreign Sales and the other for Domestic and Export Sales.
¢ The departments of Foreign Marketing, Content Development, and Sustainable Development have
been transferred under the direct management of the Director of Strategy and Growth.
e The Procurement Department has been transferred under the direct management of the Deputy
Directorin charge of Finance.
Domestic Sales Department:

e Established a new Domestic Customer Operations Department.

Export Sales Department:
e Upgraded the Export Sales Department to an Export Sales Division.

Foreign Sales Department:
¢ The HR Department for Foreign Sales has beenrestructured into an overall Sales HR Department.

Human Resources Department:

e Established anew Food Production Department.
e Transferred the Administration and Operations Department under the Human Resources
Department.

GOBI CORPORATION STRUCTURE

GOBI JSC
Subsidiary

\
| \ \ \ ] l

‘ Gobi Cashmere ] Gobi Cashmere ] ‘ Gobi Cashmere ] ‘ Gobi Cashmere ] ‘ Goyo ‘ Gobi Cashmere ]
G

Europe LLC Inner Mongolia LL America LLC UK LLC Cashmere LLC Kazakhstan LLC

Branch Gobi Australia

CHANGES IN THE STRUCTURE OF GOBI GROUP

As of the Board of Directors' resolution on August 11,2023, a subsidiary was established in the Republic
of Kazakhstan.

SUBSIDIARY AND BRANCH INFORMATION

Ne Subsidiary Name Location Activity

1 Gobi Cashmere Europe LLC Schoenefeld, Germany Trade Services

2 Gobi Cashmere Inner Mongolia LLC Ereen, China Trade Services

3 Gobi Cashmere America LLC Los Angeles, USA Trade Services

4 Gobi Cashmere UK LLC London, UK Trade Services

5 Gobi Cashmere Kazakhstan LLC Almaty, Kazakhstan Trade Services

6 Goyo Cashmere LLC Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia Production, Trade Services
N2 Branch name Location Activity

1 Gobi Australia Sydney, Australia Trade Services
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MANEGEMENT TEAM

BAATARSAIKHAN
Tsagaach
CEO

Years of service
at Gobi: 17 years

Shareholding in Gobi

Corp: 50,000 shares (0.006%)

Related parties: 51.73%

ARIUNAA

Batchuluun

Deputy CEO &
Executive VP:
/Domestic, ODM Sales /

Years of service
at Gobi: 11 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: 1,000 shares
(0.0007%)

AMARSAIKHAN
Baatarsaikhan
Chief Strategy &
Growth Officer

Years of service
at Gobi: 4 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: 1,000 shares
(0.0007%)

Related parties: 51.73%

BOLORMAA

Batsuuri

Executive VP and
Deputy director:
Design and production

Years of service at
Gobi: 17 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: 1,000 shares
(0.0007%)
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ORGILBOLD
Tsogtgerel
Deputy CEO &
Executive VP:
Global Sales

Years of service
at Gobi: 4 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: None

Related parties: 51.73%

ENKHMANDAKH
Batsukh

Deputy CEO &
Executive VP:
/Design, production,
Support/

Years of service
at Gobi: 2 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: None

MISHEEL
Otgontugs
Executive VP and
Deputy director:
Global sales

Years of service
at Gobi: 7 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: 1,000 shares
(0.0007%)

SOYOLMAA
Demberel
Chief HR Officer

Years of service
at Gobi: 2years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: None
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ANUDARI
Gantumur
ODM Sales Director

Years of service
at Gobi: 7 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: : 800 shares
(0.0007%)

SODGEREL
Duikherjav

Financial Accounting
Director

Years of service
at Gobi: 13 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: : 800 shares
(0.0007%)

ERDENE
Bayaraa
Chief Technology Officer

Years of service
at Gobi: 4 months

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: None

SELENGE
Munkhbat
Board Secretary

Years of service
at Gobi: 7 years

Shareholding in Gobi Corp:

500 shares (0.0000%)
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TSENGEL
Oyunchimeg

Design Development
Director

Years of service
at Gobi: 8 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: : 800 shares
(0.0007%)

UDVAL

Ariuntulga

Finance Management
Director

Years of service
at Gobi: 8 months

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: : None

TSASCHIKHER
Tsogtbayar
Chief Legal Officer

Years of service
at Gobi: 10 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: 1,000 shares
(0.0007%)

URANCHIMEG
Tseveldorj
Head of Internal
Audit Division

Years of service
at Gobi: 12 years

Shareholding in Gobi
Corp: None
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REMUNERATION OF MANAGEMENT TEAM

CEO's Salary and Incentives

The CEOQ oversees the executive management of the company. Their salary and incentives are tied to
the company's financial and operational performance, job performance, and skill assessments. The
Board's Salary and Compensation Committee determines the amount and principles of these
compensations.

The Nomination Committee, which reports to the Board, drafts the Management Agreement outlining
the CEO's duties and responsibilities, which the Board approves. In August 2023, the Board renewed the
Management Agreement with the CEO.

Management Team Salaries and Incentives

he CEO determines the salaries and incentives for other management team members within the
framework of the company's Salary and Incentives Policy. However, the Board, based on
recommendations from the relevant committees, sets the salaries for the Board Secretary and the
Head of Internal Audit. If any management team member also serves as a Board member, they receive
only the Board member's salary and do not get additional compensations or incentives.

Salary Structure:

e R

Base salary

Performance-based Bonus (KPI) Depends on the

* Sales and profit metrics position functions.
¢ Employee's planned performance
* Staff turnover in the department

Incentive Principles

According to Gobi Corporation's Salary and Incentives Policy and the Performance Incentive Payment
Procedure, bonuses are awarded based on financial performance and achieving specific benchmarks
inthe annual business plan, such as sales execution and net profit performance.

132

CEO Performance Evaluation Indicators

Evaluation Criteria

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

A
Annual Business Skill Evaluation
Plan Fulfillment Results
Weighting
A

DO s

Objective
A
Increase Operational and | In((:jreaie
efficiency Process Improvement eaSke”rlss P
Measurement
A

Measured by the
implementation of plans related
to increasing company
efficiency. This includes:

- Increasing sales revenue,

- Increasing profit,

- Reducing operational costs and
ensuring proper expenditure,

- Improving asset efficiency and
inventory turnover, etc.

Measured by the implementation of
plans related to improving company
operations and processes. This
includes:

- Ensuring stable production operations
and meeting plans,

- Improving product quality metrics,

- Improving operational processes and
increasing productivity,

- Implementing risk management
systems,

- Meeting management system standards,

- Promoting sustainable development
activities,

- Ensuring workplace health and safety,

- Improving organizational culture,

- Creating a comfortable working
environment,

- Developing and empowering skilled
employees,

- Stabilizing human resources and
reducing turnover, etc.

Measured by
skill
assessment
results.

P s T

A

Weighting

For the management team, performance evaluation indicators and their respective weighting and
measurements vary according to their specific job functions.

SALARIES AND INCENTIVES FOR 2023

/thousand MNT/

Management Team Compensation 2022 oH 2023 oH Bepunent %
Salary 1,282,495 1,755,628 36.9%
Bonus 98,056 56,000 -42.9%
Social Insurance 186,153 244,329 31.3%
Total 1,566,703 2,055,957 31.2%
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COMPANY'’S STOCK MARKET
PERFORMANCE

The market value of Gobi JSC, as of December 31, 2023, amounted to 213,430,978,875 MNT. The
annual trading data is presented below graphically:

Stock price Trading volume
IVINT/ | * 7,500,000
350

8,000,000 400
6,000,000 350
4,000,000 300
2,000,000 250
1,000,000 200
600,000 150
400,000 100
200,000 50

ER: | SHTE SRTY TI, MU 5 ST CoP L St i [ ST

/pcs/ 1/2 2/2 3/2 4/2 5/2 6/2 7/2 8/2 9/2 10/2 1172 1272

mmmm  Trading volume

/Ter/

Price per share

52-WEEK TRADING RANGE

INDICATOR 2022 2023 Growth/ decline %
TOTAL NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES 780,112,500 780,112,500 -
STOCK PRICE /MNT/

Closing price 248.32 273.59
Highest price 311.50 350.00
Lowest price 24273 240.69 -0.8%
Average price 27219 263.90 -3.0%
TRADING VOLUME
Highest /per day/ 1,234,986 7,500,000
Lowest / per day / 392 179 -54.3%
Average / per day / 30,702 62,704
Total 7,552,604 15,676,081
TRADING PRICE /MNT/
Highest /per day/ 336,411,123 2,625,000,000
Lowest / per day / 107,018 52,805 -50.7%
Average / per day / 8,519,435 18,985,172
Total 2,095,780,903 4,746,292,927
MARKET CAPITALIZATION /MNT/ 193,717,536,000  213,430,978,875
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DIVIDEND

Our company is committed to maintaining its prominent position in the domestic market by enhancing
its market share and expanding into foreign and online trade markets. We will continuously update our
technigues and technologies to improve product quality and expand our operations. We remain
dedicated to increasing the return on investment for our shareholders and distributing dividends in
accordance with our regular distribution policy.

Chapter 2 of the "Dividend Regulations," approved by the Board of Directors in 2018, outlines our
dividend policy as follows.

Two. DIVIDEND POLICY

2.1 Thecompany's dividend policy is aligned with its operations and strategic policies.

2.2 The company will work with the policy of properly managing the capital invested by shareholders
and keeping the number of dividends at an appropriate level.

2.3 The Company will distribute dividends if the conditions for dividend distribution specified in Article
47 ofthe Company Law and Article 8.12 of the Company's Articles of Association are met.

2.4 The amount of dividend to be distributed per share shall be determined by the board of directors
based on the amount of net profit after tax for the current financial year, the Company's short and
medium-term strategic plans, and investment needs.

2.5 Apolicy of not reducing the amount of dividends will be adopted if the net profit earned in the given
financial year does not decrease from the previous year.

2.6 Dividends will be paidin cash.

2.7 Afund for social and cultural events and industrial development can be established from the profits
remaining after the distribution of dividends. The board of directors will decide on the foundation of the
fund.
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DIVIDEND INFORMATION

Total number  Dividend Total dividend
Year of issued per share (MNT) DIVIDEND
shares (MNT) DISTRIBUTION
1996 7,801,125 61.00 475,868,625
1997 7,801,125 153.80 1,199,813,025
1998 7,801,125 150.00 1,170,168,750

Gobi JSC was privatized in 2007, we are
1999 7,801,125 166.00 1,294,986,750 distributing previously announced
dividends at our company's office.

2000 7,801,125 100.00 780,112,500

2001 7,801,125 20.16 157,270,680

2005 7,801,125 60.00 468,067,500

2006 7,801,125 60.00 468,067,500

2010 7,801,125 100.00 780,112,500

2011 7,801,125 100.00 780,112,500

2012 7801125 12500 975140625 100% of the dividends of these years were

2013 7,801,125 130.00 1,014,146,250 distributed by transferring them to the
securities deposit accounts of the

2014 /7,801,125 140.00 1,092,157,500 shareholders through the Mongolian

2015 7801125  140.00 102,157,500 ~  CentralSecurities Depository.

2016 7,801,125 200.00 1,560,225,000

2017 7,801,125 220.00 1,716,247,500

2018 780,112,500 6.80 5,304,765,000

2019 780,112,500 - -

2020 780,112,500 - -

2021 780,112,500 R _ No dividends were distributed.

2022 780,112,500 - -

2023 780,112,500 - -

BOARD RESOLUTION ON NON-DISTRIBUTION OF DIVIDENDS
FOR THE 2023 FINANCIAL RESULTS

In a meeting held on January 26, 2023, the Board of Directors of Gobi JSC made a resolution not to
distribute dividends for the financial year ending December 31, 2023. The financial results of 2023 did
not meet the criteria specified in the article 2.3 of the company's dividend policy, and the necessary
financial ratios were not attained. Consequently, it was decided to withhold the distribution of
dividends.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Risk and Audit Committee of Gobi JSC establishes the independence, qualifications, work
experience, and other criteria for independent auditors. It evaluates whether these criteria are met, and
makes recommendations to the Board of Directors on the rights, duties, and responsibilities of
independent auditors, the amount of fees to be paid to auditors, and other contractual terms, which are
then approved by the Board. Additionally, it oversees the activities of the independent auditor and
monitors and guides the implementation of recommendations provided to management.

KPMG Audit LLC conducted an independent audit of the financial statements of Gobi JSC for the year
ending December 31, 2023. The contract amount was 81,000 USD, equivalent to 280,328,040 MNT.
KPMG Audit LLC is one of the four largest international auditing firms and was registered with the
Financial Regulatory Commission as an auditing company providing services in the securities market
in2013.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Chairwoman

Members of Board of Directors

Independent members of Board Directors

Secretary

Principal Bankers

Registered address

Independent Auditors

D. Gerelmaa

Ts. Baatarsaikhan
D. Khulan

B. Amarsaikhan
Ts. Orgilbold
Hideo Sawada

Kambe Takeshi
D. Khurelbaatar
A. Jargalmaa

M. Selenge

Khan Bank of Mongolia

Golomt Bank of Mongolia

Xac Bank of Mongolia

Trade and Development Bank of Mongolia
Arig Bank

The Bank of America Corporation
Deutsche Bank AG

China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial street, 3rd khoroo, Khan-Uul District,

Ulaanbaatar-17062, Mongolia

KPMG AUDIT LLC

#602, Blue Sky Tower, Peace Avenue 17,
1st khoroo, Sukhbaatar District,
Ulaanbaatar 14240, Mongolia
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Management's Respomibility Siatement

Cbs F50s ramapomerd is sespon bl for dhe prepanition of the cossclidsied frrcial datgrmmis

The consoliduted Bnancial sl of (obi 150 and it subaidianies {ihe “Groep™) have been prepared g comply
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the finarcial performarce and cash Mo for the year thn. ondiod oo thar dale.

The Group's masagemer has respossibiliny for emuring that e Croep korps proper accountieg reconds which
dischon wath peaserable socuracy e firancil postion of the Group and which erble thesi & crsone thai the
cinteil ilaled Fnascial sisfemenss comply with the regquerersets s6 oul @ Mote 1 1o Moic 4 themmo.
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independont Auditors' Report
o The Shareholders and Board of Dinectors of Gobi loist Stock Company

Dhpinian

‘Wi hanve audited 1 he consolciated Tinancial vistements of Gob 15C [the “Parent Comnpany™) aed s
spkidiaries (Sopether the “Growp”™], which comprioe the consolidated staement of finsncial position
as @i 31 December 2023, the conichdmed satements of profil or lom and other comprehenshve
incame, chanpes in equity and caah flows for the year then ended, and notes, compriiing materisl
accounting polickes asd other esplanatory indormation.

In our opinicn, the accempanying consolidabed financial iaspments ghve & troe and Bir view of the
congalidated inancial podition of the Group 34 9 51 December 2023, and of iix cosackdaied financial
ptrfarmance and s consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standareds as Biued by the Inteeational Actounting Standards Boand [CIFRS Accountieg
Sandards®].

Buatis Re Opiamiesn

e conducted cur audit in sccondince with Internationsl Standards oo Audfting (F158s") Char
responsibiities. under fhoae wtandaeds are further described in the Auditors’ Reipaveibaltun for the
Audit of the Consoliolaned Financis Seanemeals wection of our repa. ¥We ane independent of the Group
in pecordance with Mermational Ethic Sandards Board for Accossstants Inbernational Code of Eihics
fior Professional Accountamts (incleding ersational edepmndence Stendseds) (TESRA Code™)
eopEther with the ethical reguirements that are relevant 1o our audit of the coesoldated Tinancial
statements in Mongolia, and we have fulfilled our other mhical responyibiities is stcordance with
these requirements and the IESBA Code. We Bellewn that the audit evidence we hawe obiained s
ssificien and appropriate to provide a bask for our opision.

Eiry fusSs Magters

Kiry audit maten afe those matben that, in our professional jedgment, were of most significance in
oupr audit of the corsolidated financial statesnesis of the curnent pericd. These matlers were sddressed
in the comest of our sudit of the essdolidmed financial stabements as a whole, and in foarming our
epinion thereon, and we do not provide 2 separate opinios o Khess matien
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Kry Audit Matiers, Contisssd

Epvenue recognition

Eafier 1o Mote T5.1 10 the casclidated finandial statements. and the accounting policies in Note 212,

fusditing there i 5 pretumed fraud risk
relating 10 revesse peoognition. We
harve debermined this, to apply io ihe
porasTence of the Prvishist Bscaute of
the presvere masagemaent may feel 10
achiess the planned rrdohd

Due 1o theie Gcion, we kv
condidered revenye recognition lo be a
ki madit matier relevant o cur aud®
of the ronsolidated Anancil
| statemerris.

Under internaticeal Standeds on  Our aud® procedures over revenue inchaded, among others:

We tested selecied concrols management bas i oplace
oot the sales and revenue recognition proceis, focuiisg
iR cognition.

We asseiaed the reverse necognition polices adopied
by Ehe Group by making ingeives of sanagemest and
inspecting & sempie of sles conbracts oo undestand the
delivery berms of the trardaciioss so &t W0 Fises The
Gromg’s iming of revenue Mecophition with relemence bo
the requirerments. of the prevaling sccounting standasds.

We assessed whether revenue was recopsized in thi
appropriate scoounting pedisd and i soondancs with
the temms of the sales comracts by companing 4 wemple
of sales traractions recoeded arcund the yesr end with |
Felivant underbdng datumentl, which included goods

We perloreed awdit procedures ower il birlween The
Growp  and S Cusbiewetl  duch B Cusbormner
el T b

We performed subgequent credit nobe review  and
CennnmEr wEnlcann of @xslence, I

‘We searched and tested the urissal journal entries to |
the sales account recosded outside the regular sales |

Profess.
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Other indormaticn

Manapermend B responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
indormation included in the samal neport but does not inclede the consolidated finsncial statements
@ cepr puditony’ report thereon,

Chur oganian on fhe consolidated francial staticmenis does noi cover iBse oiher idormation and we da
not espeess Jey onm of ssursnon eanchusion Therean,

in connecticn with our audit of the consalidsed finsssial faterments, cur respomility & bo read the
wrtkev infarmation and. i doing w0, consider whether the other information i materially incondisten
with ihe coecobdated feancial atements or ool batreddpe cbisined in the sudit, or cthersise
Aggspars 10 be matenally miatsted. | based on the work we have pedonmed, we conclode that theve
s 2 maberial misstatemnend of This other infermation, we are requined b regert that Tack We hawe
DRy 13 fpa 6 Bhi nagand

Responaibilities of Managesnent and Thooe Charped with Governanes T (85 Consolidsted Financial
SAule s

Managemant & respaniible for the preparatiss and e presentation of the consolidabed francial
Wmements in accordance with IFRS Accountieg Standaeds, aed for such imternad costnal o

maragement deiimmines | nideciany 10 enably the prepsntion of consolifabed Brancal vatements
that ane ree drom material minataiement, whether due to fraud or ermoe

In pregaring the comolidated finsncial statements, munagement s responsibile for aseesing the
Group's ability to continee a3 a going concern, dhcloding, af applcable, matters related to going
concern and wiisg the going concerm basl of acoownting unless manaperment either inbends o
quidate the Group or bo cease operatioes, or has no realistic shernath but 6o & so

Those charged with govermance are responsible for cverseeing the Groug's Esancial repaning proces,
fuaditory’ Aesponsibidties for the Audit of the Comsolidsied Financial Stabemen

Our objecties are o oblain ressonable assurasce about whether the consclidmed Dasncial
slatements as a whole are free from material misstaternent, whetber due 1o frsad or ermos, and to
naue an suditons’ report that includes cwr opinion. Reasonable assurance & a high level of assomancs,
but & ol 3 puaramiee thal an st conducted in aceordance with 1585 will sbwaen detect 2 material
misgtaermend when § exits, Msstaternents can arte from frassd or error and aee coridered mateal
i, individually or in the aggregate, they could misonably be expected to influence the econcemic
g i of wers taken on thee basi of these consolidated fieanoal tatements.

Kb

Anditori’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, Cosvtined

Az part of an audit in sccordance with A5, we ouircie profeiilonal pedgment and maintain
pradeiiaesal shepticium throughou! the audit. We alin:

*  ldenitify and assess the nsks of material missatement of the comalidated faancial Matements,
whather dae b0 fesud or errar, digign sed perform audit procediares responsive to those risks,
and obiain audi evidence that is sulficient and approgriate to provide & bask for Gur apinkon,
Thee risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting, from fraud is higher than for one
mesulting from eror, as frasd may invele eedusion, forpery, inlentionsl amisgians,
misngpresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  (btain an understanding of miernal control refevast o the aude in order 10 degign sudi
presppdunes tha kng approgdisne in 1he cintumatasces, buf not for the purpose of expressing an
apiricn o the effectiveness of the Group's intemal comrol.

*  Evmbuatn the appeopriatoness of scoounting policaes used and the reasonableness of acoounting
etimates and related disclosures made by management.

= {onclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of acoounting
and, based oo the audit evidence obiained, whithar & material usoenaisty existy related to
events or conditions that may cast sigeificant dowbt on the Group's ability to continue as a poing,
concern, W conclale that 3 matedial unertanty Buili, we ire fequined b dhmw sltenton in
our auditces’ report 8o the related dieclosures in the consolidated financial staiements or, i
such disclosures are inadeguate, 1o modily cur opinion, Dur conthusiom are Based on the weda
edidence obtained up fo the dabe of cur suditors’ report. However, futune Svents oF conddions
mmhmumunﬂmalmm.

*  Evakate the owerall presestation, strochee and contes of the consolidated financil
wataments, including the dacloiures, and whether the oormobdated fisancial staternenis
repeesent the underdisg transactiom and events is a manner tha schieves Tair presentation,

®  {btain sufficient appropriate audit evidenoe reganding the financial information of the entities.
of buiine sctivities within the Group 1o exgeess an opinion on the cossobdated financial
statements. We are respandible for the direction, supeniiss and perfesmanis al 1he group
Budin, W remain solely responsible for ot sudit apinion.

W cammunicale with those charged with poreernance regarding. smong other matten, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including asvy signilicant deliciencies in
internsl toatral thet we idemify duing ouf audit.
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—
GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES o
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 o
m (IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS) =
>
4
Notes 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 =
ASSETS
Auditors’ Responsibiiities foe the Audiy of the Consolideted Finsmcial Statements, Continied
Current assets
“mmlm chatged with governance wih a stisment that we have complied with rel § Cash and cash equivalents 5 9,491,111 9,034,919
ethical requirerments regarding independence, and communicate with them ali relationships and other Prepayments and ad‘fances 7 3,173,680 2,318,495
matier thad mary reasonabily be I}u:uq,ht b0 bear on our independence, and whee soolicable, actiam Trade and other receivables 6 8,030,908 3,318,986
w 1] m' m" m’wl Inventories 8 142,521,277 128,791,463
Right to returned goods assets 9 - 17,227 N
Froem (e fmalery commanicabed with 1Boie charped with poverrance, we delermine {Bose matters 163,216,976 143,481,090 5
thet were of most signfficance in the sed® of the consolidated financial statesmens of the curnent Non-current assets =
period and s thendiern the by sudit mutter. We describe thewe maifen in our aefitors” report Property, plant and equipment 10 129,249,293 137,432,575 =
unless lw or reguistion preclodes peblic disclosure about the matier o when, in etmemely rare Right-of-use assets 11 2,109,746 731,724 N
cirtumraiances, we debemsing that a matier should nol be communicatied in our report Because the Deferred tax assets 243 9,276,559 14,879,483 N
adversl consequentes of doing 1o would resmonsbly be expedied 1o cutwelgh the public sterest Other non-current assets 13 7,930,958 1.587.295
o ; . 148,566,556 154,631,077
Total Assets 311,783,532 298,112,167
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 38,880,126 20,969,192
Contract liabilities 14.1 1,672,424 1,983,898 w
Refund liabilities 15 - 26,503 5
Lease liabilities 16 964,376 777,988 %
Corporate income tax payable 242 1,801,506 3,683,126 (J;
Borrowings 17 232,559,514 129,853,617 =
<
275,877,946 157,294,324 =]
Non-current liabilities m
Lease liabilities 16 1,321,948 112,069
Borrowings 17 9,830,059 95,686,234
Tgried by: Approved by Long-term other payables 18 17,036,260 30,984,941
Deferred tax liability 243 7,883,775 8,206,834
P g E: 36,072,042 134,990,078
g.-""‘ Total Liabilities 311,949,988 292,284,402
Sopoimas GungaamyambBuy Pyung-Sik Kang Equity o2
Geasval Direcior Povimer Share capital 19 780,113 780,113 Z 2
Revaluation reserve 22 44,568,540 44,568,540 g J%
Foreign currency translation reserve 23 (10,662,273) (11,436,010) g >
Accumulated losses (34,852,836) (28,084,878) g E
Thds repot B efectien o ot Fi darch 2034, the sedie repon dirte. Certain sk meEninGr EAnEs Total Equity (166,456) 5,827,765 3
wihes g e bptasr e, Ehap e repeet e ang The nime of nesdE TS FEDOTL, Coukd Baeet & raled il BRpact L .
Total Liabilities and Equit; 311,783,532 298,112,167
) D8 et i ot sl bty arcd natin Hhirets. Rerordingty, he rmaden. of (e auds bt quity
report shoubd usdersiand chat the abores st report bk it Been wpdated 10 relieat the impect of iuch
T 1 i
sh of m' To e i N iy, Farthermo Lh“:'mmm solely for the e of ﬂ: The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
|istatprt Rabsility T arry bRt party in relrion to the contenty ol this seport. U'l
T
P4
>
P4
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GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSISIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(IN THOUSAND OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS) GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSISIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(IN THOUSAND OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)

Notes 2023 2022
Revaluation Foreign currency
Notes Share caEital surElus translation reserve Accumulated losses Total eﬂuit!

Revenue 25.1 255,650,516 193,427,609 Balance as at 1 January 2022 780,113 48,870,401 561,878 (21,087,268 29,125,124
Cost of sales 252 (131,011,345) (97,766,831) Total comprehensive income.
Gross profit 124,639,171 95,660,778 Net loss for the year - - - (6.997.610) (6,997,610)

Other comprehensive loss 22,23 - (4,301,861) (11,997.888) - (16,299,749)

Balance as at 31 December 2022 780,113 44,568,540 (11,436,010) (28,084,878) 5,827,765
Other income 27.1 5,002,286 1,162,425
Selling and distribution expenses 254 (73,593,361) (61,767,484) r;ala[nce as a; 1 January 2023 780,113 44,568,540 (11,436,010) (28,084,878) 5,827,765

'otal comprehensive income.
Administrative expenses 25.5 (19,733,240) (14,138,399) Net loss f:, the year N . B (6,767958) (6,767,958)
Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets 31.1 9,266 49,464 Other comprehensive income 23 - - 773,737 - 713,731
Other expenses 272 (6,980) (13,355) Balance as at 31 December 2023 780,113 44,568,540 (10,662.273) (34,852,836) (166,456)
Operating profit 36,317,142 20,953,429
Finance income 26 229,734 29,261
Finance costs 28 (36,523,753) (30,979,282)
Profit (loss) before income tax 23,123 (9,996,592)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Income tax (expense) benefit 24 (6,791,081) 2,998,982
Loss for the year (6,767,958) (6,997,610)

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Tax impact on revaluation of property, plant and

equipment 22 - (4,301,861)
Items that are or may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translating the net assets of

foreign subsidiaries 23 773,737 (11,997,888)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year 773,737 (16,299,749)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (5,994,221) (23,297,359)
Losses per share-Basic (in MNT) 21 [©) 9)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSISIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(IN THOUSAND OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4

Notes 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year (6,767,958) (6,997,610)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 253 12,643,029 11,872,940
Income tax expense (benefit) 24 6,791,081 (2,998,982)
Interest expense 28 30,257,198 25,600,326
Interest income 26 (229,734) (29,261)
Unwinding of discount on subsidized loans 28 4,418,776 -
Unrealised foreign exchange rate loss 1,176,462 6,498,317
Reversal of impairment on financial assets 31.1 (9,266) (49,464)
Impairment allowance / (reversal) on inventories, net 8 (166,906) 738,563
Loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment 27 6,980 13,355
48,119,662 34,648,184
Changes in:
Change in accounts and other receivables (3,548,120) 12,664,331
Change in prepayments and advances (6,148,480) 228,243
Change in inventories (13,562,908) 8,500,346
Change in right to returned goods 17,227 (17,227)
Change in trade and other payables (11,962,418) 14,542,458
Change in refund liabilities (26,503) 26,503
Change in contract liabilities (311,474 613,617
12,576,986 71,206,455
Income taxes paid 242 (3,392,836) (78,714)
Interest paid 17.2 (27,329,645) (25,219,577)
Net cash flows (used in)/ from operating activities (18,145,495) 45,908,164
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 26 229,734 29,261
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,359,228 7,664
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 10 (4,642,753) (2,934,998)
Acquisition of intangible assets 13.1 (1,249,934) (226,018)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (4,303,725) (3,124,091)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings including related party loans 17.2 1,153,263,480 381,238,895
Proceeds from issuance of bond 17.2 - 7,906,980
Repayment of bond - (17,765,164)
Repayment of borrowings including related party loans 17.2 (1,130,151,838) (396,589,513)
Advances provided to related parties 293 (18,950,000) -
Payment of advances provided to related parties 29.3 18,950,000 -
Payments of lease liabilities 17.2 (965,391) (931,813)
Payment of dividends 20 (280) (247)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 22,145,971 (26,140,862)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (303,249) 16,643,211
Exchange difference on translating foreign operations 773,737 (11,997,888)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash (14,296) 117
Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning of the year 5 9,034,919 4,389,479
Cash and cash equivalents, at the end of the year 5 9,491,111 9,034,919

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)

Corporate information

Gobi JSC (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) was established in 1981 under the laws of Mongolia. 51.29%
of the Company is owned by Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC, registered in Mongolia, 34% by Hide Inter LLC,
registered in Japan, and the remaining 14.71% is owned by other small shareholders. As at 31 December 2023,
Gobi JSC had a total of 23,989 shareholders. In January 2024, the name of the ultimate controlling party was
changed from Tavan Bogd Trade LLC to Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC.

The place of business of the Company is GOBI JSC Building, which is located at Industrial Street, 3" Khoroo,
Khan-Uul District, 17062, Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia. The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) engage operations in Mongolia, People’s Republic of China, United States of America, Federal
Republic of Germany, and the United Kingdom.

The Company was registered to the General Authority of State Registration and issued with the State Registration
Certificate with the entity’s registration No: 2076357.

The Chief Executive Officer was changed on 28 February 2024 and new appointment is effective from 1 March
2024.

The Group is primarily engaged in manufacturing and selling of finished and semi-finished goods such as
knitwear, sewn and woven products, and provision of related services such as dry cleaning. The Group’s operating
income is disclosed in detail in Note 25.1. The subsidiaries of the Company are disclosed in Note 12.

The executive management of the Group authorised the issuance of the consolidated financial statements on 21
March 2024.

Summary of material accounting policies
Material accounting policy information

The Group adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (dmendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
from 1 January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the accounting policies
themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information and disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of “material”, rather than “significant”, accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclose of accounting policies, assisting
entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other
information in the consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Certain corresponding figures have
been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain properties.
Certain properties are measured at revalued amount or fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands and in Mongolian Tugrugs (“MNT”), which
is the Group’s functional currency, unless otherwise indicated.
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GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)

Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.2.1 Going concern

The total sales revenue of the Group in 2023 was MNT 255.7 billion, and it showed 32% growth from the previous
year. This was mainly resulted from the increase in domestic market sales of MNT 147.0 billion (57%), due to
the recovery of tourism. Original Design Manufacturer (ODM) sales increased by 30% amounting MNT 59.5
billion.

Regarding the global market, sales decreased by 10% due to a warmer climate and a decline in customer
preference for online shopping. In overall, the Group's total net sales has shown an increase as well as
improvement regarding the profitability by 3% compared to 2022.

In 2024, overall sales revenue for Gobi is expected to be increased slightly to current year which is considered
achievable in terms of the growth trend. The domestic market is expected to be increased, whereas global market
sales is expected to be decreased as the Group plans to reduce marketing expenses as well as discount percentage.
Domestic market overperformed due to its tourists' sales in 2023 with total of 650 thousands of tourists visited
Mongolia. In 2024, Mongolia is aiming for one million tourists which will impact favorable for the Group’s
domestic market. In terms of ODM market, the Group is pursuing to cooperate with over 50 clients to keep the
cooperation already have. For the global market, the main strategy is being planned to reduce the large marketing
expenses and the discount percentage rather to focus on their profitability. So that the Group believes it can build
its brand first without offering high discount for the customers with higher marketing expenses.

In terms of operational expenses, the Group decided to reduce marketing expenses and financing cost by focusing
on more inventory management. The Group believes this strategy is a proper strategy for the long-term, and
sustainable growth for the global market.

On 15 February 2024, Gobi JSC received from its ultimate controlling party, Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC, a letter
confirming that Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC will continue to provide financial support to Gobi JSC, so as to enable
Gobi JSC to continue as a going concern and to meet its liabilities as they fall due, for at least twelve months from
the reporting date of Gobi JSC’s 31 December 2023 financial statements. Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC also
confirmed to not seek, recall or demand repayment of amounts owed to the entities within the Tavan Bogd
Holdings LLC and will continue to provide further funds to cover any cash short fall that may arise.

The Group has prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, which management has
assessed as being appropriate.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

e Has power over the investee;
e s exposed, or has right, to variable returns from its involvements with the investee; and
e Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Although the investee does not have a majority of the voting rights to influence, the investee is considered to
influence if the voting rights held by the Company have a real ability to influence the related activities of the
investee.

The following factors are used to assess whether the Company's voting rights have an impact on the financier's
operations:

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

154

GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)

Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Basis of consolidation (continued)

e The extent of the Company's voting rights and the distribution, dispersal of the voting rights of other
shareholders

e  Ability to exercise the voting rights of the Company and other shareholders

e Voting rights agreed upon in other agreements

e Other factors that the Company's voting rights may affect current related activities voting rights

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expense of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

The subsidiaries profit or loss and other comprehensive income are attributable to the shareholders of Group and
non-controlling interest. The subsidiaries total comprehensive income is attributed to the Group’s shareholders
and non-controlling interests, even if the non-controlling interest has a negative balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.3.1 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to shareholders of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRS Standards). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Acceptance and Measurement, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

2.4 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lowest of purchase and/or production cost, calculated by means of the weighted
average cost method, and net realisable value. Purchase cost includes related ancillary costs for purchases in the
period. Production cost includes directly attributable costs and a portion of indirect costs reasonably attributable
to the products. The net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Where necessary, an allowance for obsolescence is
established for materials or products, in view of their expected use and realisable value.
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Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.5 Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances represent expenses not yet incurred and goods not yet received respectively but already
paid in cash. Prepayments and advances are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid.
Subsequently, prepaid expenses are charged to profit or loss as they are consumed in operations or expire over
time and advances are reclassified to the related assets for which the cash was paid when the goods are received.

Prepayments are classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as current assets when it the Group
expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period. Otherwise, prepayments are classified
as non-current assets. At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
prepayments to determine whether there is any indication that those prepayments may be impaired.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land rights held by the Group are initially recognised as property, plant and equipment of the Group at fair value
at the date of acquisition. The Group pays an annual land commission fee to the Government upon acquisition of
the land rights which are insignificant. Land rights are not depreciated and measured at revalued amounts.
Construction in progress as described below, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. The cost of a property, plant and equipment
comprises:

e Its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts
and rebates; and

e Any costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.16. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

At the end of each reporting period, property, plant and equipment, other than land and buildings, are measured
using the cost model and carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Land and buildings, measured using the revaluation model, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, determined from market-based
evidence by appraisal undertaken by independent professional appraisers, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of each reporting period.

Depreciation on revalued assets is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the property's revaluation reserve is transferred directly
to retained earnings.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment that have already been recognised are added
to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Group.

All other subsequent expenditures are recognised as expenses in the period in which those are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised as to write-off the cost or valuation of assets (other than land and construction in
progress) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following basis:
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Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment useful life:

Building 10 — 40 years
Plant and equipment 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 2 —10 years
Vehicles 10 years
Leasehold improvement 2 — 5 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset that has an indefinite useful life and is purchased separately is measured at cost less any
impairment losses.

The useful life of the intangible assets is 2 to 10 years.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gain or losses arising from deprecation of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when asset is
derecognised.

2.8 Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise, they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the cash-generating unit).
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Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.8 Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating units exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (groups of units) on a pro rata
basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss, other than impairment of goodwill is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization if no impairment loss had been recognise.

2.9 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value excepts for the trade receivable arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.10 Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

2.10.1 Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.1 Classification of financial assets (continued)

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition
of a financial asset:

e The Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and

e The Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

The Group's financial assets consist of financial assets at amortised cost.
Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument
on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.

Interest income is initially recorded using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured at amortised
cost and at FVTOCI. For credit-impaired financial assets at either origination or at the time of purchase, the
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Financial assets that are subsequently credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the finical assets. In the event, the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
the calculation does not revert back to gross basis.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "finance income" line item.
2.10.2 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime expected credit losses ("ECL") for trade receivables. Except for those
which had been determined as credit impaired under IFRS 9, trade receivables have been assessed individually
with outstanding significant balances not secured and exceeding MNT 400 million, the remaining balances are
grouped based on past due analysis.
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2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.2 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Forward-looking information considered includes the prospects of the industries in which the Group's debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relates to the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

*  An actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument's external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

*  Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the length of time
or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised cost;

*  Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

¢ Anactual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

¢ Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

*  Anactual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

*  The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

*  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and

*  Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.2 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has an external credit rating of
'investment grade' in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not available,
the asset has an internal rating of 'performing'. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong financial
position and there are no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying a
significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

¢ When there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or
¢ Information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

*  The significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

¢ abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (ii) above);

¢ The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

* It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

¢ Lack of an active market for the financial asset due to financial difficulties.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes-off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written-off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default and (i.e

the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above.
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2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.2 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses (continued)

As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets' gross carrying amount at the
reporting date; the Group's understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.

Loans and receivables that are at risk at the reporting date are stated at the carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting

date, except for assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

2.10.3 Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to

another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

2.11 Financial liabilities and equity
2.11.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity under the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

2.11.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received net of direct issue
costs.

(i) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary share are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(ii) Repurchase of share capital (treasury shares)

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as deduction from equity.
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2.11 Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

2.11.2 Equity instruments (continued)

(ii) Repurchase of share capital (treasury shares) (continued)

Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented in the statement of changes in equity as
treasury shares. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an
increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in share premium.

(iii) Retained earnings (Accumulated losses)

Retained earnings (Accumulated losses) represent accumulated profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company after deducting dividends declared. Retained earnings (Accumulated losses) may also include
effect of changes in accounting policy as may be required by the standard’s transitional provisions.

(iv) Contribution by owners of the Group

Capital contributions from shareholders, being either cash or other non-monetary assets, which are non-reciprocal
(i.e. no financial obligation), are accounted for directly in equity at fair value of the contributed assets.

(v) Foreign currency translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Parent Company’s net
investment in a foreign subsidiary.

2.11.3 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
Group financial liabilities consist of financial instruments measure at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.11.3.1 Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of financial liability.

2.11.3.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

2.12 Revenue recognition

Under IFRS 135, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e., when
"control" of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or service) that is distinct or service
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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2.12 Revenue recognition (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

e The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

e The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied and in particular when it
transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS
9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

The Group's income consists of the following main sources:

a) Sale of goods;
b) Service income;
¢) Other revenue

2.12.1 Sale of goods

Sales of goods refers to sales of cashmere, knitwear, sewn and woven products to wholesalers and to retail
customers.

Sales to wholesalers are recognised when control of the products is transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion over the sales channel and price to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler's acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to a specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract or the group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Sales to retail customers are recognised when control of the products is transferred, being at the point the
customers purchase the goods at the retail shops. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the
customer purchases products.
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2.12 Revenue recognition (continued)
2.12.1 Sale of goods (continued)

It is the Group's policy to sell its products to the retail customer with a right of return within 7 days and the
wholesale customers up to certain limits stated in the contracts. Therefore, a contract liability (refund liability)
and a right to the returned good assets (included in current assets) are recognised for the products expected to be
returned.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the transaction price only to the extent that probably
such inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

2.12.2 Service income
Service income mainly refers to dry cleaning and sewing services provided to related parties and other customers.

Revenue is recognised over time as the performance of the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on the output method,
which is to recognise revenue based on direct measurements of the value of the goods or services transferred to
the customer to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of goods or services.

2.12.3 Other revenue
Other revenue mainly comprises the sale of raw materials and semi-finished products to domestic customers.

Other revenue is recognised when customers obtain control of products being the raw materials when the goods
are dispatched from the Group's warehouse. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognised at that point in time.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a
customer.

The Group recognises other revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied and in particular when it
transfers control of a product or service to a customer and in particular when the goods have been shipped to the
customer's specific location (delivery).

2.12.4 Assets and liabilities arising from the right of return
Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Group's right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers.
The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the
goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement
of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the
value of the returned products. It is considered highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur given the consistent level of returns over previous years.

Refund liabilities

Refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The
Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end
of each reporting period.
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2.13 Leases
2.13.1 Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for some
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such a contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

2.13.2 The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component based on the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of stores and warehouses that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of a right-of-use asset includes:

The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,;

Any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

An estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property or inventory as a
separate line item on the consolidated financial statements.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at

fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

166

GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)

Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.13 Leases (continued)

2.13.2 The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the lease liability at the present value
of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;

e The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e Payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental rates are initially measured using the market rental
rates as at the commencement date. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets and are recognised as expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e The lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment;

e The lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

Lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modlifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e The consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability

based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.
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Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.13 Leases (continued)

2.13.2 The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component based on the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense lease, such incentives are recognised as a liability.

2.13.3 The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and 20ecognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.14 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Currencies other than MNT are regarded as foreign currencies and transactions denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into MNT at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into MNT at exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. Exchange differences arising from the
changes in exchange rate subsequent to dates of the transactions for monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into Mongolian Tugrugs using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used.

Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.
2.15 Expense recognition

Expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are presented using the
function of expense method. Costs of sales are expenses incurred that are associated with the goods sold.

Operating expenses are costs attributable to administrative, marketing, selling and other business activities of the
Group.
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Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.16 Borrowing costs

The Group capitalises borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying assets as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised in expense as incurred. A
qualifying asset is an asset that requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

To the extent that the Group borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining asset, the Group determines
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
during the period less any investment income on the temporary investment of those borrowings. The Group
immediately recognizes other borrowing costs as an expense. To the extent that the Group borrow funds generally
and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Group determines the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on the asset. The capitalization
rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowing made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

2.17 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past services provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

State pension plans

Employee benefits of the Group include statutory social insurance payments to the State Social Insurance Scheme
of Mongolia. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit
expense as incurred.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and reliable estimate can be made of amount of the obligation.

The risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround many events and circumstances are taken into account in
reaching the best estimate of a provision. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined at the present value of the expected future cash flows.

‘When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision
should be reversed.

2.19 Contingent liabilities and assets
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised because their existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is remote.
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Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.20 Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit
or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
assets. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

2.21 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.

If the number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalisation, bonus
issue or share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic and diluted earnings
per share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

2.22 Related parties

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Group, parent of the
Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. A person or a close member of that person's
family is related to the Group if that person:

e Has control or joint control over the Group; or
e Has significant influence over the Group; or
e [s a member of the key management personnel of the reporting group or a parent of the Group

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

e The entity and reporting entity are members of the same group which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to each other;

e One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member;

e  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third parties;

e One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

e The entity has a post-employment benefit plan for employee benefits for the Group or one of the Group's
related party.

e The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person who is a related party as identified above and a
person that has control or joint control over the reporting entity has significant influence over the entity or is
a member of the key management personnel of the entity or a parent of the entity.

2.23 Taxation

The income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

2.23.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The

Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.23 Taxation (continued)

2.23.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the asset-liability method, in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which they can be utilised. However, deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary
differences: taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting profit
or loss nor taxable income.

The Group recognizes a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures, except to the extent that the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates, to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and the carrying
amount is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the related current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS Standards requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses of the reporting
period. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making those estimates, actual results reported in future periods may
be based upon amounts that differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

2.23.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from

the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
2.24 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s
other components. The operating segments’ operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess
its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

2.25 Government grants

Government grants are transfers of resource to the Group by a government entity in return for compliance with
certain past or future conditions related to the Group’s operating activities — e.g. a government subsidy. The Group
recognizes the grants in the form of a waiver of expenses — e.g. government subsidized low interest loans, as
government grant. Such grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis as the Group recognizes as
expenses the costs the grant is intended to compensate.

Below-market interest rate loan is initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9.
IFRS 9 required loans at below-market rates to be initially measures at fair value — e.g. the present value of the
expected future cash flows discounted at a market-related interest rate. The benefit that is government grant is
measured as the difference between the fair value of the loan on initial recognition and the amount received,
which is accounted for according to the nature of the grant.
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
of the reporting period. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making those estimates, actual results reported in future
periods may be based upon amounts that differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

3.1 Critical accounting judgements

3.1.1 Useful life of land and depreciation

The Group's land situated in Mongolia is held under a lease term of 15 to 60 years.

The Land Law of Mongolia provided a legal basis for Mongolian legal entities holding land rights.

The Group paid an upfront fee when the Group first signed the land agreement. Historically, the Group
successfully renewed the lease upon expiry at minimal cost, if any. The executive management of the Group finds
that the Group can continue to renew the land at minimal cost, if any, and can continue to take possession of the
land indefinitely. Thus, the land with a carrying amount of MNT 17,959,888 thousand (MNT 17,959,888 thousand
at 31 December 2022) is stated at the revalued amount less accumulated impairment and is not depreciated.

3.1.2 Tax system in Mongolia

The Government of Mongolia continues to reform the business and commercial infrastructure in its transition to
a market economy. As a result, the laws and regulations affecting businesses continue to change rapidly.

Taxes are subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities who are enabled by law to impose fines
and penalties. While the Group believes it has provided adequately for all tax liabilities based on its understanding

of the tax legislation, the above facts may create tax risks for the Group.

3.1.3 Determine method to estimate variable ideration and ing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of goods include a right of return that gives rise to variable consideration. In
estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to use either the expected value method or the most
likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled.

The Group determined that the expected value method is the appropriate method to be used in estimating the
variable consideration for the sale of goods with the right of return, given the large number of customers' contracts
that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Group considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that the estimates of variable
consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic
conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

As at 31 December 2023, the revenue amount to MNT 255,650,516 thousand net of returns and discounts for an

amount of MNT 17,310,811 thousand (31 December 2022 the revenue amount to MNT 193,427,609 thousand
net of returns and discounts for an amount of MNT 12,447,074 thousand).
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions used in the estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
involving the significant amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

3.2.1 Calculation of loss allowance

The Group estimated the impairment allowance for doubtful accounts related to its receivables based on its
assessment of individual characteristics of each customer and by the economic conditions and the related industry
in Mongolia.

In these cases, judgement used was based on the best available facts and circumstances including but not limited
to, the length of relationship with the counterparty and the counterparty’s current credit status based on credit
reports and known market factors. The Group used judgement to record specific allowances for counterparties
against amounts due to reduce the expected collectible amounts. These specific allowances are re-evaluated and
adjusted as additional information received impacts the amounts estimated.

The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if different judgements were made or
different estimates were utilized. An increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts would increase the
recognized operating expenses and decrease current assets.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables is MNT 8,030,908 thousand, net of
loss allowance of MNT 1,761,809 thousand (31 December 2022 the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables is MNT 3,318,986 thousand, net of loss allowance of MNT 1,771,075 thousand).

3.2.2 Inventory provision for obsolete and slow moving items

Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories. These
reviews require judgement and estimates. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and actual results may differ from the estimation.

The Group's accounting policy is based upon the ageing of inventory, with a percentage provision applied which
reflects the actual historical rate of losses made.

The management believes that the assumptions and judgements used are appropriate in determining the valuation
of inventories.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of inventories is MNT 142,521,277 thousand net of provision for
inventories of MNT 2,190,587 thousand (31 December 2022: the carrying amount of inventories is MNT
128,791,463 thousand net of provision for inventories of MNT 2,357,493 thousand).

3.2.3 Estimating net realisable value of inventories

The net realisable value of inventories represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of necessary to make the sale. Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-
moving inventories.

While the Group believes that the estimates are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual
experience or significant changes in estimates may materially affect the profit or loss and equity.

3.2.4 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

As described in Note 2.6, the Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the
end of the reporting period and adjusts if necessary, taking into consideration the usage patterns, the age of the
assets and the technological advances. No revisions were made to the useful lives at end of the current reporting
period. Possible changes in these estimates may significantly affect profit for the year. Management believes that
the current useful lives reflect the economic lives of property, plant and equipment.
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
3.2.5 Fair value measurement of land and buildings

Land and buildings are measured at revalued amounts for financial reporting purposes. Revaluation shall be made
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified appraiser to perform the valuation. Possible change in these changes could result in revisions
to the value of land and buildings.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of land and buildings
are disclosed in Note 10.2.

Deferred income taxes

In calculating deferred income taxes, the Group considers factors such as tax rates, non-deductible expenses,
changes in tax law, and management’s expectations of future results. The Group estimates deferred income taxes
based on temporary differences between the income and losses reported in its consolidated financial statements
and its taxable income and losses as determined under the applicable tax laws. The tax effects of these temporary
differences are recorded as deferred tax assets or liabilities in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group does not recognise deferred tax assets where management does not expect such assets to be realised
based upon current forecasts. In the event that actual results differ from these estimates, adjustments are made in
future periods in these estimates, and changes in the amount of the deferred tax assets recognised may be required,
which could materially impact the financial position and the income for the period.

Total deferred tax assets recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position amounted to MNT
9,276,559 thousand and MNT 14,879,483 thousand as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Total deferred tax liabilities recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position amounted to

MNT 7,883,775 thousand and MNT 8,206,834 thousand as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively, see
Note 2.23 and Note 24.3.
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Application of new accounting standards or amendments for 2023 and forthcoming requirements

4.1 New standards and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of new standards or amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’) that are mandatorily effective for an
accounting periods that begins on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective date New accounting standards or amendments

e IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendment to IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2

e Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

e Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction - Amendments to IAS 12

e [Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative Information
(Amendments to IFRS 17)

e International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules — Amendments to
1IAS 12

1 January 2023

23 May 2023

The application of the new and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the current year and on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

4.2 New standards and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The new and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of

issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable when they become effective.

Effective date New accounting standards or amendments

e Non-current Liabilities with Covenants — Amendments to IAS 1

e Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments
1 January 2024 to IAS 1

e Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to IFRS 16

e Supplier Finance Arrangements — Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

1 January 2025 e Lack of Exchangeability — Amendments to TAS 21

Available for optional
adoption / effective date
deferred indefinitely

e Sales or Contribution of Assets between the Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture — Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

The above new and amended accounting standards except below are not expected to have a significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments to IAS 1

These amendments, as issued in 2020 and 2022, aim to clarify the requirements on determining whether a liability
is current or non-current, and require new disclosure for non-current liabilities that are subject to future covenants.
The amendments apply for annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The Group has several secured bank loans that are subject to specific covenants. While liabilities that could be
classified as non-current at 31 December 2023, a future breach of the related covenants may require the Group to
repay the liabilities earlier than contractual maturity dates. The Group is in the process of assessing the potential
impact of the amendments on the classification of these liabilities and the related disclosures.
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Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
Cash on hand 31,550 40,544
Cash in bank 9,459,561 8,994,375
9,491,111 9,034,919
The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk.
Trade and other receivables
2023 2022
Trade receivables 7,553,053 2,905,206
Loss allowance (1,640,363) (1,640,363)
5,912,690 1,264,843
Receivables from related parties (see Note 29.2) 129,632 17,222
Other receivables 2,110,032 2,167,633
Loss allowance (121,446) (130,712)
8,030,908 3,318,986

6.1 Trade receivables

The average credit period on sales of goods is 30-90 days within pre-approved credit limits. No interest is charged
on overdue trade receivables. Before accepting any new customers, the management of the Group assesses the
potential client’s credit quality and defines credit limits by each customer.

The Group estimated the impairment allowance for doubtful accounts related to its receivables based on its
assessment of individual characteristics of each customer and by the economic conditions and the related industry
in Mongolia.

In these cases, judgement used was based on the best available facts and circumstances including but not limited
to, the length of relationship with the counterparty and the counterparty’s current credit status based on credit
reports and known market factors. The Group used judgement to record specific allowances for counterparties
against amounts due to reduce the expected collectible amounts. These specific allowances are re-evaluated and
adjusted as additional information received impacts the amounts estimated.

The Group writes-off trade receivables when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation,
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over ten years past due, whichever
occurs earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written-off was subject to enforcement activities.

As the Group’s historical trade receivable default experience does not show significant different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished

between the Group’s customer base.

6.2 Other receivables

2023 2022
VAT and other tax receivables 1,358,657 1,394,152
Receivables from employees 432,179 495,474
Others 319,196 278,007
2,110,032 2,167,633
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GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

(IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)
7. Prepayments and advances

10 Property, plant and equipment

2023 2022 Plantand  Furniture and Construction  Leaschold
Land rights __ Buildings Equipment fixtures Vehicles in progress _improvement Total
Advance payments to vendors 1,288,446 1,100,746 Cost and revaluation:
. 1 January 2022 17,959,888 79529075 97,998,348 5,712,260 1,703,325 9,226,89 622574 212,752,366
Prepaid expense 1,885,234 1,217,749 Additions 2,727 1,663,991 233,904 514,364 475,596 24,416 - 2,934,998
Disposals - - (54,130) (25,058) - - - (79,188)
3,173,680 2,318,495 Transfers to intangible assets - - - (6.929) - - - (6.929)
Transfers within PPE - - 9,232,041 - - (9232941 - -
31 December 2022 17,982,615 81,193,066 107,411,063 6,194,637 2,178,921 18,371 622,574 215,601,247
Additions 138,178 1,289,639 408,471 1,602,039 187,493 240,679 776,254 4,642,753
. Disposals (22,727) (1,297,944) (105,994) (514,521) - - - (1,941,186)
8. Inventories Transfers within PPE - 18,368 (10,706) 10,706 - (18,368) - -
31 December 2023 18,098,066 81,203,129 107,702,834 7,292,861 2,366,414 240,682 1,398,828 218,302,814
2023 2022 Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2022 E 9,051,524 3,437,789 895,256 - 608,310

Raw materials 35,591,584 39,237,700 Depreciation charge for the year - 2,404,373 728,169 166,427 - -

Disposals - - (5.807) - - -

Work in progress 20,703,068 13,904,765 Transfers to intangible assets - - - (6,929) - - -

o Effect of movements in exchange rate - - 11,827 19,755 10.860 - -
Finished goods 74,816,715 64,176,011 31 December 2022 - 11,455,897 60,858,945 4,172,977 1,072,543 - 608,310 78,168,672
Depreciation charge for the year B 2,556,768 7,720,968 950,466 204,333 B 27,292 11,459,827
Consumables 13,207,219 10,245,875 Disposals - (34,896) (81,719) (458,363) - - - (574,978)
. . Transfers within PPE - - (12,129) 12,129 - - - -
Goods in transit 393,278 3,584,605 Effect of movements in exchange rate - - - - - - - -
31 December 2023 - 13,977,769 68,486,065 4,677,209 1,276,876 - 635,602 89,053,521

144,711,864 131,148,956
Lo Carrying amount:
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items (2,190,587) (2,357,493) 31 December 2022 17,982,615 69.737,160 46,552,118 2,021,660 1,106,378 18371 14264 137432575
31 December 2023 18,098,066 67.225.360 __ 39.216,769 2,615,652 1,089,538 240,682 763,226 129,249,293
142,521,277 128,791,463

Raw materials include raw cashmere, de-haired cashmere, and cashmere yarns. The cost of inventories charged
to the cost of sales during the year amounted to MNT 124.1 billion (31 December 2022: MNT 93.5 billion).

Movement in the allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items:

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the year 2,357,493 1,791,496
Addition to allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items (Note
25.5) 594,422 738,563
Reversal of allowance (Note 25.5) (761,328) (172,566)
Balance at the end of the year 2,190,587 2,357,493

Inventories with a carrying amount of MNT 138.0 billion (2022: MNT 121.7 billion) has been pledged as
collateral for borrowings (see Note 17.1)

9. Right to returned goods assets

2023 2022

Right to returned goods assets - 17,227
- 17,227

The right to returned goods assets represent the Group’s right to recover products from customers where
customers exercise their right of return under the sales agreement.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)
10.1 Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment with a total carrying amount of MNT 67.8 billion (31
December 2022: total carrying amount of MNT 134.8 billion) has been pledged as collateral for borrowings (see
Note 17.1).

10.2 Revaluation of the Group’s land and buildings

The Group’s land rights and buildings are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The revaluation of the Group’s
land rights and buildings were performed by an independent appraiser not related to the Group as at 30 September
2020.

The following table presents the fair value of the revalued land and buildings categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement :

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Fair value Level 3 Fair value Level 3
Land rights 18,098,066 18,098,066 17,982,615 17,982,615
Buildings 67,225,360 67,225,360 69,737,169 69,737,169
85,323,426 85,323,426 87,719,784 87,719,784

The following table shows the main valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of land and buildings:

Type Valuation techniques

Buildings Market comparison technique and cost technique: The valuation model considered
market prices for similar items when they are available, and depreciated replacement
cost when appropriate. Depreciated replacement cost reflected adjustments for
physical deterioration as well as functional and economic obsolescence.

Land Cost technique: Fair value of land rights was estimated using the cost approach.

The fair value measurement resulted in total revaluation surpluses of MNT 33,327,139 thousand.

Fair value measurements as
at 30 September 2020 categorised into

Fair value impact Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value measurement
Land 15,345,890 - - 15,345,890
Buildings 17,981,249 - - 17,981,249
Total 33,327,139 - - 33,327,139

The Group reassessed the fair value of these land rights as at 31 December 2023 and did not identify material
adjustment from the carrying value as at 31 December 2020, therefore in accordance with IAS 16, the value was
not adjusted.
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10. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
10.2 Revaluation of the Group’s land and buildings (continued)

Had the Group’s land rights and buildings been measured on a historical cost basis, their carrying amount would
have been as follows:

2023 2022
Land rights 2,613,998 2,613,998
Buildings 47,770,068 49,943,903
50,384,066 52,557,901
10.3 Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
2023 2022
Cost 40,115,009 36,454,214

10.4 Depreciation and amortisation charged to profit or loss and cost of inventories

2023 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,296,760 1,920,898
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 11) 983,636 831,016
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 13.1) 199,566 197,611
3,479,962 2,949,525

During the year, Group recognised depreciation expenses amounting to MNT 9,163,067 thousand (31 December
2022: 8,923,415 thousand) in the cost of inventories.

11. Right-of-use assets

2023 2022

Cost:

At 1 January 3,275,891 3,428,914
Additions 2,361,658 234,433
Disposals (521,800) (387,456)

At 31 December 5,115,749 3,275,891

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2,544,167 2,100,607
Charged for the year 983,636 831,016
Disposals (521,800) (387,456)

At 31 December 3,006,003 2,544,167

Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2,109,746 731,724
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Right-of-use assets (continued)

11.1 Leases as lessee

The Group leases stores and warehouses for its operations with an average lease term of 3 years. The Group does

not have lease agreements with an option to purchase the right-of-use assets at the end of the lease term.

The Group has in total 6 lease agreements that are recognised in accordance with IFRS 16 (4 lease agreements in

2022).

The maturity of lease liabilities is presented in Note 16.

i. Right-of-use assets

— ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2023 2022
At 1 January 731,724 1,328,307
Additions 2,361,658 234,433
Disposals (521,800) (387,456)
Depreciation charge for the year (983,636) (831,016)
Depreciation related to disposals 521,800 387,456
At 31 December 2,109,746 731,724
ii. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

2023 2022
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 983,636 831,016
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 28) 196,421 183,245
Expenses relating to short-term lease (Note 25.4) 190,602 206,865
iii. Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows

2023 2022
Total cash outflow for leases 965,391 931,813

11.2 Leases as lessor

As at 31 December 2023, and 2022, the Group did not have any long-term non-cancellable operating leases as a

lessor.

GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)

12. Investment in subsidiaries

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power held

Place of
Principal incorporation by the Group
Name of subsidiaries activity and operation 2023 2022
Gobi Cashmere Europe GmbH Trading Germany 100% 100%
Gobi Cashmere Inner Mongolia Co. Ltd Trading China 100% 100%
Goyo LLC Trading Mongolia 100% 100%
Gobi Cashmere USA Corp Trading USA 100% 100%
Gobi Cashmere United Kingdom Trading UK 100% 100%
Gobi Cashmere Kazakhstan LLP Trading Kazakhstan 100% -

* On 23 August 2023, the Group established a new wholly owned subsidiary, Gobi Cashmere Kazakhstan LLP,
in Kazakhstan. As at 31 December 2023, Gobi Cashmere Kazakhstan LLP has not yet started any operation.

Financial information of subsidiaries

Summary of financial information of subsidiaries as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 was as follows:

2023 Total assets Total liabilities Revenue Profit (loss)

Gobi Cashmere Europe GmbH 20,372,843 86,706,527 26,756,035 (10,228,996)
Gobi Cashmere Inner Mongolia

Co. Ltd 12,308,357 25,402,815 5,986,949 (3,983,329)
Goyo LLC 8,158,936 30,395 - (605,747)
Gobi Cashmere USA Corp 6,446,560 30,834,090 13,493,705 (5,492,583)
Gobi Cashmere United

Kingdom 3,175,727 4,486,534 2,932,399 (1,242,291)

Summary of financial information of subsidiaries as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 was as follows:

The Group has 12-month non-cancellable property lease contracts with its related parties. These lease contracts
include a clause for a renewal option same as the initial lease term or 12 months unless either party proposes
termination.

The lessee does not have an option to purchase the buildings at the expiry of the lease period. Rental income
recognised by the Group during 2023 was MNT 304,289 thousand (2022: MNT 373,611 thousand).

Future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

2023 2022
Less than one year 332,937 274,382
One to two years - -
Two to three years - -
Three to four years - -
Four to five years - -
332,937 274,382
34
182

2022 Total assets Total liabilities Revenue Profit (loss)

Gobi Cashmere Europe GmbH 13,922,880 68,084,246 32,613,789 (12,079,847)
Gobi Cashmere Inner Mongolia

Co. Ltd 14,148,628 23,574,391 6,147,370 (3,613,415)
Goyo LLC 8,752,048 17,760 - (139,132)
Gobi Cashmere USA Corp 11,333,927 30,449,152 13,714,082 (5,433,793)
Gobi Cashmere United

Kingdom 4,486,988 4,536,993 1,866,549 (50,517)

13. Other non-current assets

2023 2022
Intangible assets 1,499,360 448,992
Deposit placed for leased stores 152,121 590,477
Prepayments 6,279,477 547,826

7,930,958 1,587,295
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Other non-current assets (continued)

13.1 Intangible assets

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2023 2022

Cost:

At 1 January 1,613,485 1,381,356
Additions 1,249,934 226,018
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment - 6,929
Disposals (3,300) (818)

At 31 December 2,860,119 1,613,485

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 1,164,493 944,332
Disposals (3,300) -
Amortisation for the year 199,566 197,611
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment - 6,929
Effect of movements in exchange rate - 15,621

At 31 December 1,360,759 1,164,493

Carrying amount:

At 31 December 1,499,360 448,992

Intangible assets comprise of accounting software with a net carrying amount of MNT 1,286,490 thousand (2022:
MNT 226,689 thousand) and trademarks with a net carrying amount of MNT 212,870 thousand (2022: MNT
222,303 thousand).

Trade and other payables

2023 2022
Trade payables* 6,130,757 13,906,484
Payable to fellow subsidiary (Note 29.2)** 10,630,000 42,268
Current portion of long-term payable to Tavan Bogd Holding LLC
(Note 18,29.2) 13,642,760 -
Payable to other related parties (Note 29.2) 703 5315
Salary payables 2,345,859 1,710,470
Other taxes payables (excluding corporate income tax payables) 4,549,593 3,922,058
Dividend payables (Note 20) 166,406 166,686
Government grants — Deferred income (Note 27)*** 1,175,415 -
Other payables 238,633 1,215,911

38,880,126 20,969,192

* Trade payables mainly consists of payables to foreign and domestic suppliers, with payment terms ranging from
30 - 90 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within
the contractual terms.

** On 1 August 2023, the Group entered into a 3-month credit line agreement with fellow subsidiary, Tavan
Bogd LLC, for an amount of MNT 30 billion with an interest rate of 15% per annum. On 1 November 2023, the
credit line agreement amended, and term extended until 1 February 2024. On 1 February 2024, the loan agreement
amended again, and term extended until 1 May 2024.
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14.  Trade and other payables (continued)

*** The Group recognized the grants in the form of a low interest loans subsidized by the Government as
government grant. Benefit that the government grant is measured as the difference between the fair value of the
loan on initial recognizion and the amount received. Grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis
as the Group recognizes interest expenses the costs the grant is intended to compensate.

14.1 Contract liabilities

2023 2022
Amounts received in advance-shown under current liabilities 1,672,424 1,983,898
1,672,424 1,983,898

Contract liabilities as at 31 December 2023 are expected to be recognised as revenue by 31 December 2024.

15. Refund liabilities

2023 2022

Arising from rights of return - 26,503

- 26,503

In 2023, there is no refund liabilities related to customer’s right to return products under the sales agreement.

16. Lease liabilities

2023 2022
Maturity analysis:
Within one year 1,236,777 837,663
More than one year but less than two years 510,764 118,446
More than two years but less than five years 1,209,592 -
2,957,133 956,109
Less: unearned interest (670,809) (66,052)
2,286,324 890,057
2023 2022
Analysed as:
Current 964,376 777,988
Non-current 1,321,948 112,069
2,286,324 890,057

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk in regards to its lease liabilities.
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17. Borrowings (continued)

Terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Borrowings
2023 2022

Short-term:
Short-term borrowings 227,488,827 127,762,048
Accrued interest payables 5,070,687 2,091,569
Total short-term borrowings 232,559,514 129,853,617
Long-term:
Long-term borrowings 9,830,059 95,686,234
Total long-term borrowings 9,830,059 95,686,234
Total 242,389,573 225,539,851

38

2023 Nominal Forcign Effect of fair Foreign
interest rate L currency Face value Carrying  Interest  currency  Carrying Interest
Party Currency __2022) maturity _(thousands) value amount ___payable __(thousands) __amount payable

Golomt Bank (subsidized loan) (i)~ MNT 11.00% 2025 © 13333 200569 13.123.764 36,164 - 20,000,000 54247
Golomt Bank (Credit line) (i) MNT 15.65% 2024 48.950,000 - 48,950,000 83,760 - - 12012
European Bank for Reconstruction § N N
ot (rane )ty USD 679% 2024 - - 1818 6262910 204356
European Bank for Reconstruction ) 5
and Development (Tranche 1B) (i) U5 749% 2024 - - 2721 9,394,364 37
European Bank for Reconsiruction . N . . . . . R ) R
e oment oo 3y i usD 693% 2024 3273 1273235 375.428
Khan Bank (Credit line) (ii) MNT 12.60% 2025 6500000 < 6500000 8334 - -
Khan Bank (subsidized loan) (i) MNT 3.00% 2024 4202775 33280 4169495 8982 10,000,000 21370
Khan Bank (subsidized loan) (iii) MNT 5.00% 2024 - 10000000 247099 9752801 35616 -
oy copment Bank of Nongolia MNT 1634% 2023 - - - - - - 42900000
('?f,;“'“"‘“"“' Bank of Mongolia MNT 1634% 2023 - - - 33333333 113424
Xac Bank (Credit line) (v) MNT (:i o 2023 - - 956,000 201,904
Xac Bank (subsidized loan) (v) MNT 5.00% 2024 - 16666667 238441 16428226 68,493 - -
Arig Bank (subsidized loan) (vi) MNT 5.00% 2024 14500000 450200 14,049,800 59,580 - -
fsian Development Bank (AD) USD  389%:SOFR 2026 12000 40,928,280 - 40928280 104954 - -
ic:v‘;”'“‘“"“"' Investment Bark EUR 425% 2027 8000 30333280 - 30333280 1475377 8,000 29,352,160 162,864
(':‘:f")”““"“" Investment Bank EUR 525% 207 14000 53,083.240 - 53083240 3189418 14,000 51,366,250 352073
Total 238497575 LIT8689 237318886 5.070.687 223448282 2,091,569
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17. Borrowings (continued)
17.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements

(i) Borrowings from Golomt Bank as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

On 2 May 2022, the Group obtained a loan of MNT 20 billion as a long-term repo financing with an
interest rate of 11% per annum for period of 36 months. In 2023, a total amount of MNT 6.7 billion was
repaid from principal amount together with its interest.

On 19 March 2018, the Group entered into a multi-currency credit line agreement with Golomt Bank
together with Tavan Bogd Holding LLC and Ulaanbaatar Flour LLC, with a tenor of 2 years with a total
credit limit of MNT 90 billion or equivalent amount in USD bearing an interest rate of 16.8% and 8.4%
per annum respectively, for working capital financing of the Group, Tavan Bogd Holding LLC, and
Ulaanbaatar Guril LLC. The Group's inventory, and equipment are pledged for the loan. On 3 March
2019, the agreement was amended, interest rate per MNT loan changed to 13.5% per annum, 7.2% per
annum for USD loan. The loan agreement was extended for 24 months. On 19 March 2023, the
agreement was amended, interest rate per MNT loan changed to 15.65%, USD loan changed to 11.05%
per annum respectively extended for 12 months until 19 March 2024. A total credit line limit decreased
to 50 billion MNT.

(ii) Borrowings from EBRD as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

In 2017 and 2018, the Group obtained a loan of USD 16 million from EBRD with an annual interest rate
of LIBOR + 5.3 percent and LIBOR + 6.0 percent in order to increase its solvency and working capital.
The Group's buildings, factory equipment and inventory were pledged against the loan.

On 24 December 2021 the agreement was amended, the interest rate of LIBOR+5.3% and LIBOR+6%
per annum were fixed into 6.79%, 7.49%, and 6.93% per Tranche 1A, Tranche 1B and Tranche 2 each.
The fixed interest rate conditions of the loan contract were effective after 18 January 2022. As of 31
December 2023, a total amount of USD 7.8 million of principal payments together with its interest were
fully repaid before its maturity date. The Group’s buildings, factory equipment and inventory which had
been pledged as collateral for borrowing from EBRD were released from collateral on 10 January 2024.

(iii) Borrowings from Khan Bank as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

On 25 May 2017, the Group entered into a multi-currency credit line agreement with Khan Bank together
with Tavan Bogd Holding LLC and its subsidiaries for working capital financing of the Group. On 3
August 2022, the loan amount of the credit line agreement with Khan Bank was amended. Credit limit
set as MNT 53 billion and the interest rate was reduced to 12.6% (15.6% for credit line above 45 billion)
for MNT loan and 7% for USD loan. On 5 April 2023, the credit limit was amended as MNT 45 billion.
On 29 September 2023, the credit limit was amended again from MNT 45 billion to MNT 75 billion. As
at 31 December 2023, 78,011,250 ordinary shares (2022: 47,200,000 ordinary shares) of Gobi JSC are
pledged by Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC as collateral for this credit line agreement.

On 13 May 2022, the Group obtained a long-term loan with interest rate of 3% per annum, amounting
MNT 10 billion, for the purpose of raw material and financing working capital under the Government
policy for "Loans for wool cashmere, leather preparation and production" from Khan Bank. In 2023, a
total amount of MNT 5.8 billion was repaid from principal amount together with its interest.

On 28 June 2023, the Group obtained a short-term loan with interest rate of 5% per annum, amounting
to MNT 10 billion, for the purpose of raw material under the Government policy for "Loans for wool
cashmere preparation" from Khan Bank.

(iv) Borrowings from Development Bank of Mongolia as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

On 12 June 2019, the Group obtained a loan for 24 months amounting to MNT 42.9 billion with an
interest rate of 12% per annum, for the purpose of acquiring raw materials and financing working capital.
On 5 July 2021, an amendment to the loan was made extending the maturity to 14 June 2023.
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17. Borrowings (continued)
17.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements (continued)

v orrowings Irom CVC! opment ank o ongolia as o ccemoer an are as roliows
iv) B i fi Devel Bank of M li f 31 D ber 2023 and 2022 foll
(continued):

e On 22 May 2020, the Group obtained a loan for 12 months amounting to MNT 40 billion bearing an
interest rate of 3% for working capital purposes. On 5 July 2021, an amendment to the loan was made,
increasing the interest rate to 11.5% and extending the maturity date to 22 May 2022. The Group
pledged land, building, plant and equipment, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, raw materials, and future
cash revenue for both loans outstanding to the Bank.

e On 7 July 2023, the Group repaid a total of MNT 16.2 billion from a principal amount of both loans
and made an amendment with Development Bank of Mongolia. The above two loans were merged into
one loan amounting to MNT 60 billion with an interest rate of 16.34% per annum and loan maturity
date was extended to 25 December 2023.

e On 10 November 2023, the Group fully repaid the principal amount of the loan together with its interest
before its due date.

(v) Borrowings from Xac Bank as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

e On 10 December 2021, the Group, Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC and Tavan Bogd Property LLC entered
into a 24-month credit line agreement with Xac Bank for MNT 25 billion with an interest rate of 13.2%
per annum. On 8 November 2022, the interest rate of the credit agreement for this line increased by 2.4
points to 15.6%. The terms of this agreement was effective from 1 January 2023. Ultimate controlling
party has provided immovable asset guarantee and pledge on behalf of the Group.

e On 14 April 2023, the Group restructured the above loan into a short-term loan with interest rate of 5%
per annum, amounting MNT 25 billion, purpose of raw material under the Government policy for
"Loans for wool cashmere preparation”. In 2023, a total amount of MNT 8.3 billion was repaid from
principal amount together with its interest.

(vi) Borrowings from Arig Bank as of 31 December 2023 is as follows:

e On 29 May 2023, the Group obtained a short-term loan with interest rate of 5% per annum, amounting
to MNT 14.5 billion, for the purpose of raw material under the Government policy for "Loans for wool
cashmere preparation”. The Group's inventory was pledged for the loan. Ultimate controlling party has
provided cash guarantee and pledge on behalf of the Group.

(vii)Borrowings from Asian Development Bank Mongolia as of 31 December 2023 is as follows:

e On 16 November 2023, the Group signed a loan facility agreement with Asian Development Bank,
amounting to USD 30 million with an interest rate of 3.89%+SOFR for the purpose of working capital
financing with 36-month term (Tranche A - USD 12 million and Tranche B - USD18 million).

e On 22 December 2023, the Group received Tranche A loan amounting to USD 12 million.
(viii) The borrowings from International Investment Bank as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

e On 15 May 2020, the Group entered loan agreement total amounted with EUR 30 million with the
International Investment Bank. In May 2020, the Group received EUR 14 million with interest of 5.25%
per annum, and in June 2020, received another EUR 16 million with interest of 4.25% per annum. The
EUR 14 million loan will mature on 15 May 2027 and the EUR 16 million loan will mature 12 months
from initial issuance, with an option to be reissued after repayment.

e On 14 March 2022, the loan agreement was amended, and "Facility A" loan of EUR 14 million is
scheduled to be repaid in May 2027, and the remaining loan of EUR 8 million "Facility B" is scheduled
to be repaid in May 2027. The Group's inventory, equipment, and real estate are pledged for the loan.
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17. Borrowings (continued)

17.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements (continued)

(viii) The borrowings from International Investment Bank as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows

(continued):

e In 2023, none of interest and scheduled repayment were made due to unavailability of International
Investment Bank payment system based on notification received on 4 May 2023.

17.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Borrowings Other long-
excluding Borrowings  term payable
related from related  due to related Lease Dividend
parties parties parties (Note liabilities payable
(Note 17)  (Note 17&29) 14, 18&29) (Note 16) (Note 20) Total

At 1 January 2023 215,518,481 10,021,370 30,980,732 890,057 166,686 257,577,326
Proceeds from
borrowings 617,893,480 81,700,000 453,670,000 - - 1,153,263,480
Repayment of
borrowings (616,114,613)  (70,997,225) (443,040,000) - - (1,130,151,838)
Payment of lease
liabilities - - - (965,391) - (965,391)
Dividend paid - - - - (280) (280)
Effect of foreign
exchange rate 2,619,216 - (304,986) - - 2,314,230
Other changes - - - 2,361,658 - 2,361,658
Fair value
measurement of
subsidized loans (4,391,643)  (1,205,822) - - (5,597,465)
Unwinding of
discount 3,493,433 925,343 - - - 4,418,776
Interest expense 21,461,890 555,651 8,043,236 196,421 - 30,257,198
Interest paid (18,565,899) (524,089) (8,043,236) (196,421) - (27,329,645)
At 31 December
2023 221,914,345 20,475,228 41,305,746 2,286,324 166,406 286,148,049

Borrowings Other long-

excluding Borrowings  term payable
related from related due to related Lease Dividend
parties parties parties (Note Bond liabilities payable
(Note 17) (Note 17&29) 14, 18&29) payables  (Note 16) (Note 20) Total
At 1 January 2022 226,058,669 - 25,622,107 9,877,213 1,587,437 166,933 263,312,359
Proceeds from
borrowings 256,422,309 124,816,586 - - - - 381,238,895
Proceeds from
issuance of bonds - - - 7,906,980 - - 7,906,980
Repayment of bonds - - - (17,765,164) - - (17,765,164)
Repayment of
borrowings (281,772,927) (114,816,586) - - - - (396,589,513)
Payment of lease
liabilities - - - - (931,813) - (931,813)
Dividends paid - - - - - (247) (247)
Effect of foreign
exchange rate 14,451,051 - 5,358,625 - - - 19,809,676
Other changes - - - (19,029) 234,433 - 215,404
Interest expense 21,735,009 1,048,398 2,219,396 414,278 183,245 - 25,600,326
Interest paid (21,375,630)  (1,027,028)  (2.219,396) (414,278)  (183,245) - (25.219.577)
At 31 December
2022 215,518,481 10,021,370 30,980,732 - 890,057 166,686 257,577,326
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Borrowings (continued)
17.3 Breach of loan covenants and waivers

(a) Golomt Bank (credit line): The Group has a secured bank loan from Golomt Bank with a carrying amount
of MNT 48,950,000 thousand at 31 December 2023. The loan was repayable within upcoming 1 year. However,
the loan contained a covenant stating that at the end of each quarter current ratio should not be less than 1.1,
financial debt to EBITDA ratio should be within 13, and liabilities to total active ratio cannot exceed 87%.

The Group has breached above financial ratio covenants as at 31 December 2023, however, management obtained
a waiver from Golomt Bank on 28 December 2023, which extends until 30 June 2024. Accordingly, the loan was
not payable on demand at 31 December 2023.

(b) International Investment Bank (IIB): The Group has a secured bank loan from IIB with a carrying amount
of MNT 83,416,520 thousand at 31 December 2023 (2022: MNT 80,898,440 thousand). The loan is repayable in
tranches within 4 years. However, the loan contained a covenants such as at the end of each quarter debt to interest
for the period to be not less than 2, and financial debt to EBITDA ratio should be within 5.

The Group has breached above financial ratio covenants as at the 31 December 2023, however, management
obtained a waiver from IIB on 7 February 2024. In accordance with IAS 1, unconditional right to defer settlement
must exist at the reporting date to classify a liability as non-current. As the waiver from IIB was received after
the reporting date 31 December 2023, the loan was classified as short-term borrowings in the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with TAS 1.

(c) Asian Development Bank (ADB): The Group has a secured bank loan from ADB with a carrying amount of
MNT 40,928,280 thousand at 31 December 2023. The loan is repayable in tranches within 3 years. The loan
contained a covenants such as at the end of each quarter current ratio should not be less than 1.1, interest cover
for the period to be not less than 1.9, and financial debt to EBITDA ratio should be within 4.

The Group has breached above financial ratio covenants as at the 31 December 2023, and was not able to obtain
a waiver from ADB. As the waiver from ADB was not received at the reporting date, the loan was classified as
short-term borrowings in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IAS 1. However, the Group
received second tranch of USD 18 million from ADB in February 2024. The Group expects to receive waiver
from ADB after issuance of audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

17.4 Collateral

The Group's inventory, property, plant and equipment and shares were pledged for the loan facilities. Please refer
to Notes 8, 10 and 19 for details.

17.5 Subsidized loans

In 2023, the Group obtained various government subsidized low interest loans as government grant. Low interest
rate loans are initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9. The Group initially
measured loans at below-market rates at fair value — e.g. the present value of the expected future cash flows
discounted at a market-related interest rate. The benefit that is government grant is measured as the difference
between the fair value of the loan on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according
to the nature of the grant. Refer to Note 14 for details.
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Long-term other payables
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2023 2022
Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC (Note 29.2) 17,032,986 30,980,732
Government grants — Deferred income (Note 14) 3,274 -
Tok Tok LLC - 4,209

17,036,260 30,984,941

The terms of advances from Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC with an interest rate of 7.8% per annum (previously 8%
per annum) were amended on 1 September 2021 and extended until 24 May 2024. On 1 December 2022, the
agreement was amended to extend term until 24 May 2025 with an interest rate of 7.8%.

Share capital

Number of shares Share capital
2023 2022 2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the year 780,112,500 780,112,500 780,113 780,113
Balance at end of the year 780,112,500 780,112,500 780,113 780,113

The share capital as of 31 December 2023 amounted to MNT 780,112.5 thousand and consists of 780,112,500
common shares authorised and issued at par value of MNT 1.00 (31 December 2022: 780,112,500 common shares
authorised and issued at par value of MNT 1.00).

As at 31 December 2023, 78,011,250 ordinary shares (2022: 47,200,000 ordinary shares) are pledged by Tavan

Bogd Holdings LLC as collateral for credit line loan facility agreement made with Khan Bank on 18 November
2019.

Dividend payable

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year 166,686 166,933
Dividends paid (280) (247)
Balance at end of year 166,406 166,686

As per Resolution No. 01 of the Board of Directors dated 26 January 2024 and as per Resolution No. 02 of the
Board of Directors dated 3 February 2023, no dividends were declared for fiscal year 2023 and for fiscal year
2022.
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Losses per share

The calculation of basic losses per share has been based on the following loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding:

2023 2022
Net loss for the year (6,767,958) (6,997,610)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 780,112,500 780,112,500
Losses per share (in MNT) (8.68) 8.97)

Basic losses per share are calculated by dividing the Group's loss by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding for the year. No diluted earnings per share is presented as there are no outstanding shares or options
other than ordinary shares.

22. Revaluation reserve

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year 44,568,540 48,870,401
Tax impact of revaluation - (4,301,861)
Balance at end of year 44,568,540 44,568,540
23. Foreign currency translation reserve
2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year (11,436,010) 561,878
Exchange differences arising on translating the net assets of foreign
subsidiaries 773,737 (11,997,888)
Balance at end of year (10,662,273) (11,436,010)
24. Income tax expense
2023 2022
Current tax:
Current tax expense in respect of the current year 1,511,216 3,649,946
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax expense (benefit) recognised in the current year 5,279,865 (6,648,928)
6,791,081 (2,998,982)
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Income tax expense (continued)
24.1 Current tax

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

— ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2023 2022
Profit (loss) before taxation 23,123 (9,996,592)
Theoretical tax credit at statutory income tax rate of 25% 5,781 (2,499,148)
Effect of non-deductible expenses 2,866,713 836,322
Effect of non-taxable income (107,548) (186,577)
Tax under the special tax rate 70,602 50,639
Current year tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised 5,388,237 5,214,018
Recognition of previously unrecognised taxable temporary differences - 452,248
Change in estimates related to prior year - (6,866,484)
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses (2,332,160) -
Derecognition of previously recognised tax losses 899,456 -
Income tax expense /(benefit) 6,791,081 (2,998,982)

According to the Mongolian Corporate Income Tax Law, an annual taxable income of up to MNT 6 billion (MNT
6 billion in 2022) will be taxed at 10% (10% in 2022), and an annual taxable income of more than MNT 6 billion
will be taxed at an additional 25% (25% in 2022).

The Mongolian Tax Administration has been implementing the revised set of laws since 2020 using the balance
sheet method to calculate the temporary difference between deferred tax assets and liabilities under IAS 12.

The Group had an accrued unused tax losses of MNT 17,959,767 thousand in 2023 (an accrued unused tax losses
of MNT 27,288,407 thousand in 2022). Those tax losses were accrued from 2020 and that could be deducted from
future taxable profit during the reporting year. This includes deferred tax assets. The tax losses can be carried
forward against the future taxable profit for four years as such tax losses incurred in 2020 can be carried forward
to 2024.

24.2 Current tax liabilities

2023 2022
Corporate income tax receivable - -
Corporate income tax payable 1,801,506 3,083,126
1,801,506 3,683,126

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the year 3,683,126 111,894
Current tax expense for the year 1,511,216 3,649,946
Payments for income tax (3,392,836) (78,714)
Corporate income tax payable 1,801,506 3,683,126
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Income tax expense (continued)
24.3 Deferred tax balances

The following are major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior years:

Recognised in  Recognised Closing
2023 Opening balance profit or (loss) in OCI balance

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:
Inventories 668,474 (550,166) - 118,308
Borrowings 6,226,781 (1,421,629) - 4,805,152
Unused tax losses 7,984,228 (3,631,129) - 4,353,099
14,879,483 (5,602,924) - 9,276,559

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:
Financial assets (3,745,918) (6,605) - (3,752,523)
Property, plant and equipment (4,460,916) 329,664 - (4,131,252)
(8,206,834) 323,059 - (7,883,775)
Net position 6,672,649 (5,279,865) - 1,392,784

Recognised in Recognised Closing
2022 Opening balance _ profit or (loss) in OCI balance

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:
Inventories - 668,474 - 668,474
Borrowings 457,173 5,769,608 - 6,226,781
Unused tax losses 4,177,604 3,806,624 - 7,984,228
4,634,777 10,244,706 - 14,879,483

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:
Financial assets (126,784) (3,619,134) - (3,745,918)
Property, plant and equipment (182,411) 23,356 (4,301,861) (4,460,916)
(309,195) (3,595,778)  (4,301,861) (8,206,834)
Net position 4,325,582 6,648,928  (4,301,861) 6,672,649
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Revenue and expenses

25.1 Revenue
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2023 2022
Sales of knitwear 159,501,977 125,508,836
Sales of sewn 41,847,534 32,942,210
Sales of woven 44,428,954 30,182,595
Service income 2,002,583 1,612,336
Other 6,433,419 3,181,632
Sales of footwear 1,436,049 -

255,650,516 193,427,609
25.2 Cost of sales

2023 2022
Sales of knitwear 78,116,226 59,838,283
Sales of sewn 21,782,380 17,799,533
Sales of woven 23,490,675 15,914,629
Cost of service 1,704,830 1,159,957
Other 5,190,498 3,054,429
Sales of footwear 726,736 -

131,011,345 97,766,831
25.3 Expense by nature

2023 2022
Changes in inventories 8,469,488 8,672,912
Raw materials and consumables 94,393,507 53,873,855
Salary and related cost 45,207,429 38,562,935
Depreciation and amortisation 12,643,029 11,872,940
Advertisement expenses 28,114,648 28,876,128
Supplies and consumables 2,138,826 2,043,652
Professional service fees 9,254,644 5,866,382
Selling expenses 3,898,759 2,918,267
Transportation expenses 4,063,595 3,241,126
Others 16,154,021 17,744,517
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing, and general and
administrative expenses 224,337,946 173,672,714
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Revenue and expenses (continued)

25.4 Selling and distribution expenses

2023 2022
Marketing and advertising 28,114,648 28,876,128
Wages and remuneration 15,547,966 11,230,522
Professional service fees 8,081,869 5,325,812
Customer promotion expenses 4,968,082 2,219,053
Transportation 4,063,595 3,241,126
Selling expenses 3,898,759 2,918,267
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2,122,065 1,818,572
Supplies and consumables 2,045,054 1,983,317
Other taxes 1,248,430 1,213,128
Business trips 808,326 433,242
Management fees 539,001 539,001
Labor safety expenses 446,997 396,996
Insurance 445,889 243,022
Utilities 387,825 361,341
Repair and maintenance 227,432 262,832
Short-term and low value leases 190,602 206,865
Communication expenses 130,399 120,015
Cleaning services 107,355 115,363
Fuel expenses 76,971 70,969
HR and related costs 37,468 32,880
Other expenses 104,628 159,033

73,593,361 61,767,484

25.5 Administrative expenses

2023 2022
Wages and remuneration 10,033,083 7,350,466
Labor safety expenses 1,760,230 1,181,851
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,357,897 1,130,953
Other taxes 1,252,887 522,299
Professional service fees 1,172,775 540,570
Security expenses 880,619 765,969
Business trips 732,252 64,588
Repair and maintenance 675,114 526,852
HR and related costs 566,205 268,137
Utilities 202,108 188,573
Fuel expenses 129,581 97,309
Supplies and consumables 93,772 60,335
Insurance 83,664 65,489
Communication expenses 78,597 70,024
Bank charges 69,044 45,185
Impairment allowance / (reversal) on inventories, net (166,906) 565,997
Other expenses 812,318 693,802

19,733,240 14,138,399

Professional service fees for the fiscal year 2023 include audit fees of MNT 280 million.
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Finance income

2023 2022
Interest income 229,734 29,261
229,734 29,261
27. Other income and expenses
27.1 Other income
2023 2022
Rental and other income 583,510 1,162,425
Government grants (Note 14) 4,418,776 -
5,002,286 1,162,425
27.2 Other expenses
2023 2022
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets (6,980) (13,355)
(6,980) (13,355)
28. Finance costs
2023 2022
Interest expense on borrowings (Note 17.2) 22,017,541 22,783,434
Interest expense on other payable (Note 17.2) 8,043,236 2,219,369
Unwinding of discount on subsidized loans (Notes 17.2 and 17.5) 4,418,776 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 11) 196,421 183,245
Interest expense on bond - 414,278
Net foreign exchange loss 954,141 4,978,856
Other finance costs 893,638 400,100
36,523,753 30,979,282
29. Balances and transactions with related parties
29.1 Related parties
Related party Relationships
Shareholders
Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC (formerly
Tavan Bogd Trade LLC) Ultimate controlling party
Hide Inter LLC Shareholder

Fellow subsidiaries
Other related parties

Subsidiaries of ultimate controlling party
Associate, joint venture and other related parties under
control of key management personnel

50

29.

GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)

Balances and transactions with related parties (continued)

29.2 Balances with related parties

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

2023 2022
Receivables from related parties (Note 6)
Other related parties 129,632 17,222
Payable to related parties /Short-term/ (Note 14)
Ultimate controlling party 13,642,760 -
Fellow subsidiaries 10,630,000 42,268
Other related parties 703 5315
Payable to related parties /Long-term/ (Note 18)
Ultimate controlling party 17,032,986 30,980,732
Borrowings from related parties (Note 17)
Other related parties 20,475,228 10,025,578

There are no liens on related party account balances and no provision for bad debts.

Long-term payables to related parties are related to the purchase of shares of Goyo LLC from Tavan Bogd
Holdings LLC on credit terms. Please details in Note 18. The Group has not pledged any assets on the agreement.

29.3 Transactions with related parties

The following transactions were incurred with Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC which is the Group’s ultimate

controlling party:

2023 2022
Advances received from ultimate controlling party 200,750,000 -
Payment of advances received from ultimate controlling party 200,750,000 -
Advances provided to ultimate controlling party 18,950,000 -
Payment of advances provided to ultimate controlling party 18,950,000 -
Purchases made from ultimate controlling party 1,375,508 1,356,559
Sales made to ultimate controlling party 33,051 7,789
Rental income from ultimate controlling party - 22,090
Interest income from ultimate controlling party 195,185 -
Interest expense to ultimate controlling party 5,816,451 2,219,369
Payment of interest expense to ultimate controlling party 5,816,451 2,219,369

The following transactions were incurred with other related parties of the Group which are entities under common

198

control:
2023 2022

Advances received from other related parties (Note 17.2) 252,920,000 105,506,586
Payment of advances received from other related parties (Note 17.2) 242,290,000 105,506,586
Purchases made from other related parties 1,776,029 1,202,395
Purchase made from other related parties 25,932 28,918
Sales made to other related parties 251,554 134,599
Rental income from other related parties 292,062 347,349
Interest expense to other related parties 2,226,785 853,494
Payment of interest expense to other related parties 2,226,785 853,494
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29. Balances and transactions with related parties (continued)
29.3 Transactions with related parties (continued)

The following transactions were incurred with Khan Bank which is an associated entity of the ultimate controlling

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

party:
2023 2022
Advances received from Khan Bank (Note 17.2) 81,700,000 19,310,000
Payment of advances received from Khan Bank (Note 17.2) 70,997,225 9,310,000
Sales made to Khan Bank 138,672 22,002
Purchase made from Khan Bank - 1,302,303
Interest expense to Khan Bank 555,651 194,904
Payment of interest expense to Khan bank 524,089 1,027,028

All transactions with related parties are on mutually agreed terms.

294 C

p ion of key ma t personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

2023 2022
The total amount of salaries and bonuses of the Board members 223,885 195,413
The total amount of salaries and bonuses of the key management
personnel 2,119,517 1,566,703

30. Contingent liabilities and commitments

The Group may incur various commitments and contingent liabilities to meet the financial needs and requirements
of its customers. As at 31 December 2023 (none in 2022), the Group does not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

30.1 Contingent liabilities

Guarantees the Group provides are commitment to make payments on behalf of related parties in the event of a
specific act, generally related to tender and bid auction. They generally carry the same risk as loans even though
they are contingent.

30.2 Commitments

Commitments means to extend credit representation on contractual commitments on borrowings and revolving
credit. Commitments have fixed expiry dates or other termination clauses. Since commitments may expire without
being drawn upon, the total contract amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. No material
losses are anticipated as a result of these transactions.

30.3 Legal claims
Depending on the nature of the Group's business activities, disputes are settled by the courts, and there are formal
controls and policies for filing lawsuits and managing legal claims. Obtaining professional legal advice to protect

the Group from any adverse effects of any claim on its financial position will reduce the risk. At the end of the
reporting period there were no significant litigations.

52

200

31.

GOBI JSC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(IN THOUSANDS OF MONGOLIAN TUGRUGS)

Fi ial instr ts and fi ial risk ma t objectives

Introduction

The main risks inherent in the Group's risk management of financial risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk. Market risk is the risk that the value of the Group's income and financial assets will waver due to changes in
market factors such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

The primary goal of risk management is to maximize the Group's risk-adjusted return on assets through the
process of allocating, identifying, measuring and monitoring assets across business segments in line with
risk/return ratios. This risk management process is critical to the continued profitability of the Group. It is to
create a management system compatible with the general concept and direction of the Group, define the rights
and responsibilities of the participants, successfully implement risk management, monitor the implementation
and continuously improve it.

The Group's risk management system is not designed to eliminate risk, but rather to maintain an optimal risk-
return ratio. "Risk management policy" includes a complex scope of basic and organizational measures aimed at
creating, implementing, monitoring, analysing and constantly improving the risk management structure at the
company level.

The Group's goals are consistent with risk acceptance normative. Risk management includes strategic risks,
compliance risks, financial risks, operational risks, force majeure risks and other risks of a contemporary nature.
The Group manages risk through quarterly review in accordance with risk recognition norms within the
framework of the risk management policy established by the Board of Directors. These recognition standards are
established in accordance with the Group's business strategy, market conditions and operations.

Risk Management Structure

The Board of Directors recognizes that clear implementation of collective oversight and risk management
responsibilities is one of the primary objectives.

The risk management system consists of two main levels: governance and implementation. The Group's risk
management system consists of the Board of Directors and the Risk and Audit Committee attached to it. The
implementer of the risk policy will be the risk management team, and the Chief Executive Officer will appoint
the members of the team in accordance with the "Risk Management Policy".

The first line of defence is the management and all employees of the risk management unit, the second line is the
Risk Management Team, and the third line is the Internal Audit Department.

The Board of Director’s Risk and Audit Committee

The Board of Director’s Risk and Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities for its compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and internal controls and functions.

Internal Audit
In the Group's risk management process, Internal Audit works according to the directions given by the Risk Audit

Committee. The appropriateness of the policies, rules and regulations implemented throughout the Group and
how the Group implements them is monitored and the results are reported to the Board of Directors.
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Financial instruments and fi ial risk t objectives (continued)

Sustainable Development Department

The purpose of this department is to determine environmental, social, and governance indicators that align with
the Group's activities within the framework of the 17 Sustainable Development Goals, and to manage and monitor
activities to ensure their implementation.

The implementation of risk management is managed by this department. It includes:

1. It is organized to create a unified risk register at the Group level, conduct a detailed risk analysis and
evaluation, develop a risk management plan, provide the management with the necessary information,
and spread the risk culture.

2. Inaccordance with the risk management policies and procedures, the environment where there may be
certain risks is detected, and the proposals for managing/reducing them are developed and presented to
the risk management team.

3. Reports on risk response measures and activities are presented to the Risk and Audit Committee every
quarter, and they work with direction.

Risk Mitigation
Interest rate risk, foreign currency exchange rate changes, credit risk, and possible risks arising from future

activities are monitored by sensitivity analysis. Certain measures are taken to mitigate the risk and are detailed
below.

Excessive Risk Concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical
location.

To avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Group’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to
focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. For example, it controls and manages concentrations by developing
retail sales online, through in-store and ordering channels, opening branches in other international regions, or
developing appropriate marketing policies.

31.1 Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses for the Group.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2023 2022
Cash in bank 9,459,561 8,994,375
Deposit placed for lease stores 152,121 590,477
Trade and other receivables* 6,672,251 1,924,834
16,283,933 11,509,686

*Excludes taxes receivable of MNT 1,358,657 thousand in 2023 and MNT 1,394,152 thousand in 2022.
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Financial instruments and financial risk management objectives (continued)
31.1 Credit risk management (continued)

Impairment losses / reversal of impairment on financial assets recognised in profit or loss were as follows:

2023 2022
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables - (3,478)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and other receivables 9,266 52,942
9,266 49,464

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables (excluding taxes) at the reporting date by
geographic region was as follows:

2023 2022
Domestic 2,554,928 1,012,147
Foreign 4,117,323 912,687
6,672,251 1,924,834

Currently, there is no independent rating agency service available in the local market. Therefore, the Group
adheres to the policy of selling on credit within the pre-approved credit limit with long-term and reliable
customers. Every year, sales contracts are concluded with customers, renewed and confirmed, and the fulfilment
of the terms of the contract is constantly monitored.

There are no credit risk measures taken in relation to the Group's financial assets. In 2023 and 2022, there are no
accounts receivable insured or secured by letters of credit.

The management of the Group considered the level of financial credit risk corresponding to bank current accounts
placed with domestic banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings to manage the credit risk to be low.
The management believes that the probability of default is low and therefore impairment allowance was not
recognized.

The Group estimated the impairment allowance for doubtful accounts related to its receivables based on its
assessment of individual characteristics of each customer and by the economic conditions and the related industry.

In these cases, judgement used was based on the best available facts and circumstances including but not limited
to, the length of relationship with the counterparty and the counterparty’s current credit status based on credit
reports and known market factors. The Group used judgement to record specific allowances for counterparties
against amounts due to reduce the expected collectible amounts.

The Group writes-off trade receivables when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation,
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over ten years past due, whichever
occurs earlier.
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Financial instruments and fi ial risk t objectives (continued)

31.1 Credit risk management (continued)

The following tables provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and other
receivables:

31 December 2023 Gross carrying

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

amount Loss allowance  Credit impaired

Neither past due nor impaired 6,595,239 - 0.00%
Past due 0-30 days - - 0.00%
Past due 31-60 days - - 0.00%
Past due 61-90 days - - 0.00%
Past due more than 91 days 1,838,821 (1,761,809) 95.81%
8,434,060 (1,761,809) 20.89%

31 December 2022 Gross carrying

amount Loss allowance  Credit impaired

Neither past due nor impaired 1,913,329 - 0.00%
Past due 0-30 days 5,442 - 0.00%
Past due 31-60 days 559 - 0.00%
Past due 61-90 days 8 - 0.00%
Past due more than 91 days 1,776,571 (1,771,075) 99.68%
3,695,909 (1,771,075) 58.19%

1.

Mc in the e for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as
follows:

2023 2022
Balance at 1 January 1,771,075 1,843,519
Loss allowance - 3,478
Reversal of loss allowance (9,266) (52,942)
Amounts written-off - (22,980)
Balance at 31 December 1,761,809 1,771,075

Details of the impairment assessment on trade receivables are set out in Note 6.

The management of the Group has made individual assessments on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical settlement records and adjusts for forward-looking information. The management of the Group has
assessed that other receivables did not have a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and risk
of default is insignificant, and therefore, no impairment has been recognised.

The Group performs ongoing credit risk assessment based on the condition of the trade receivables and when

necessary, the Group purchases insurance on the payment risk of the outstanding balance. The Group also requires
full payment of any outstanding amounts prior to fulfilling the next order for the customer.
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Financial instruments and financial risk management objectives (continued)
31.2 Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk arises when the Group encounters difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Group's objective of managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors of the Group, which is to
establish an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the Group's short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity risk management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and borrowing reserves, by continuously monitoring the forecast and actual cash
flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables illustrate the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.

On demand
and less than 3 months to Carrying
1 month  1-3 months 1 year 1-5 years Total amount

31 December 2023

Trade and other payables

(including non-current) * 8,754,777 12,221,818 18,703,249 17,417,889 57,097,733 51,366,793
Short-term and long-term

borrowings 79,057,909 30,405,374 48,900,870 124,704,197 283,068,350 242,389,573
Short-term and long-term
lease liabilities 118,443 355,330 763,004 1,720,356 2,957,133 2,286,324

87,931,129 42,982,522 68,367,123 143,842,442 343,123,216 296,042,690

On demand
and less than 3 months to Carrying
1 month  1-3 months 1 year 1-5 years Total amount

31 December 2022

Trade and other payables

(including non-current) * 15,913,627 1,543,430 1,839,888 33,585,213 52,882,158 48,032,075
Short-term and long-term

borrowings 61,565,224 20,829,946 39,712,592 124,300,878 246,408,640 225,539,851
Short-term and long-term
lease liabilities 93,446 186,891 557,326 118,446 956,109 890,057

77,572,297 22,560,267 42,109,806 158,004,537 300,246,907 274,461,983

*Excludes taxes payable of MNT 4,549,593 thousand in 2023 and 3,922,058 thousand in 2022.
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Financial instruments and fi ial risk ma t objectives (continued)

31.3 Market risk

Market risk refers to the possibility that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
will affect the Group's profit or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Group focuses on two main
market risk areas, which are interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective and management of these
risks are described in more detail below.

31.3.1 Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The cash
flow interest rate risk arises from floating rate borrowings while fair value interest rate risk arises from fixed rate
borrowings. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate
borrowings. The Group does not use hedging instruments to manage interest rate risk.

At the reporting date the interest profile on the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:

2023 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets - -
Financial liabilities (246,127,098) (257,410,640)
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets - -
Financial liabilities (41,033,234) -

(285,984,917)  (257,410,640)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to floating interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. The floating interest rate liabilities assessment is
prepared based on the assumption that any liabilities with floating interest rates were outstanding throughout the
whole year. At the executive management level, interest rate risk assessment assumes that a possible change in
interest rate increases or decreases by 50 basis points.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit
before tax for the year ended 31 December 2023 would increase or decrease by MNT 205,166 thousand (31
December 2022 nil). This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its floating interest
rate borrowings.
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Financial instr ts and fi ial risk ma t objectives (continued)

31.3 Market risk (continued)
31.3.2 Foreign currency risk management

The Group incurs foreign currency risk on purchases and payments denominated in a currency other than MNT.
The Group does not manage these exposures with foreign currency derivative products.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting
date presented in MNT are as follows:

USD EUR CNY Other
31 December 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 195,211 1,809,930 1,482,746 247,357
Trade and other receivables 957,665 2,853,995 1,412,036 9,053
Trade and other payables (34,903,250) (2,751,869) (323,527) (524,624)
Short-term and long-term borrowings (41,033,234)  (88,081,315) - -
Lease liabilities - (1,631,568) - -
(74,783,608)  (87,800,827) 2,571,255 (268,214)
USD EUR CNY Other
31 December 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 1,265,170 2,954,694 1,482,351 2,523,824
Trade and other receivables 48,494 263,079 1,579,473 27,764
Deposit placed for leased stores 68,892 477,316 44,269 -
Trade and other payables (11,541,073) (5,546,470) (215,039) (399,351)
Short-term and long-term borrowings (27,848,430)  (81,233,377) - -
Lease liabilities (111,185) (273,152) - -

(38,118,132)  (83357,910) 2,891,054 2,152,237

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year.

Average rate Reporting date spot rate
(In MNT) 2023 2022 2023 2022
UsD 3,466 3,141 3,466 3,445
EUR 3,747 3,302 3,792 3,669
CNY 490 466 480 495

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to USD, EUR, CNY, GBP and JPY (together referred to as "the foreign currencies").
The following table shows the Group's sensitivity to a 10% increase or decrease in the MNT against the foreign
currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates.
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Financial instruments and fi ial risk t objectives (continued)

31.3 Market risk (continued)

31.3.2 Foreign currency risk management (continued)

A 10% strengthening of MNT against foreign currencies held by the Group as at the date of the consolidated

statement of financial position would increase profit after tax by the amount shown below. This analysis assumes
all other risk variables remain constant.

2023 profit / (loss) before tax 2022 profit / (loss) before tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
(10% increase) (10% decrease) (10% increase) (10% decrease)
UsD 7,478,361 (7,478,361) 3,811,813 (3,811,813)
EUR 8,780,083 (8,780,083) 8,335,791 (8,335,791)
CNY (257,126) 257,126 (289,105) 289,105
Other 26,821 (26,821) (215,224) 215,224

A 10% weakening of MNT against the foreign currencies held by the Group as at the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amount
shown above, on the basis that all other risk variables remain constant.

31.4 Fair value of financial instruments

The Group follows the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments
based on the level of significant inputs used in the measurement.

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability; either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial
instruments which are not already recorded at fair value in the consolidated financial statements:

(i) Financial assets and liabilities for which fair value approximates carrying amount

For financial assets and liabilities that are liquid or having short-term maturity of less than one year, it is
assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their respective fair value.

(ii) Fixed rate financial instruments

The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated by comparing
market interest rates when they were first recognised with current market rates offered for similar financial
instruments.

The Group's financial instruments consist of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.
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31. Financial instr ts and fi ial risk ma t objectives (continued)

31.4 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, are as follows:

2023 2022
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value

amount amount
Assets carried at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 9,491,111 9,491,111 9,034,919 9,034,919
Trade and other receivables 6,672,251 6,672,251 1,924,834 1,924,834

16,163,362 16,163,362 10,959,753 10,959,753
Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 33,155,118 33,155,118 17,047,134 17,047,134
Short-term and long-term
borrowings 242,389,573 242,389,573 225,539,851 225,539,851
Short-term and long-term lease
liabilities 2,286,324 2,286,324 890,057 890,057
Other long-term payables 17,032,986 17,032,986 30,984,941 30,984,941

294,864,001 294,864,001 274,461,983 274,461,983

32. Segment information

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer, being the Chief operating decision maker, for resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of sales delivered or provided, in respect
of the 'Domestic sales' and 'Export sales' operations by the line of products and cost of sales to provide a gross
margin analysis.

For the purpose of management analysis and decision making, the Group allocates the sales based on the customer
type, location, sales delivery and type into the following 3 operational segments, ‘Domestic, ‘Export /wholesale/’,
and ‘Export /online/’.

Other than revenue and cost of sales, no other income and expenses are allocated for segment reporting purposes.

Similarly, the Group decided to perform constant monitoring, but to not report the assets and liabilities in
segments.
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Segment information (continued)

32.1 Segment revenue and results
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Segment revenue Segment profit
2023 2022 2023 2022
Domestic sales Knitwear 73,409,276 47,020,319 38,805,437 24,553,879
Sewn 33,619,320 25,851,676 16,769,500 11,996,860
Woven 32,291,323 17,001,136 15,675,431 8,602,065
Service
income 2,002,583 1,612,336 297,753 452,379
Other 4,304,406 2,014,839 (52,857) (473,011)
Footwear 1,369,766 - 671,480 -
146,996,674 93,500,306 72,166,744 45,132,172
Export sales
/wholesale/ Knitwear 45,662,090 33,569,927 14,589,610 12,185,635
Sewn 4,136,844 2,181,496 1,220,470 955,590
Woven 7,594,053 8,672,411 2,147,805 3,299,531
Other 2,089,427 1,161,679 1,302,926 631,145
Footwear 2,340 - 769 -
59,484,754 45,585,513 19,261,580 17,071,901
Export sales /online/ Knitwear 40,430,611 44,918,591 27,990,704 28,931,039
Sewn 4,091,370 4,909,037 2,075,184 2,190,227
Woven 4,543,578 4,509,048 3,115,043 2,366,370
Other 39,586 5114 (7,148) (30,931)
Footwear 63,943 - 37,064 -
49,169,088 54,341,790 33,210,847 33,456,705
255,650,516 193,427,609 124,639,171 95,660,778
Other income 5,002,286 1,162,425

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets

Other expense
Finance income
Finance costs
Profit before tax

(73,593,361)
(19,733,240)

(61,767,484)
(14,138,399)

9,266 49,464
(6,980) (13,355)
229,734 29,261
(36,523,753)  (30,979,282)
23,123 (9,996,592)

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for both 2023 and 2022.
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Segment information (continued)
32.2 Geographical information
The Group sells their products in different geographical areas as detailed below:

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets

2023 2022 2023 2022
Mongolia 147,064,251 93,502,725 136,124,801 138,751,850
Asia Pacific 29,763,886 33,298,349 78,937 44,269
Europe 59,945,974 50,408,791 3,081,221 726,782
Russia 1,429,718 1,014,976 - -
North America 17,386,232 15,202,334 5,038 228,693
Australia and New Zealand 60,455 434 - -

255,650,516 193,427,609 139,289,997 139,751,594

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is presented based on the location of the
customers. This information also presents the Group’s non-current assets based on their geographical location.

Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings net off by cash and bank balances) and equity,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings.
Contractual obligations

The Group did not have any significant contractual obligations as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Events after the reporting period

As per Resolution No. 01 of the Board of Directors dated 26 January 2024, no dividends were declared in 2024.
Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC acquired 257,437,125 shares of Gobi JSC (representing 33% of Gobi JSC’s issued
shares) from Hide Inter LLC on 15 March 2024. As a result of the transaction, Tavan Bogd Holdings LLC owns
84.29% of Gobi JSC.

Report translation

These consolidated financial statements are also prepared in the Mongolian language. In the event of discrepancies
or contradictions between the Mongolian and English versions, the English version will prevail.
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FACTORY STORE

Industrial street, Khan-Uul district,
Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia
Tel: +976 7004 8888

DOMESTIC STORES
LOCATION

DARKHAN CITY STORE

“Shine Darkhan” International Shopping Center,
Darkhan, Mongolia
Tel: +976 9937 6775, +976 9505 6656

MANZHOULI, CHINA

GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
Hulunbuir province, Manzhouli
city, China Russia Free Trade Zone,
Aimin Store

SI YANG, CHINA
GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
Ne 9 Wen Meng Rd, Si yang city,
Jiang Su province

FUZHOU, CHINA

GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
Fujian Province, Fujian Province,
Taijiang District Industrial Road,
Baolong Xinhua second floor Gobi
store

HAILAAR, CHINA
GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE

Hulunbuir city, Hailaar District,
No.T MANSION STORE 49 # 111

ULANHOT, INNER MONGOLIA,
CHINA

GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
No.2-12 of Yukeduolan Park One-
staged, Keergin town, Keyougianqi,
Inner Mongolia, China

BELJING, CHINA

GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
12B03,Tower, Henghua
International Business Center,

GALLERIA ULAANBAATAR STORE

The left side of the Government House,
Sukhbaatar district, Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia

NO.26, Yuetan North Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing 100045

Tel: +976 7004 8888

INTERNATIONAL STORES
LOCATION
BRANCH STORES
BERLIN, GERMANY DUSSELDORF, GERMANY

GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
Knesebeckstr.30, Berlin, Germany
www.gobicashmere.com/de

+49 (0)30 224 66510

FRANCHISE STORES

ASIA

ANKARA, TURKEY

MONGOLIAN CASHMERE GOBI
Bestepe mahallesi dumlupinar bulvari
B Blok 6/136 soguitézi Ankara

Email: info@gobi.comtr,

Web: www.gobi.comr

GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
Grilinstr. 6, 40212 Disseldorf, Germany
www.gobicashmere.com/de

+49 211 73288348

ISTANBUL, TURKEY

MONGOLIAN CASHMERE GOBI

Ayazaga mahallesi Azerbaycan caddesi No:3j/7
Vadistanbul avm Sariyer Istanbul

ISTANBUL, TURKEY
MONGOLIAN CASHMERE GOBI

Kanyon Avm Esentepe mahallesi bilylikdere caddesi
G kat No:185/124 Sisli Istanbul

HUHHOT, CHINA

GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
Zhongshan West Road, Hohhot
City, Inner Mongolia, National
Shopping Center, West 3rd Floor,
Cashmere District

PUSAN, SOUTH KOREA

GOBI CASHMERE

#2069, Punpo road 145, Nam-gu,
Pusan, Korea

EUROPE

SZCZECIN, POLAND
Imperial Cashmere
Wyzwolenia str,44 71-500
Szczecin, Poland

PRAGUE, CZECH

GOBI KASMIR

V Jame 3, 110 00 Praha 1, Czech
+42 (0) 702 065 696
www.kasmir.cz

ILSAN, SOUTH KOREA

GOBI CASHMERE

4th floor Lotte Department store, 1283,
Jungang-ro, llsandong-gu, Goyang-si,
Gyeonggi-do, Republic of Korea

DAEGU, SOUTH KOREA

GOBI CASHMERE

1748, Dalgubeol-daero, Dalseo-gu,
Daegu, Republic of Korea

RUSSIA

ULAN-UDE, RUSSIA
MATA3MH “GOBI”

Yn Nennna 44, Ynan-Yan3, Pecn,
Bypstua, Poccua, 670000
+7964 41478 88

IRKUTSK, RUSSIA

MATA3MH “GOBI”

CoBeTckasd ynnua, 3, MIpkyTek,
MpkyTckas o6n., Poccusi, 664047
+7 952 629 29 84

SEOUL, SOUTH KOREA
GOBI CASHMERE

Gobi store, 130, Apgujeong-ro,
Gangnam-gu,

Seoul, Republic of Korea

+02 518 0525

TOKYO, JAPAN

GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
Haneda Airport, 1 Terminal,
Market place 4F

KYZYL, RUSSIA

GOBI MONGOLIAN CASHMERE
Pec TbiBa, I. Kbi3bin, yn. Yynbayma
37, T4 AnekceeBckui

MOSCOW, RUSSIA

MATA3MH “GOBI”
r. MockBa, PoxkaectBeHckuit 6ynbBap,
4.9, cTp. 1, noavesa 2, od. 508.



GOBI

MONGOLIAN CASHMERE

Gobi JSC Industrial Street, Khan-Uul District, PO.Box 36/434,
Ulaanbaatar-17062, Mongolia

Tel: +976-7013 9977

Fax: +976-70143081

E-mail: info@gobi.mn

Website: info.gobi.mn
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